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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Implementing new
growth strategies will
generate long-term
Improvements in financial
performance

Without doubt, 2011 has been the most
challenging year In the history of Healthcare
Locums plc

In January, the Company announced the
suspension of its shares following the
discovery of senous accounting iregulaniies
and that the financicl performance of the

UK business was well below the then
market expectalions The UK business was
not generating free cash and the business
model had not been cdapted sufficiently to
accommodate changing market condiions
The inveshgation of the iregulanties fook
several months to complete and led to the
restatement of the 2009 accounis when the
2010 occounts were published In August
Dunng the course of the investigations 1t
became clear that the copital structure of
the Group and the costs of semicing tis

debt were unsustainable In July, the Board
announced the disposal of the Homecare
Division of Healthcare Austraha "Homecare™
which raised approximately £203m in cash
that was used to reduce Group debt This
was insufficient to restore financial viability
and the Board sought a captal injechion and
renegotated bank facliies The Refinancing
was approved at a General Meefing of the
Company in September following which the
Company's shares were readmitted 1o trading

All of these 1ssues had to be managed
agaoinst a background of difficult market
condiions especclly relating fo supplies to
the UK's major customer, the National Health
Service 'NHS", which was implementing ds
own stingent cost saving measures

The sale of Homecare and the Refinancing
completed in September restruciured the
balance sheet and removed o major source
of nsk to the ongoing financial viability of the
Group At 31 Decemnber 2011, the Group had
bank and finance lecse debt net of cash of
£234m In addition, the Group has a £102m
Zero Coupon Logn Note fior valued at £2 6m
at 31 Decemnber 2011 that 15 not repayable
in normal crcumstances untl 30 September
2021

BOARD AND GOVERNANCE

During the year, the entire Board was
replaced Alan Walker the Chairman the
Deputy Chairman Alasdarr Liddell, the
Executive Vice Charman Kate Bleasdale the
Chvef Financial Officer Dione Jamis and the
Chief Operating Officer Mo Dedat had «ll
been removed from or left the Boord by the
end of Maich Dawid Henderson and | were
appointed to the Board in February and we
were |oined by Stephen Burke and Andy

McRae as Group CEO and Managing Director
of HCA in Australia respediively in May Colin
Whipp served as Intenm Finance Direclor
from May until September ond Bill Jessup
served in that capoaly from October until April
2012 Mark Andrews formerly a partner with
low firm SNR Denton joined the Boord as a
Non-executive Director in October ond Sue
Bygrave was appointed as the permanent
Chief Financial Officer on & Febuary 2012 We
now have a seitted and expenenced Board
compnsing three executive Direclors and three
Non-executive Directors Martin Hughes was
appeinted as Company Secretary In March
2011

Under the former Board corporate governance
had been extremely poor and an immediate
acton of the new Board has been to improve
the policies and procedures relofing to the
goverance of the Company We aspire to
have the sort of govemance regime that
would be found in a well-run FTSE 250
company We have not completed this
pragramme yet but significant steps have
been made

The Board has appointed new auditors
[Delaiftel, lawyers (SNR Dentonl, nominated
adviser and Brokers linvested and
remunerahon advisers (PwCl and now has a
team of cdwisers thot are able to guide the
Board and the Company in the future

STRATEGY

Following the successful Refinancing the new
tearmn sel about ensuring the stabilisation of
the business after what had been a penod
of unprecedented disruption In the UK,

ihe transformation of the Company to one
that puis the satisfachion of its customers’
requirements at the heart of its business I1s
well underway Provision of locums o the
NHS through existing framework agreements
1s now the normal way of doing business
We believe that a quality-led offenng with
prcing transparency Is the best way of
butlding a long-term relafionship with the
NHS and we have invested in people,
processes and systems to promote that
transparency and to improve standards of
chnical compliance We are also investing in
software-led solutions - HCL Clanty - that will
deliver significant savings to our custorers
by providing visibllity and control to reduce
the cost of agency spend and ophimise the
substantive workforce, without compromising
the quality of care in Australia, opporunites
for organic growth exist, in parhcular, by the
further development of our nursing agency
business in the eastern states and the

iollout of the existing doctor focum business
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notionally Wiih the opponuniites available

in these two sectors we no longer see the
olled health professionals market as a pnonty
for expansion In Ausirala We can now
concentrate on executing the sfralegy to grow
the business both in the UK and Australia
and thereby generate acceplable financial
returns for our shareholders

The growth strategy will be underpinned by
strong operational and cost control During
the latter pan of 2011 we made some
important appoiniments of senior leaders

in UK business development, IT, falent and
pecple mancgement and the operating
dwisions in the UK and Australia Although
this has Increased costs it was essential to
bulld o widely skilled management team
that1s capable of delwveang the Company’s
stralegic visson Dunng 2012 we wili be rolling
out a new UK front-office IT system copable
of delvenng real-time accurate management
inforrmation and embedding operational ond
complance controls Once implemented, this
system known as lins, 1s expected to make a
meaningful impact on net margins

RESULTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2011

The revenue for the year was £227 Im

{2010 £1549ml and the adjusted loss from
conhinuing operations before tax was
I£129m 12010 £1638lm) The adjusted EBITDA,
before interest tax, depreciation amonisation,
highlighted lems and share-based charges or
credits increased from a loss of £{0 1im in 2010
to o profit of £5%m in 2011

The resulls for 2011 are analysed in full in

the Financial Review These include the first
full-year contnbution from our Australian
businesses acquired 1n 2010 The results of
the Homecare dmsion of Healthcare Australia
["HCA" have been shown as discontinued
operations Both 2011 and 2010 results
inctude tems that have been highlighted In
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income 1o show the underlying performance
of the business There 15 a restalement of

the 2010 balance sheet in relation to HCA
acquisiion accounting and an impaiment

of the UK Social Care business These are
accounting restaiements with no ongoing
cash impact

DIVIDENDS

Currently we are not able fo pay dividends
as we have negative disinbutable reserves
and our banking arrangements prohibit

us from declanng dividends until the
outstanding amount under the Syndicated

Facility Agreerment {'SFA” has been reduced
to less than £35m Despite this, the Board
recognises that dvidends should form pan
of shareholders’ investment retums and

the Board will be working towards the
reintraduciion of dvidend payments as soon
as possible

After faking legal and accounting advice, the
Board has concluded that the dividend paid
on 10 Januaiy 2011 was unlawful as the then
Board should have known at the date that
the dividend was approved and paid that the
Cormpany had insufficient reserves available
to make the payment The Board has been
unable as yet 1o come to a definite conclusion
about the legality of the dvdends paid on

1 Apnt and 25 June 2010 No action will be
taken fo recover unlawful dividends from
shareholders 1n general However, the Board
Is considenng whether remedies are available
agoins! former directors to recover unlawful
dwidends paid to them and damages for
breach of duty :n authonsing the relevant
dmdends

LIMGATION AND GOING CONCERN

The Boord has previously announced two
major claims against the Company one from
the former Executive Vice Chairmon and the
other from o number of shareholders These
are descnbed in Note 28 No provision has
been made in these accounts for future
legal costs or for any settlement or adverse
determination ansing fror the liigation
While the Board continues to adopt the
going concem bosis these claims and the
other matters descnbed in the going concem
section of the Financial Review, give nse 1o

a material uncertainty regarding the Group’s
ability to conhinue as a going concem

PEOPLE

2011 hos been o fremendously tubulent
year for our stoff There has been a complete
change in the Board and extensive change
In the semior leadership of the Group Matters
emerged dunng the course of Investigations
that were highly damaging to the Company
Dunng parts of the year the fulure of the
Company was In doubt and there were

long penods when It was not possible to
keep stoff well-informed because of the
uncertainty of negotiahons with third parhies
Al the same time 1n the UK there was also
a significant change n strategy towards
on-framework business Despite this, our
staff have overwhelrmingly stayed loyal to

the Company and it 1s prmanly through their
personal commitment and their engagement
with our customers that the Company has

relained its market position For this, and ther
unshinhing efferts especially dunng the penod
leading up to the Refinancing the Board and
shareholders owe them a substaniial debt of
grahtude

OUTLOOK

Alihough there will be many nsks and
challenges ahead, we believe that 2011

saw the nadir In the Company’s fortunes The
Group has been refinanced, a new leadership
has brought stabflity and 1s implementing
new growth strategies to generate long-

term improvements in financial perfomance
Despite ali the 1ssues of 2011, the Group
remains o leading business n healthcare
recrutment In both the UK and Australia

In the short-term we have the uncertainty
regarding ftwo major legal cases to deal

with Once legacy 1ssuas are addressed, the
Board and | are confident that the Group can
prosper

PETER SULUVAN
Chaiman

13 Apnl 2012
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Board’s strategy is

to grow the business
organically with a key
focus on cash generation
to pay down debt and,
In fiime, refumn cash to
shareholders.

Following the successful Refinancing of the
Compdny on 12 Sept 2011, we have begun
implementing the restructunng and
re-engineenng plans which we had previcusly
outlined to sharehoiders and which we believe
are key to generating sustainable growth

In the following paragraphs we descrbe

how that strategy 1s being implemented and
comment on rading in 2011 Although the
balance of operations in the UK and Australia
15 different there are common themes in the
execution of the overall strategy

UK

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT

A significant pad of the UK business’ supply to
the NHS had histoncally been outside of the
purchasing framework agreernents Increased
cost pressures on the NHS through 2010 ond
2011 resulted in a key, and n the Board's
view, imreversible shiff to locum procurement
through the frarmework struciures

Hawing odopted a fransparent frarnework
supply strategy across all dvisions, we believe
we have made considerable progress In
reposiioning HCL as a valued and trusted
supplier, aigned to our customers needs Qur
market leading managed solution HCL Clanty
which 1s descnbed in more defal on page

5 demonstrates our understanding of and
commiiment {o the Department of Health s
Quality, Innovation Productvity Preventon
{"GIPP strategy and which we believe will
enable HCL fo become a long-temn parner

to the NHS, pnvate healthcare groups and
local authonties in providing flexible workforce
solutions

We have restruciured our UK busmess
development funchon together with our
recrutment and comphance supply chan, to
mirror our chents demands and to facilitate
relationships at national regional and local
levels The implementation of cur new CRM
recruitment system is explained in more detail
below

ORGANIC GROWTH AND OPERATIONAL
IMPROVEMENT

Former management hod focused on an
acquisiiive strategy but had not operationally
integrated the acquired businesses so it 1s

not suipasing that the UK business has been
operating through a large number of brands
and legal entlies acquired over several years
This left the Company without a dear scalable
business model, too many brands fo support
fully overly complicated intemal processes
and a range of front office systems without

the capability to share customer relatonship
data From the customers viewpoint and in
parhicular for the NHS, the existence of multiple
brands has at times caused confusion over
our framework and direct sales offerngs

The current Board's strategy is to infegraie
those acquisiions and grow the business
organically with a key focus on cash
generation to pay down debt and in time,
retum cash to sharehotders

We have made excellent progress to date

« Our detailed plon to ratonalise the legal
entities and brands has the support of
the Govemment Pracurement Service
and other customers which will allow
us to novate commercial contracts and
reduce documentahion 1ssues surounding
compliance dunng the changeover penod

HCL wili become our key framewaork brand,
with categery sub-brands for example HCL
Nursing, HCL Doctors efc A disknct direct
sales brand will be supported In each of
the health and soclal care markets with
similar category sub-brands We expedt this
plan will be implemented by end Q2 2012

« The creation of a simplified legal enhty
struciure behind the brand rationalisation
will enable us to standardise our back
office processes and realise the resuliing
operational efficiencies We expect to
complete this reorganisation by the end of
2012 and would anficipate benefiing from
the operational eficencies in 2013

« We have completed a thorough review of
market-leading IT gpplicahions and have
selected lns an integrated front office
and complicnce package with o proven
frack record withun the healthcare staffing
secicr The first divisional implementation
Is scheduled to take place iIn Q2 2012
and the UK roll-out 15 expected to take
15 months Concurrently, the existing IT
infrastructure will be upgraded 1o meet
the demands of the UK business and io
ensure rabust business confinuty ccross
technology and telecoms

Operahonally we expect itns 1o improve the
efficency of the complhance and racruntment
processes and fo dnve productivity gains
through the shanng of both client and
candidate data across alt UK businesses
Post implementation we will iIntegrote the
apphication with our back office funchions
and managed sofution technology dunng
2013
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A number of changes have been made to the
struciure of the business that we believe will
result In operahonal efficiencies and increase
productivity through impraved communication
both internally and wath owr candidate and
chent populations

» The business development fundion has
been reorganised to creote accountability
both at a national pan-HCL level and at a
regional divisional level The team 1s also
now responsible for the implementation of
contracts and targeted on fulfilment rates
Further invesiment has been made in the
bid management team

+ The theaie and geneial nursing businesses
covenng England previously In separate
locations in the South East and under
drfferent management haove been brought
together in our London office under one
management teom

 Certain national compliance roles previousty
supporting speciic dvisions are now
managed centrally fo provide cross-
discipline support regionally

« The alhed heolth discipknes have been
telocated from Loughton in Essex to our
london office and restructured to reflect

201

a similar ratio of resourcer to recruitment
consultant roles as operaied elsewhere in
the UK business

+ The UK finance funchion has clso been
relocated from Loughion to the London
office

These changes were implemented dunng Q4
2011 and the early part of 2012 and we have
been pleased with how the integrations have
proceeded

MANAGED SERVICES ~ HCL CLARITY

The Board believes that pressure to reduce
costs within the NHS will result in opportunities
for companies tha! are able to provide
solutions which manage effectively the
flexible workforce and result in significant

and measureable savings to NHS Trusis and
commissioning groups

We have recently entered Into a parinershup
and commercial agreement with Skillstream

a leading supplier of contingent workforce
management scftware, enabling us to
combine HCL's recruiiment process and
people experise with scitware already proven
to generate substantial and quantfiable cost-
savings within the NHS

The first half and second hall performance in the UK 1s as follows

Skilistream’s software, which 1s well-
established and operational with a high
quality blue chip customer base throughout
the pavate sector iwww skillsiream co ukl

has been custormised to meet the specrfic
reguirements of the NHS including framework
pnang mainces chnical govemance and
compliance demands and ts VAT regime The
software 1s fully functional in several NHS Trusts
where it has generated significant savings very
quickly following implementation

HCL Clanty is o managed service powered by
Skillstream enabling significant cost savings
by providing wisibility and control to reduce
the cost of ogency spend and optimise the
substantive workforce without compromising
the quality of care

The early reaction from clents fo this ground
breaking propostion within the healthcare
sector has been encouraging and we look
forward to updating shareholders on our
progress in selling this solution later In the year

Revenue Gioss profit

H1 H2 Year H1 H2 Year

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Locum Allied Health Professionals lrestated) ! 158 148 306 45 37 82
Locum doctors 137 118 255 21 16 37
Locum nursing frestated)! 151 101 252 42 27 69
Locum qualfied social workers 142 123 265 25 21 46
Permanent plocements 14 12 26 14 12 26
Inter-segment o2 01 01)
Total 600 503 1103 147 113 260
Adminisiration expenses lexcluding depreciation and share-based payments credits) {145) 143 128 8l
Ad\usted EBITDA 0z 390 {28

N1 H1 restated for the move of theatre nurses fram Allled Health Prafesswonals to the nurses division

As noted above the new Board has decided
lo pursue a different sirategy o that followed
by previous management in the Healthcare
market and to re-engineer the business to
focus its supply to the NHS through framework
contracts

Framework suppliers eam lower gross
margins but benefit from significantly
Increased volume opportunities We

will continue to matntain a discreet and
transporent brand for non-framework business
which will continue to provide flexible supply

on demand to the NHS as required and to a
range of prvale sedlor organisations

Although 2011 was an uncertain penod

for the Company, the macro issues facng
our chents did not materially change A
combination of pressures within the NHS not
only cost-related but also ongoing concems
about the quality of care, are driving NHS
sirategies such as QIPP creating opportunities
for suppliers capable of providing value-
for-money solutions In the area of flexible
workforce management We believe thal we

have a market-leading offenng in this space

Al a gross margin level, the short-term
impact of this strategy has required the
business to accept generaliy lower morgins
whilst continuing fo build the crtical mass
of contractually compliani supply required
for the business to benefit from the volume
opportunities availlable

Allied Health Professionals - representing
31 5% of UK's continuing gross profitin 2011
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Companng H2 2011 1o H1 2011 the move
of the NHS business onto framework supply
resulted in a reduction in gross margin i
25 0% from 28 5% with revenues slipping by
6% over the same penod

Locum doctors - representing 14 2% of UKs
continuing gross profit in 2011

As this business completed its fransition to
framework supply, morgins slipped from
153% In M1 to 13 6% in H2 Further we
expenenced unusually slow demand post
the September iotation and consequently
revenues reduced by 14% in the second half
compared 1o the first

Nursing - representing 26 5% of UK's
continuing gross profit in 2011

Dunng HZ 2011 we relocated the theatre
nursing business physically ond operationally
under the responsibility of the managing
director of the Lendon-based nursing division
Histoncally it had been managed within

the Alled Health Professionals division

and therefore for segmental reporting has
appeared there previously

The reduchon in gross profit in H2 compared
ta H1 is due 1o the move of the theatre
nursing business onto the framework dunng
the course of H2 2011

Qualified social workers — representing
17 7% of UKs continuing gross profit in 2011

As we reported in the 2011 Intenm Repon,
we reduced our consultant headcount in the
market for Qualified Sociol Workers FQSW
oround the half year which inewitably resulted
In a reduction in gross profit in H2 versus

H1 but did achieve the intended increase In
revenue per head In H2 compared to H1 and
has provided a solid platform for this business
on which to build

The market remains fight with local authonties
under budget pressute The gross margin
skpped to 17 0% in the second half from

17 6% m H1 due to margin pressure within
the managed vendor contracts and fewer off-
contract bookings avallable

Permanent recruitment - representing
10 0% of the UK's continuing gross profit in
2011

As previously reported, the headcount in this
area was reduced from 90 at 31 December
201010 30 at 30 June 2011 and the stucture
of the division has been altered fo create

greater focus by discipline and provide a sohd
foundation from which to grow As expecied
this did result in @ decrease In revenue (from
£14mn H1 fo £1 2m 1n H2) but revenue per
heod increased

AUSTRALIA

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT

In Austraha HCA has been and remains a
well established and trusted panel (Tier onel
supplier fo the State Health Authonties and 1o
a number of private healthcare organisations
In Australia

As the largest national nursing agency ond
with a strong medical locum business In
New South Wales, I'NSW’) we believe that
we ore well-placed to grow the business
organically leveraging existing relafonships
and infrastructure As planned the national
expansion of the medical locum business
will begin in 2012 The development of

our managed soluton HCA Clanty closely
aligns our sewvice proposition with our clients’
objectves and prowides a platform for us to
strengthen further our supply relationships

ORGANIC GROWTH AND OPERATIONAL
IMPROVEMENT

As n the UK, HCA has grown through

a number of acquisiions and when the
business was brought into the Group In
December 2010 there were a number of
individual brands operating across Austratia
which were not linked to the HCA brand
Dunng 2017 we began the process of
consolidating the multiple brands and this
15 now complete with all operaling brands
having been modermsed and linked explicily
to HCA.

This has helped us make good progress in
improving the effectiveness of our cand:date
generation markefing and we have seen @
posifive upward trend 1n nurses and doctors
registenng with HCA as a result of our clearer
branding ond a move towards more online
marketing This has also led to o reduction in
the acquisiion cost per candidate

HCA’s nursing agency business has a
nationally recognised Registered Training
Orgenisation [RTO™ that has histoncally
provided accredited fraining and development
courses for nurses bosed in the state of South
Australia {"SA”) We believe that the ability

to provide nurses with access to Continued
Professional Development 'CPD raining
courses Is a key fadlor behind the success of
our nursing agency business In SA where it




1s the market leader with a significant market
share

Gwven that the biggest consiraint on growth
within the nursing agency market In Australio
15 the supply of nurses a key part of our
shrotegy 1s to extend the reach of the RTO
nationally as we believe that this will both
attract more nurses to MCA as well as
Improve our retenhon levels

We have rebranded the RTO as “Nurstd™ and
are presently reconfigunng all of our offices
across Australia io include a well-equipped
training reom with a view to every state ond
temtory being able io offer nurses access

to relevant CPD fraining courses and other
professional and development training

As well as demonstrabing a real commitrent
1o Investing in our nurses education, we are
also able to assure our clients that all nurses
waorking with HCA are fully compliant with all
professionally required and mandated core
cornpetencies

A key inmative within the nursing agency
business our locum doctor business and
the newly eslablished pemanent nurse
recrutment business has been to Increase
the supply of suitably quchfred nurses and
doctors into Australia from overseas

We have made good progress in this respect
ond have eslablished a team based In

the Group's London office responsible for
sourcing candidates wishing to relocate to
Australia on a permanent basis, along with
nurses looking to work In Ausiralia under the
working holiday viso programme

We have also established o small office in
AucKland, New Zedaland that 15 focused solely
on sourang candidates wishing to work in
Austraha on ¢ permanent agency of locum
basis

Ancther key part of our strategy for Australla is

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2011

to dave operating efficiencies in the business
through implementing standardised, nationat
processes where relevant, as well as using
technology where we believe costs can be
reduced or eliminated or where we belleve
that we may improve our competiiveness In
the market place

We are presently underaking a review

of business processes natienally within

the nursing agency and the results of this
analysis will assist in determining areas of
priority Similarly, we are planning fo invest in
upgrading the technology platforms in use
within the business and by partnenng with a
global technology company wall look to pass
some of the nsks of hardware and technolegy
obsolescence to a third party

MANAGED SERVICES - HCA CLARITY

As in the UK we helieve that the pressure

1o reduce agency stoffing costs amongst

our clients In both the public and pnvate
health sectors in Australia will result in growth
opportunities for those companies that are
able to provide proven solutions which result
in significant and measureable savings
whtlst at the same improving management
information

As Skillstream have an established physical
presence and several major clients in
Australio, we are confident in their ability

to support HCA's development as a
workforce solutions provider We were
therefore delighted to extend our parinership
agreement with them into Australia This was
formally ogreed in February 2012

We believe that HCA Clanty will be a market-
leading solutien in Ausiralia and dunng
2012 we will be refining our go-to-market
proposition and prontising those chents

with whom we believe we will generate the
best retum Eary reactions from clients to this
development have been very positive

2011
The first half and second half performance in Australla 1s as follows
H1l H2 Year
£m £m £m
Revenue 568 600 1168
Grass profit 116 121 237
Administration expenses lexcluding depreciation) 81 16 %) hsal
Adjusted EBITDA 35 52 87

Healthcare Locums ple
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Demand for nursing

staff exceeds our

ability to supply We
have rebranded HCA,
launched a new website
and increased online
marketing, leading

to record numbers of
candidate registrations
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The continuing bustness of HCA compnsed
the nursing agency Lost Minute Locums
LML the locum doctor business and the
permaneni recruitment division

We have invested in a number of senior
management appointiments In the sales, key
account management, markeling and HR
functions in order to provide the necessary
support platform to dnve future growth within
HCA

Dunng 2011, we successfully rebranded HCA,
including the launch of a new interactive HCA
website and sigrificantly increased online
marketing actvities The results of which

have been very encouraging with record
numbers of candidate regisirations across

all dvisions We will be further upgrading the
website dunng 2012 Dunng the year we also
Increased our onbine social media presence
on Facebook and Twitter and our weekly
followers have increased steadily

Our effons 1o focus on the proactive
management of national and key accounts
were rewarded with the renewal of a pane!
contract with ane of the siate-based public
health systerns for ¢ five year penod to end
June 2016 In addition we have also been
successful in secunng preferred supplier
status confracts within the aged care sector In
Ausiralic

In Navember, we achieved successful
recertification under ISO9001 for a further three
year penod

Nursing agency - representing 87% of HCA's
confinuing gross profit in 2011

Notwithstanding a challenging start to the
year In Queensland due to widespread
floods that caused a short-term down tum

in demand, market conditions nafionally
remained posifive dunng the year within both
the public and pnvate heclth sectors

Demand for nursing staff in Australia presently
exceeds our ability to supply and we have
therefore been investing in our marketing
achivities to atfract more nurses o register and
work with HCA and developing innovative
woys 10 ncrease the level of nurse produciwty
once registered with HCA

Whilst the nurse supply shortage s a nalional
Issue we have been focusing our effors on the
eastem seaboeard states of Queensland QLD
NSW and Victona ™MICT where the HCA nursing
agency 1s underweight relative to the overall
market opportunity In this part of Austratia

As the largest nursing agency in Australia
and the only company with @ truly national
network, we believe that we are able lo

offer our nurses the best choice of wok
opportiunities whether in the public or privale
sectors in the large metropolitan centres
regional cities or In remote and rural Austraha
Furthemnore, we are the only nursing agency
to have its own RTO Branded as Nurskd,

we are able o ensure that all of our nurses
meet mandatory competency requirements
as well as supporting our nurses with CPD
training required as port of therr professional
registration regquirements

Nurskd has been very successful in attracting
nurses histoncally In 54 and consequently
we took the deasion in H2 2011 to

expand nationally and the early signs are
encouraging

Dunng 2011, we continued 1o make progress
In increasing our penetration of the aged care
nussing sector, which remains a key part of
our growth sirategy

Locum doctors - representing 11% of HCAs
continuing gross profit in 2011

The market for the provision of locumn

doctors remains posifive and a key growth
oppostunity for LML 15 1o secure s standing

as an approved panel supplier In all states
and terntonies In this regard, fowards the end
of the year we commenced plans to broaden
the geographic reach of the business
througheout Austraha through the appeintment
of recruitment consultants in Western Australia,
WAL, SA, VIC and QLD

Having been acquired in August 2010, the
operattonal and financial Imegrahion of LML
infe HCA was completed dunng 2011 and
dunng the second half we made progress in
leveraging the extensive client list within the
nursing agency to develop new clients for
LML

The physical colocation of LML within the
Sydney office of HCA took place ¢f the end of
the first quarter of 2012

Permanent recruitment — reprasenting 2% of
HCA's continuing gross profit in 2011

Dunng 2011 we launched o permanent
recruiiment division In Australia, focusing
inthally on the recruitment of doctors ond
nurses The permanent nurse recruitment
business was branded Nurse Jobs Australig
{"NJAT whilst the doctor recruitment business
was brended LML Medical Recruitment



NJA tfraded in ine with our plans in 2011
and has had a posthive siart to 2012

However after a difficuli few months trading
for LML Medical Recruitment and recognising
the significant growth opportunities within the
permanent recruitment of nurses, we took
the decision dunng Q4 to withdraw from the
doctors business and concentrate our efforts
on building NJA

The Ausiralion business works closely with
the UK business, to ensure that we are able
to properly utlise the candidate pipeline of
nurses In the UK and Europe wishing 1o work
in Austrahia, ether on g permanent basis or
also under the working haliday visa scheme

Dunng 2011 we also opened a New
Zealand resourcing office aimed at foking
advantage on the trans-Tasman agreement
and seurcing doctors and nurses wishing fo
work In Australa on a locum or permanent
basis

PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT ACROSS THE
GROUP

There are many highly talented and
committed indwduals throughout the Group
However little Investment has been made
historically 'n people development and we
believe that the susiainable growth stralegy
for both the UK ond Austrolian businesses
needs to be undeminned by a Group people
plan The key elements of this plan are to

« Develop a set of HCL corporate values -
which will underpin what we need to do
to build a strong brend ond differentiate
ourselves in the market These values
will shape our culiure defining the
charactenstics and behaviours that guide
the way we work with our customers
our colleagues our suppliers and other
stakeholders These behaviours will
show us what we need to do to build
a sustainable culiure that will help us
achieve cur business goals and make
HCL o great place to work

* Builld a high performance workplace
- where employees are clear on what
they are expected to deliver and have
development plans to develop key
skills and competencles to deliver high
perormance

+ Create a developrment culture ~ where
employees have the opportunity to
develop themselves and therr careers as
they grow the HCL bustness

Annuo! Report and Financial Statements 2011

+ Build employee engagement ~ which
in turn will deliver an outstanding and
consistent customer expenence

+ Enhance our change managemeni
agility - to reflect our customers’ needs
for solutions that deliver quality, cost
efficiency and transparency the changing
healthcare environment and the
reguirement for scarce skills

These five comerstones of our people
plan will be underpinned by operational
excellence in our core people processes
to suppor the business as 1 restruciures,
transforms and develops propositions to
meet gur customer needs

CURRENT TRADING

The key strategic change of direchion in our
supply provistan to the NHS has inevitably
impacted margins and gross profit levels in
the shor-term but was an essential precursor
io the Company being able to access the
significant volumes available as a frusted
framework partner

Despite the significant leve! of change that
the business and our people have been
asked lo digest, our trading 0 the UK has
remained stable from November through to
the end of Q1 2012

In Austialia the year 1s stating well

Notwithstanding the uncertainty that our
clients are expenencing we believe we will
begin fo see the beneiits of our skrotegic and
operctional changes as 2012 develops

Healthcare Locums plc
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Adjusted EBITDA, INTRODUCTION

The Financial Statements for the year ended

the flgure that the 31 December 2010 were prepared on a
. gotng concem basis, which depended on o
Board believes best successful refinancing following the discovery
i of significant accounting emors and revisions
IHUSTrGteS the U ndem/l ng to pnor penod's results as accounting policies
performance of the were changed
busi ness, Increased to The Refcl’nc:cmg [:I)éoposed by Ithe imrd
X recerved shareholder approval at the meeting
a pr ofit of £59m (2010 on 12 Septernber 2011 Detailed disclosures
I 0SS 'EO 1 m) relating to the Refinancing are given in Nole 25

The 2011 FAnancial Statements have also been
prepared on o gaing concem basis, but the
Board Is drawing aftention to some matenal
unceranhes, details of which are set out below
and 1n Note 28

2010 figures in this financial Review are based
on the restated 2010 results, os discussed

in more detaill in Note 1 to the Anancial
Siatemenits

GOING CONCERN

The Group s businass actvities, together with
factors likely to affect #s future development,
performance cnd position are sel out In the
Operationcl Review The financlal position
and bomowing facliies are descnbed in this
financial Review In addihion Note 28 to the
financial statfements descnbes the Group's
contingent liabihies

The Group s budget for the year ending

31 December 2012 and iis forecast for the
following penod indicate thal the Group plans
to operaie within iis cumeni bank facilihes and
covenants albeit wath @ nancw margin for
contingencies The plans reflect a number of
judgements made by the Directors in respect of
the nsks and uncertainties on descnbed in the
disclosure of Pncipal Risks and Uncenainties
and in respect of the following matenal
uncertainfies

+ These plans reflect the Board's growth
focused strategy which 1s descnbed in the
Chalmnan's Statement and Operational
Review and agssume significant increases
in revenues pancipally from gains in market
share

* Dunng the going concem review penod a
number of smportant framework agreements
and contracts in both the UK and Ausiralia
are fo be renewed While the Board has
no information that the Group's position in
relation to these frameworks and contracts
will not confinue there 1s a nsk that if a
combination of contracts were not renewed

10

then the budgeted revenue would not be
achieved

» The Board has considered several
reasoncbly possible scenanos with lower
levels of revenue or margin than induded
in the budgets and forecasts, some of
which would require management achion to
contain cosis in order for the Group 1o keep
within existing banking covenanis

Whilst the Directors consider thesr planned
miigating actions to be achievable and
balanced responses to the matters outlined
above, these arcumstances crecte matenal
uncetainties over future frading and cash
flows

In addinon the Group I1s parly fo legal action
descnbed in Note 28 The forecasts assume no
lability and no cash cutflows 1n respect of Kate
Bleasdale lother than a reasonable estimate of
the costs of defending this action) and the US
lihgation dunng the review penod

Members of the Board meet reguiary with the
Group s banks and loan providers who receive
regular information on the progress of the
Group, ts plans and forecosts and therr nsks
The Group's bankers and loan providers hove
expressed therr support for the new Board and
the Group's plons

The Directors have concluded that the
combinchion of these circumstances represents
matenal uncerainty that casts significant

doubt upon the Company’s abilly fo confinue
as a going concem and that, therefore, the
Company may be unable to realise 1i1s assets
ond discharge s hobilies i the nomal
course of business The financiol statemenis do
not incude the adjustments that would result

if the Company and the Group were unable

1o continue as a going concem Neverhelass,
after making enquines and considering the
uncerainties descnbed above, as well as

the miigating actions available to them and
the expression of suppor from the Group s
bankers, the Directors have a reasonable
expedtation that the Cormpany will have
access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable fulure
For these reasons, they continue to adopt the
going concem basis of accounting in prepanng
the annual Financial Stotements

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

Dunng the preparation of the Consolidated
Finanaial Staternents for the year ended 31
December 2011, it becarne apparent hat the
recogniton of a defered tox liabilty of £9 6m
{4315 ¥m converted at rates ruling on the
acquisition dates! on trademarks and other
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infangible assets of £31 8m {A350 1mil recagrused on the acquisihon of LML and HCA had been
omitted As a result a restatement 15 required In the acquisition balance sheels to recognise this
liability on the dates of acquisition of 1 August 2010 and 20 December 2010 respeciively, with
goodwill increasing by £9 6m ot the date of acquisition

Also an escrow amount of £08m (A1 2m} from a pnor acquisihon by HCA had been omitted and
has also been included in the restated receivables on the acquisihion balance sheet, with goodwill

reducing by £08m at the date of acquisiiion

In addihon when comgleting the accounts for the consolidated Australian tax group for the

tax year 1o June 2011 1t was determined that the deferred tax osset estmate in the acguisition
balance sheet was understaled by £1 1m A% 1 7m! and the estimate in the acquisiion balance
sheet has been comecled, with goodwill increasing by £1 1m at the date of acguisition

A summary of the resialement entnes is as follows

Acquisltion 31 December

date Forex M0

Abm £m £m £m

Goodwill 156 99 03 102
Recevobles 12 08 - 08
Deferred tax asset na Hm) - 0w
Deferred tax habilty nsi 96 03l {99

Also dunng the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 a clencai error in the 2010 colculation of the value in use of the UK Social Care
dwision was discovered which had the emor not occumed would have meent the impaiment of
the goodwill and assets ossociated with that division would have increased by £7 1m A pnor
year adusiment has been booked to correct this misstatement, reducing goodwill by £5 4m,
other intanglble assets by £14m tangible fixed assets by £03m, deferred tax hability by £04m
and retained eamings at 31 December 2010 by £6 7m

The combined impact of the Social Care prior year adiusiments on the loss from operations and
loss for the yeor ended 31 December 2010 was as follows

Loss from Loss for the

operatons yea!

£m £m

As seported for the year ended 31 December 2010 (5211 (54 4)
Goodwill and asset impamment of Social Care division 71 71
Deferred tox - 04
As resialed for the year ended 31 Dacember 2010 159 2) 611

The combined impact of the above pror vear adjustments on the relevant iigures in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at 31 December 2010 was as follows

As previously impact of
teponed restatements Rastared
£m £m £m
Goodwill 14 48 462
Other infangible assets 770 na 756
Property, plont and equipment 28 03 25
Trade and other recewvables 363 08 KYR
Deferred tax 137 (106 43
Impact of restatements {67
Profit and loss for the year 154 4 {67 6111
Profit and loss reserve {5451 67 612

The Group presents adjusied eamings per share in Note 12 The calculotion for the year ended

31 December 2010 was missiated as detarlled in that note

The acquisttion note for 2010 acquisitions has been resiated in Note 17

N
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CRITICAL ACCOQUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and judgements regarding future evenis Estrmates and
[udgements are regulady evaluated based on histonicol expenence and other factors including
expeciations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the arcumstances In the
future actual expenence may differ from those estimates and judgements

The cntical accounting estimates and judgemenis are set out in more detail In Note 3w

RESULTS SUMMARY

The summarised resulis for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out 1n the table

below The results of continuing operations in 2011 benefit significantly from the inclusion for

a full year of the Ausiralion businesses acquired in 2010 The Board beheves the figure that
best lustrates the underying performance of the business 1s eamings before depreciation,
amoartisation, interest and fox and before highlighted operating costs and share-based charges
or credits This figure defined below as adjusted EBITDA, mncreased to £5 9m for the year ended
31 December 2011 compared with @ loss of £0 1min 2010

In addition to the pnor year adjusiments descnbed above the 2010 results in the table below
have been restated to reflect the reclassification of the resulls of HCA's Homecare dmwision,
disposed of In July 2011, into the ine *Profit from disconhinued operations net of tax®

Continuing operations

201)  Restated'2010

£m £m
Revenue 2271 1549
Cost of sales {177.4) maa
Gross profit 497 407
Gross profit % 219% 263%
Administiative expenses {43 8} 40 8
Ad|usted EBITDA 59 01
Depreciation of propery, plant and equipment on (03]
Amorisation of Intangible assets (6 4) n7
Share scheme credits / icharges! 05 &
Adjusted loss from operations fin 304
Highhghted items
Goodwill impairment - 51 4)
Net exceptional operating expenses 9 6) (48
Loss from operations (10.7) 592
finance expense netl {22) 44
loss before tax (129 (636l
Taxahon 26 25
Loss after tax from continuing operations {103} 611
Profit from discontinued operations net of fax 14 -
Loss for the year {8 9} 61 1)
Bosic loss per share from continuing operations (3.1)p (56 2Ip
Adjusted basic loss per share from continuing operations (37)p I51lp

N1 2010 figures have been restated for the revised impoirment of goodwill ond other assets In the UK Social Core
division INote 11 In addition the amounis crediled or charged In the various headings for the operations of the
Homecore diviston have been moved to profit for the yeor from discontinued operations - a net £nil result - os the
Homecare diviston was sold in 2011 INote 11} Ecmings per share coleulations have baen comected for the year
ended 31 Dacember 2010 os disclosed in more detall in Note 12

Depreaigtion amortisation and share scherne credits (2010 charges! were £7 0m (2010 £29mi
The majonty of the increose represents amortisation of the infangtble assets of HCA for a full
year in 2011, offset by a share-based payment scheme credit due io the forfeliure of a large
number of options held by former Oirectors

12
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Highlighted tems In 2011 prmonly relate to the restructunng of the business the investgation
into and restaterment of accounting imegulanties, and a net charge for adjustments io deferred
consideration on acquisittons in 2010 the lughlighted itlems were mainly the impaiment of
goodwill property plont and equipment and infangible assets, acquisition related costs and
restructunng costs ofiset by a gain on foir value changes in contingent considerahion on an
acquisiion The 2011 charge for the adjustments 1o defemed consideration on acqulsitions and
the 2010 credit on far valve changes in contingent consideration on an acquisition contained
broadly matching, but opposite amounts which had 1o be booked in separate years as an

agreernent was signed tn early January 2011 which gave nse to the charge in 2011

NET EXCEPTIONAL OPERATING EXPENSES
Net excephonal operating expenses compnse

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
£m £m
Excephonal operating income/{expense)
Reorganisation and refinanang costs
Restructunng costs (18} {031
Refinancng addhional costs {0.7) -
Australig — inlegrafion costs {06) 0 4)
Onerous leases {o7) o7
(38) 4
{Loss) / gain on fair value changes In contingent and deferred
consideration {Note 17) (29) 42
Investigation and resolution of occounting egulonhies (29) -
Acquisiton related transaction costs (Note 17 - (28l
Costs related to advice conceming possible disposal of business - 14
Imparment of property, plant and equipment INote 16) - 7
Impairment of other intangible assets INate 15) - R
Net exceptional operating expenses {9 6} {4 8)

FINANCE EXPENSE INET)

In 2011 the net finance expense was £2 2m 2010 £44ml As a result of the Refinanang dunng

the year a number of large credits and debits passed through finance Income and finance

expense os the lables below illustrate

Finance income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
201 2010
£m £m
Exceptional finance income

Refinancing — difference between fair value of shares 1ssued to
Ares Lux ond the mezzanine finance retired (Noie 25!d) 99 -
Fair value adjustment on Zero Coupon Loan Note [Note 251!l 77 -
Bank debt waived (Note 2501 59 -
Accrued inferest payable watten off in Refinancing Note 2560 06 -
241 -
Interest received on bank deposiis o -
Foreign exchange gomns 02 15
Gain on far value changes In denvative financial instruments 01 05
245 20

Heglthcare Locums plc
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Finance expense

Year ended 31 Year ended
Decernber 31 December

2011 2010
£m £m

Exceptional finance expense
Bank fees relaling to debt repaid wniten off (Note 25(g) 44 -
Professional fees of banks' adwisers (Note 25thil 30 -
Advisers fees on the Refinancing Note 25ihi 2.5 -
Warrani option wntten off Ncte 21) 2.6 -
Forex on Refinancing 03 -
Arrangement fee on ACE Limited facility Note 251bliivi) 02 -
130 -
Bank loons and overdrafis 124 34
Amorsation of fees 1.0 03
Loss on fair value changes in denvative financial iInstruments - 25
Finance lease interest 02 02
Imputed interest on Zero Coupon Loan Notes INote 24) 01 -
26.7 64

The Group has recognised exceptional finance income of £9 9m on the debt for equity swap
with Ares Lux as disclosed in Note 25(d), £7 7m on the conversion of debt into Zero Coupon
Loan Notes as reported in Note 25{el, £59m on bank debt waived as reported in Note 250

ond £06m of accrued inlerest wawved by the banks Within finance expense the Group has
recognised £5 5m of fees relating to the Refinancing and £4 4m of unamortised debt fees
wrtten off when debt was repaid early as part of the Refinancing Ignonng these exceptional
amounts and the movernents on denvahves the underlying expense was £137m {2010 £3 9mi
reflecting the cost of ownership of HCA for a full year

SEGMENTAL ANALYS!S
2011 2011 2010 2010
Revenue Gross profit Revenue Gioss profit
£m £m £m £m
UK
Llocum doctors 255 a7 337 63
Locumn qualified social workers 265 46 356 68
Locum Allied Health Professionals
{restated! 306 82 470 147
Locum nursing frestated) 252 69 263 70
Permanent placements 26 26 39 39
Inter-segment {0.1) - 06} 4
Total UK 1103 260 1459 383
Auystrclia 1168 237 90 24
Conlinuing operations 2271 497 1549 407
Operating expenses before highhighted items
UK and comorate (29 8) 410
Australia (21 0) 27
Goodwill impaiment - {514
Nel excephional operating expenses (9 6) 48
Loss from operations 107 {592

Dunng 2811, placement of theatre nurses which was previously included within allled health professionals was moved
to the nursing segment Prior year segmental information has been restoted to reflect the cunent reporting structure

UK revenues and gross profits fell significantly in 2011 reflecting, inter alig, the recrganisaion of
the UK business and the change in stiategy towards providing more locums through framework
ogreemenis with lower margins but potentially much greater volumes UK overheads were cut
accordingly

14
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The table below separates the H1 and H2 performance
Continuing operahons

Ry, H220017
£m £m
Revenue 116.8 1103
Cost of sales {90 5} 186 9
Gross profit 263 234
Gross profit 3 225% 21 2%
Administrative expenses 122 6} 2121
Adusted EBITDA 37 22
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {05) 08l
Amortisahon of intangible assels {3.1) {33
Share scheme credits 05 -
Adjusted profit / lloss) from operations 0.6 n7
Highlighted items
Nef excephional operating expenses (7 4) 22
Loss from operations (68) 39
Finance lexpensel / income inel) 121) 99
{Lossl / profit before tax {18.9) 60
Taxahon 12 14
[Lossl / profil after tax from continuing operations hz7) 74
Profit from discontinued operatign, net of tax 10 04
Loss for the year (167) 78

1l Unaudited figures for H1 are taken from the Inteim Results for the 6 months to June 2011 adjusted for

lo) depreciation and amoemsation adjusted for the impact of impaiing the assess of the Social Core business In the
United Kingdom as @ pror year adjusiment as disclosed in more detall in Note 1

B analysis of exceptional costs and income reckassified 1o be consistent with the clossification in these financial
Statements

Ict the results of the discontinued operction have been ad|usted to cecse depreciating ossets at the time 31 March
2011 the business was classified as held for disposal.

121 Full year results less unaudited ond restated H1
The first holf and second holf performance 1s discussed in the Operational Review

TAXATION

The tax benefit on continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2011 1s a credit of
£26m (2010 £2 5m) compnsing pros year UK corporation tax credit of £08m, a cunrent year
overseas tax credit of £04m and a deferred tox credit of £1 4m

ACQUISITIONS

There were no acquistions dunng the year ended 31 December 2011 Details of the movements
on contingent and deferred conslderation amounts are given in Note 17 and Note 22

DISPOSAL

On 18 July 2011 the Company announced that the wholly owned Australian subsidiary,
Healthcare Austialia Holdings Pty Ltd had completed the sale of its Homecare division The
gross consideration was A$34m I£22 7m) The net proceeds after costs, ad|usiments relating
to the net assets sold, and accounting for the cash within the Homecare dwision af the time of
disposal was 4330 5m {£20 3ml which was used fo repay debt

In the year ended 31 December 2010 based on unaudited management accounts the
Homecare division generoted a tumaver of A$44 7m (£28 1m of which £2 3m was whilst a
member of the Group! and a gross profit of A$122Zm {£7 6m of which £06m was whilst a
member of the Group!

Healihcare Locums plc
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The disposal generated a gam of £0 7m after expenses (Note 111 In colculahing this gain
account was taken of the fact that the Homecare dvision was held for resale from 31 March
2011 and so for Group reporting purposes depreciotion of fixed assefs ceased on that dale
The results of the Hormecore division to the date of disposal together with the profit on disposal,
have been reporied in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income i the line “Profit
for the year from discontinued operations, net of t1ax™ The pror year figures have been restated
to show the Homecare division as discontinued, but the net profit after tax n the short perlod of
ownership In the yeor ended 31 December 2010 was Enil

GOODWILL
Goodwill may be analysed s follows
Restated

31 Decermnbet Prior Year 31 December Foreign 31 December
2000 Adjustments 2010 Transfers Disposals Exchange 2011
£m £m £€m £m £m £m £m
Social Care 54 {54 - - - - -
Allied Heatth Professioncls 107 - 107 (2.7 - - 80
Nuising 88 - 88 27 - - 115
Austrahc 165 102 26.7 - {6 5) 01 203
41 4 48 462 - (6 5} ot 398

As o result of the fransfer of the theatre nurses operations from the Alhed Health Professionals
segment fo the nursing segment £2 7m of associated goodwill was transferred between these
segments dunng 2011

The Group tests goodwill for possible iImpairment annually or on other occasions if there are
indicahions of o possible Impaiment The recoverable amounts have been determined from
value 1n use calculations based on cosh flow projections frorm formally approved budgets and
forecasts for 2012 2013 ond 2014 and estimaies for subsequent years More detalls of the
assumptions are given In Note 14

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As noted in the cntical accounting estmates and judgements in Note 3wl the measurement
and subsequent valuation of intangible assets requires management to make significont
estimates in defemmining fair values Mcnagement make thase estimates for matenal
acguistions with the assistance of independent expert valuers

The other intangible assets are analysed as follows

Restgled

201 2010

Em £m

Brands and trademarks 263 330
Custorner relationships 180 279
Candidale database 8.8 132
Non-compete agreements 0.4 05
Computer software 04 10
53¢ 756

The main reasons for the decrease were the £15 9m of intangible assets of the Homecare
dmsion which were sold with that business in July 2011, and £6 4m of amertisation charged
during the year
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DIVIDENDS
Dividends are discussed in the Charrman’s Staternent and in Note 13
CASH FLOW
The following table reconciles the loss for the year 1o the cash flow from operaling activities
2011 2010
£m £m
Loss for the year (8 9) 1611)
Adustments
Discontinued operations (1 4) -
Loss/lgan) on fair value changes in contingent consideration 29 42l
Deprecicton amorisation and impaiment 75 571
Foreign exchange gain on operaling activity {0 4} -
Finance expenses (netl 22 44
Share-based payments (creditsl / charges {0 5) 06
Coiporation tax expense {2.6) (25
Cash flows from operating actvities before changes In working
capital and provisions (v2) 57
Change in working capiial and prowisions 1.0 93
Cash generated from operations before tax {02) 36
Corporation tax paid {2 5) 40
Cash flow from operciing aciivities {27) 04

Cash flows from operating octiviies include cash spend on exceptional operating costs of
£6 0m 12010 £49m) Adding back those exceptional cash spends would make the cash flow
from operating activities before exceptional cash outflows £3 3m positive (2010 £4 5m posifivel

Cash flows from operating investing and financing are analysed os

2011 2010
£m £m
Cash flow from operating actvihies {27 {0 4}
Inveshing activilies
Interest received o1 15
Acquisihons of subsidianes [net of cash acquired) - 189 8}
Disposai of property, plont and equipment 0.4 -
Disposal of Homecare division 203 -
Deferred and contingent consideration paid {2.6) -
Acquisiion of langible and intangible assets and finance
lease payments (1 6} {i 8
Net cash used in Investng adivihes 16.6 9gn
Financing activities
tssue of Ordinary Shares 562 N7
New loons ocquired 1S 1405
Loans repaid (59 0} 249
Interest and similar expenses paid 2 124
Refinanang professional fees (5 5) -
Dmdends (21} 136
Net cash lusedl/generated from financang achivities {101} 1113
Effect of exchonge rote movements 01) 28
Movement in cash and cash equivalenis 37 180

Healthcare Locums plc
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Net debt has reduced to
£260m from £1044m in

2010.
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BORROWINGS

Net borrowings at 31 December 2011 were £26 0m (2010 £104 4m)
Borowings ai 31 Decernber are analysed in Notes 20 and 21 Net debt 1s analysed as follows

20 2010
£m £m

Loans - pancipal amounts
Steding denorminated - 815
Australian Doltar denominated 395 430
Zero Coupon loan Notes due 2021 {pnncipat amount £102m) 26 -
Unamortised loan fees (23) (76
Bank overdraft - 01
Fair value of wamants - (z9
Obiigations under finance leases 04 09
40 2 1150
Cash and cash equivalents (14 2) 106l
Net debt 260 1044

In the Financial Statements af 31 December 2010 all debt was treated as current debi s the
Boaid believed 1t wos probable that at that date the Group was in default under the Senior
Focalites Agreement {"SFA™ and the Mezzanine Facility Agreement ["MFA™ with 1its lenders The
lenders never took any achion based on that probable default Foliowing the Refinancing long-
termn debt 1s now classified within non-current abilitres

The pnncipal reasons for the reduction In borowings dunng the year were the disposal of the
Homecare division and the Refinancing which 1s explained in detail iIn Note 25 A summary of
the net debf reduction from the Refinancing is as follows

2011

£m
Net proceeds of the Plaang ofter fees

Proceeds used to repay bank debt 350
Proceeds banked Inet of fees sefited by Faifax as Nomad) 172
Net proceeds of the Open Offer banked 09
Debt refired in debi for equity swap with Ares Luxembourg Sarl 224
Debt refired 1In exchange for Zero Coupon Loan Nole 102
Zero Coupon Loan Nole 1ssued at farr value {2.5)
Wawver of bonk debt 59
Fair value of wamants cancelled (2 6)
Capitalised bonk fees on old faciliies wntten off (4 4)
Costs and commussions poid (8 5}
736

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The key performance indicators monitored by management in weekly sales meefings dunng
2011 were

* revenue and
* gIoss Margin

In future, management will also monitor converston ratio, being the percentage of gross margin
refained in the business after atmbutable operating costs are charged and days sales outstanding
which is a measure of the eficiency of the business n converting revenue info cash

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board's assessment of the pnncipal nsks and uncerainties facing the business Is set ot In
Pnncipal Risks and Uncertamties

The attention of shareholders 1s also drawn 1o the contingent liabiliies Note 28
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Healthcare Locums plc

The Board 15 developing impioved processes to identify and manage nsk. A listing of principal nsks and uncertainties was published in the 2010

Annual Report in August 2011

Risks are reviewed formally by the whole Board dunng the annual budgeting cycle Day-to-day management of nsk is the responsibility of the
executive Directors The effectiveness of nsk management will be moritored by the Board

The pancipal nsks and uncerainties which are ¢urrently judged to have the lorgest potental impacs on the Group s financial performeonce and

reputational standing are descnbed below

RISK

MITIGATION

Relationships with key customers

The Group has a number of key customers particularly the NHS in
the UK and the vanous state and termtory health systems in Australio
Customner relations and complhance with the terms of coniracts are
important as the absence of these activities could result in loss of
contracts thereby having an adverse effect on profits and cash flow

In 2011, 69% of UK revenue was from the NHS In the 2010 Accounts
the Group has disclosed some non-compliance issues against the
compliance requirements of relevant framewark agreements covenng
the supply of lecums to the NHS As a result, the NHS could reduce or
even ferminate the Group's ability to supply locums under one or alf of
the framework agreements

In prior penods a substantial proportion of supphes lo the NHS have
been outside established framework agreements This 1s not preferred
by the NHS and the Board changed s policy dunng 2011 so that
now as many locums as possible are supplied under the framework
ogreements

In Australio, the Group 1s an approved Panel supplier of agency

nurses to the pubhc health system in al! states and temtones These
contracts may be terminated immediately in the event of a breach or
by notice Several agreements with prvate health prowiders contain Key
Performance Indicator (KPI" targets with termination nghts if targets are
not met

The Board monitors relationships with key customers regulardy The
CEOQ 15 responsible for maintenance of gocd relationships with the
NHS suppeded by the divisional managing directors and the UK
business development team

A UK Head of Clnical Govemance and Compliance has been
appointed who Is responsible for lesting the Group s compliance
programme

The Group continues to supply to the NHS without resinction and
has posiively engaged with the NHS to improve the service which it
provides

The Group 15 responding to the needs of the NHS by offenng new
solutions such as HCL Clanty

The nahonal and key account management team together with state
and temtory based chent service managers monitor perdomnance
agamnst these contracts and regulary discuss any peromance 1ssues
with clients Contracts which iImpose targets on HCA will nomnally
include obligations on the chent such as a Iimitation on the number of
shifts that can be cancelled

Potenhal impacts from past events, including litigahon

The 2010 Annual Report included disclosure of several senous matters
Including accounting iregulanhes, polenhal ilegal dvidends, poor comporate
govemance and poteniial issues and o number of claims relating to the
supply of locums to the NHS As a result of these matters, o number of
disaplinary heanngs wese held with the ocutcome that certain previous
directors and other staff were erther disrrissed or chose to resign

Two significant legal cases have been brought against the Company
which are descnbed in Note 28 The first 1s a claim by Ms Bleasdale,
the former CEO, for £12m, where a heanng commenced on 10 Apnl
the second, a claim by certain US investors has been filed in the State
of New York and there is currently no scheduled heanng

The outcome of pending Iihgahon 1s unceriain ond an adverse wling
could result in @ material toss and a shortage of liquidity for the Group

In Decernber 2011 the Accountancy and Actuarial Disaplinary Board
FAADBY announced an investigation info the condud of cedain former
Direclors

These histoncal 1ssues may continue to have an adverse effect on

the Group s reputction and until the histoncal tssues are resolved
customers may be reluctant to work with the Group and potential new
investors may be reluciani to invest

The Board continues to devote considerable time to addressing
impacts from past events and receives regular reporis from
management and where necessary extemal legal counsel

The Board made provision in the 2010 financial statements for the
probable setlement of a number of clams in respect of locums supply
in the UK and continues to work through the open mctters

The Board reviews all matendl lihgation in detall and takes adwvice from
the Group’s legal advisers

The Board's policy 1s only to take or defend legal action when it is
highly confident of its position

The Group s policy 1s to cooperate with all regulators including the
AADB Inveshgation

The CEO and senior operational monagement are actively engaged
with cusiomers to ensure histoncal 1ssues are set In context

The Board 1s actively implemeniing higher standards of corparate
gavemance
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RISK

MITIGATION

Availability of finance

The Group ts dependent on the continuing avallability of finance

from its banks The Group has given undertakings including financicl
covenants, to which 1t must adhere Should it fail to meet these
underakings, the banks could demand early repayments of their loans

The Board regularly monitors cument and forecast compliance with its
obligations 1o the banks Senior execuhves meet representatives of
the banks on a regulor basis fo keep them appraised of the Group's
performance and future plans

IT Systems and security

The Group relies on computer systerns to deliver its services to
customers Any matenal disruphion to these systems wilt impact
revenues as lost me for locum supplies cannot be replaced

In the UK, a new system to manage the candidate database

and maich candidates 1o opportunities is being implemented
Implementation of any new systern cames certain nsks, including risk of
disruption

The Group s IT systems contain valuable information such as the
candidate database

The Board mihgates the nsks involved in [T systerns by the following
« review of personnel in the group’s IT funciion

« regular monitonng of progress on the iImplementation of new IT
systerns,

* reqular reviews of IT secunty sirategy and procedures and

« reviews of disaster recovery arangements at least annually

The Group ts taking steps fo enhance information secunty through the
implernentation of the new front-office system i the UK.

Compliance

The Group has obligations under centracts and, in some arcumstances,
under legislation to supply locums to specified standards of clincal
capability and to make checks before locums are placed In roles
Under some contracts especally those with the NHS the compliance
reguirements are extensive Failure to complete maintain and

refresh those checks could lead to legal, financic! end reputational
consequences These matters are not able {o be insured

In the UK, a Head of Clinical Compliance and Gavemance was
appownted in Octaber 2011, whe repotts to the CFO to ensure
independence from operational management

The Board receves monthly reports from the Head of Clinical
Compliance and Govemance and reviews the ongoing
implementation of corrective measures

Availability of suitably qualified focums

The Group has adopted a growth strategy and these growth plans
assume that it will be possible to retain and expand a poot of locums
of sufficient skills and 1n the nght lecations 1o meet the needs of
customers If sufficient locums are not avaitable then the Group's
revenue targets will not be met

The markefing departments in the UK and Austalio cre responsible
for campoigns to aftract new locums and retain existing locums
Divisional managing directors have KPIs related o the size of therr
locum poots and the proporhon that are working ot any one ime In
addion the Group cperates a number of schemes to promote the
retention of existing locums

Exchange rate

The Group s operatons are prnctpally located in UK and Australia and
local revenues and cosis are accounted for in Stering and Australian
Dollars The reporting currency of the Group 1s Sterling

The Sterling value of the Australian results depends on the exchange
rate used fo franslate the results of overseas operations

The Group's bank debt 1s denominated in Australian Dollars and the
Sterling value will fluctuate with the exchange rate to Steding

Foreign exchange nsk 1s descnbed more fully in Note 24

The Board considers exchange rate franslation to be a panciple ask
because of the relafve size of the overseas operations in the Group
resulls and the potential impact of flucuating exchange rates on Group
results

The borrower of the Group’s bank debt 1s an Australian substdiary
and the debt 15 denominated in Australian Dollars The debt s
approximately 50% of tolal Australian Dollar assets before debt
denominated in Australian Dollars

This bank debt gives ¢ parhal natural hedge against franslahon effects
on profits and net assets

Other business model risks

There are other inheren? nsks in the business mode! such as nsks
reloting to healthcare locum market demand recruitment and relention
of consultants, availability of locums and the associated taxation
legisiation nsks of self employed staff and VAT and the use of umbrella
comparues for the supply of agency workers

These nsks are managed on a day-fo-day basis by executive
management and are ¢ regular part of Board discusstons
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The biographies of the current Direclors are as follows

PETER SULLIVAN Chaimman fage 64)
Appointed 18 February 2011

Peter was previously the Chief Executive Officer of Standard Chartered Bank Limited s
operations in Hong Kong and Norh Asla and was responsible for the Bank’s daily business
and opergtions In those regions He |oined Standard Chartered 1in 1994 having previgusly
spent 14 years with Citibank 1n Sydney, Singapore, Chicage and London in a vanety of senior
posihons He currently holds a number of Directorships of international public companies
including JP Morgan Indwan Investment Trust plc Cenkos Secunties plc The Bankers |
Investment Trust plc, AXA CRIB registered in Hong Kong and Techtronic Indusines aiso
regisiered in Hong Kong

STEPHEN BURKE Chief Executive Officer lage 52)
Appointed 10 Moy 2011

Stephen has approximaiely 31 years expenence of working in intemational recruitment
companies since 2001 at a senior Board level Stephen was previously Managing Director of
Michael Page UK and a Director of Michael Page Intemational plc 'Michael Page™ He joinad
Michael Page in the eary 1980s shoitly ofter graduahon, and speni the following 24 years

with the group dunng which fime he worked across many of its business units as a dvisional
Managing Director, both in the UK and in Continental Europe He was responsible for significant
growth In each of the business units and was appointed o the Michael Page Intemational

Plc Board in 2001 as one of four Executive Directors He played @ ceniral role in the group s full
listing in 2001 and subsequent position In the FTSE 250 Stephen left Michael Page in 2005

to develop his career as a Non-executive Director on the boords of both listed and prvate
compantes He i1s a Non-executive Director of Matchiech Group pic, the AlM listed technical and
professional services recruitment company a post he has held since 2006

SUE BYGRAVE Chief Financial Officer loge 46!
Appointed 6 February 2012

Sue joined the Company from Biome Technologies plc the AlM listed bioplastics and RF

fradic frequencyl technology business, where she was Group Fincnce Director supporting an
acquisition stralegy whilst dnving orgamic growth Pnor to Biome Technologies, Sue was Group
Finance Drrector of VEGA Group plc, an oiganisation delivenng consulting, technology end
managed solutons Into aerospace, defence and govemment markets She was Jont Chay of
the Executive Management team that saw the repositioning of the business as an independent
specialist sevices company pnor fo iis acquisiion by Finmeccanica in 2008 Sue 1s an ACA
qualihed accountant and began her career with KPMG in audit

AUDIT COMMITTEE

David Henderson — Chairman
Peter Sullivan
Mark Andrews
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ANDREW MCRAE Maonaging Director of Heatthcare Ausiralia Holdings Pty Lid lage 53)
Appointed 10 May 2011

Andrew "Andy’l McRae was insturnental in overseeing the integration info HCL of HCA,
which was acquired in December 2010 He was formedy Managing Diredlor of intemational
operations ot Hays Plc and was later the Managing Director of the UK and Ireland Andyts o
Charered Accountant and has worked in the human capital sector for the last 18 years and
In the speaialist recruitment sector for the last eight years Andy has worked in beth public and
pivate company sectors

BILL JESSUP intenm Cheef Financial Officer lage 60)
Appointed 1 October 2011

William Bill") Jessup 1s o Charlered Accountant and has been the CFO of a number of quoted
companes on both a permanent and infenm basis Pror to his appointment io the Board he
was a director of Ricardo PLC He has previous expenence in the UK healthcare recruitment
sector as a Non-executive director of Blue Group International limited for five years belore it
was acqguired by the Company in 2006 Bill Jessup will resign from the Board following the
publication of this Annual Report

DAVID HENDERSON Non-executive Director lage 63)
Appointed 18 February 2011

After qualifying as a Chartered Accountant In 1974 David joined Morgan Grentell where he
worked for ten years in London and New York in the International Banking division In 1984 he
|oined Russell Reynolds, where he worked until 1995 as @ Managing Director spectalising in
hinancial services executive recruitment In 1995 he [oined the board of Kleinwort Benson Group
pic as Personne! Director and was appointed Chief Executive of its prvate banking business in
1997 a posiiion he held until he became Chalmaon in 2004 Following the sale of Kletnwort
Benson Prvate Bank n 2009 Dawvid became o Speciol Adwiser to the bank where he continues
to suppor a number of senior chent relationships He currently holds o number of directorships
of public companies including Majedie Invesiments plc and Novae Group plc

MARK ANDREWS Non-executive Director fage 59
Appointed 1 October 2011

Mark was until Apnt 2011 a partner specighising i carporate restructunng ot the law fimm SNR
Denton UK LLP He was head of the fimn's Restructunng Group in the UK for 20 years until 2010
and adwvised upon innumerable tugh profile and large-scale corporate restructunngs, many

of which were mulii-junsdictional Pnor to that he was the Senior Portner lcharrmnant of SNR
Denlon s predecessor firm Wilde Saple from 1996-2000, then Deputy Chairman from 2000-
2002 He was a member of the firms’ boards for nine of the last 11 years of his partnershup with
them and he was also a councll member of the Association of Business Recovery Professionals
until February 2011, when he resigned Mark remains a consultant ta SNR Denton UK P
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

74

The Directors present thew report and business rewiew together with the audited Financlal Stalements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

GROUP PERFORMANCE

The Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income 1s set out on page 41and shows the Group
loss from confinuing operations was £103m (2010 restated loss £61 1ml

Loss from continuing operations before tax was £129m 2010 restated loss £63 6rm)

Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations was 3 1p (2010 restated loss 56 2pl
Using the Board s preferred method, based on adjusted operating proft, the basic and diluled loss
per share from continuing operations was 3 71 12010 restated loss 5 Tp!

Information about performance is given In the Chaiman's Staternent, the Financial Review, the
Operational Review lincluding KPIs) and the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The prncipal adivity of the Group and each of the trading subsidianes 1s that of providing workforce
solutions 1o the healthcare and social care sectors

PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

The Board s assessment of the Prncipal Risks and Uncenainties facing the business 1s set out on
pages 19 to 20

Infermation on Contingent Ligbilities 1s provided in Note 28 to the Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS
A dividend of 1 8p per share, coshng £2 1m, was paid on 10 Jonuary 2011

The Direclors are not propesing a final dividend for 2011

As disclosed In Nole 13 since the date of i1ssue of the Financiat Statemenis for the year ended 31
December 2010 funther work has been performed in relation to the payment of pnor year dividends
and the Board has concluded that the dividend paid on 10 Jenuary 2011 was unlawful as the then
Board should have known at the date that the dvdend was approved and pad that the Company
had insufficient reserves available to make the payment

The Board has been unable as yel o come to a definite conclusion about the legality of the
diadends paid en 1 Apnl and 25 June 2010 No action will be kaken to recover unlawful divdends
from shareholders in general However, the Board s considenng whether remedies are avallable
against former directors to recover unlawful dvidends paid 1o them and damages for breach of duty
in authonsing the relevant dvidends

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share copital are set out In Note 26

RIGHTS ATTACHED TO SHARES

Dunng a show of hands at a general meeting every holder of ordinary shares present in person or
by proxy and enfitled to vote shall have one vole Where there 1s  poll vote every member present
In person or by proxy shall have one vote for every ordinary share held In accordance with the
provistons of the Amidles of Association, holders of ordinary shares are entitled to a dwvidend where
declared or paid out of profits available for such puposes On a retum of capifal on a winding up
holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled to paticipate in such @ retum
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PAYMENTS TO SUPPUERS

Whilst the Group does not follow any formal payment code It does agree terms of payment with
suppliers when opening an account, ensuang each supplier 1s made aware of these terms The
Group aims to comply with the payment terms agreed The Group makes payment to the majonty of
iis suppliers tox authorities and employees elecirorically via the BACS payments system in order to
facilitote a fost effeciive and secure transmisston of payrent

Given the nalure of ifs prnapal adivibes the Group s largest supplier type 15 a temporary worker Such
temporary workers supply their semices to the Group's customers and clients on a dally basis and the
Group alse remunerates its temporary workiorce on ¢ daily basis Other suppliers are paid according
to the agreed terms of trade nomially within 30 days for both the Group and the Company

Due o the cash flow constrants that the UK operahions were under as ot 1 January 2011 under

the direction of the old Board and without formal approval or an agreed payment amangement the
Group fell behind with payments to Her Majesty's Revenue & Customs THMRC'} by approximately
£64m HMRC was paid all cutstanding amounts by the end of September 2011 and the Group has
remained up-to-dote with all payments since that date

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS
During the year the Group made chaniable donctions of approximately £22 000 (2010 £26,000)

The Group made no donations for political purpeses either in the UK or overseas dunng the year

DISABLED PERSONS

The Group's and the Company's policy 1s fo consider the applications of disabled workers for
vacancies that they are able to fill All necessary assistance with inihial fraimng courses 1s given Once
employed, a career plan Is developed to ensure sultable opportunities for each disabled persen
Amangements are made wherever possible for reframing employees who become disabled to
enable them io perform work. identified as appropnate to therr aptiludes and abiliies

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The Group’s pohicy is to consult and discuss with employees and employee forums on matters likely
to affect employees’ interests Information on matters of concem to employees is given through
information bullelins and reports which seek o achieve a common awareness on the part of all
employees of the finoncial and economic factors affecting the Group's performance

In Novermber 2011 the Company consulted with its employees on the proposed closure of its
Loughton office and possible relocation of those employees o its Old Bolley office The Board
informed employees that the proposed relocation would generate long-term operational benefits
and reduce ongoing facility and propery costs Additionally, the Board reported its belief thot it
would allow investment In new technology and create management efficencies through staff being
housed In a single locatton The majonty of the Company's employees agreed fo relocate and so the
relocation wos executed In January 2012
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DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS

The Drectors who served dunng the year and to the date of this repon fogether with the date they
were oppointed or left the Beard and therr level of attendance at Board meetings 15 as follows

Date of appointment

If cfter 31 December No of meetings

No of meetings

Dwecior Position 20008 Date of leaving could have attended  attended
Peter Sullivan Non-executive Chaimnan 18 February 2011 - 44 44
Stephen Burke Chief Executive Officer 10 May 2011 - 27 27
Managing Director of
Healthcare Australia
Andrew McRae Holdings Pty Lid 10 May 2011 - 27 16
Intenm Chief Financial
Bill Jessup* Officer 1 Qctober 2011 6 6
Sue Bygrave Chief Rinancial Officer 6 February 2012 - - -
David Henderson  Non-executive Director 18 February 2011 - 44 42
Mark Andrews Non-executive Direclor 1 October 2011 - 6 6
Alan Wolker Chaoirrman 18 Februawy 2011 5 5
Kate Bleasdale Executive Vice Chairman 23 Febuary 2011 5
Mo Dedat Chief Operating Officer 1 March 2011 5 5
Diane Jarvis Chief Financial Officer 24 March 2011 10 2
intenm Chief Financial
Officer & Intenm Chief
Calin Whipp Restructunng Officer 10 May 2011 1 Oclober 2011 21 20
Alasdair Lddelt Non-executive Director 31 March 2011 14 14

* Bill Jessup will resign fom the Boord following the completion of the 2011 Annual Report

Kate Bleasdale and Diane Jorvis were suspended from the Board prior to leaving the Company
and clthough technically entifled to attend Board meetings they did not do so Andy McRoe
was unable to attend a number of Board meetings due solely to the meetings being held in UK
business hows while he was in Austalia, but he received paperwork beforehand and had the
opportunity to make his views known to the Chaiman before the meehing

All details relating to Directors who seived dunng the year and their interests can be found
within the Report on Remuneration on page 30

The biegraphical details of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this report are set out
on pages 22 1o 23

At the Annual General Meeting "'AGM™ held on 29 June 2011 all the Directors who were
appointed in 2011 pnor o that date were re-elected

APPOINTMENT AND REPLACEMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company moy by ordinary resolution appoint any indwvidual 1o the Board The Board may
appoint any indmdual willing to act as a Director esther to {ill o vacancy or act as an addhonal
Drrector The appointee can only hold office until the next AGM whereupon he or she will be put
forward for eappontment

The Aticles of Associgiion prescnbe that af each AGM, not less than one-third of the Direclors

must refire by rotohion and any Director who has been In office for three years or more since his
or her last appointment or reappaintment must retire by rotation
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A retinng Director 1s ehigible for reappointment The 2010 UK Corporate Govemance Code
recommends that all Direciors be subjedt to annual re-election by shareholders Therefore, with
eftect from the AGM to be held in 2012, all Directors will offer themselves for annual re-election
except those who have announced therr intention to resign before the notfication of the AGM 1s
posted to shareholders

DIRECTCRS' INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

Directors and Officers of the Company and Iis subsidianes beneiit from Directors” and Officers’
liabilty msurance cover In respect of legal actions brought against them In oddiion Directors

of the Company ore indemnified In accordance wath Article 148 of the Company's Atticles of
Association, 1o the maximurm exient permitted by law Neither the insuronce nor the indemnihes
provide cover where the relevan! Diector or Officer has acted fraudulently or dishonestly The

US lihgation against the Company and its former Directors, as referred to in Note 28, may not
be covered under the existing Directors and Officers kability insurance cover This 1s because
the Plaintiffs’ arguments revolve around the alleged dishonesty or rmisleading conduct of former
Board members None of the cument Board members are a party to this claim

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company subject to the provisions of relevant
legistation, the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association and any directtons given
by o speaal resolution of the shareholders Specific powers cre detalled In the Company's
Articles of Association, including the power to 1ssue shares, along with the rules for the
appointment and removal of Directors

The Board has noted that the Company's curent Ariicles of Association need to be updated

to reflect developments in the law and corporate praciice and to have further regard to the
nature end size of the Company The Articles of Association may only be amended by a speciol
resolution passed by shareholders at a general meeting Accordingly the Board intends to
propose that new Anicles of Association be adopled by shareholders at the 2012 AGM

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

In addition to the Directars interests shown in the Remuneration Report on page 30 and in
accordonce with Pan 22 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has been notified that the
following shareholders’ inferests exceeded 3% of the Company s Ordinary Share capital in 1ssue
at the date of this report

Shareholder

Toscafund Concert Party las defined in the Cireutar dated 19 August 2011) 4222%
ACE Concert Parly los defined in the Circulor dated 19 August 2011} 3027%
Jupiter Assef Management Limited 507%
Craig Tibbles 3117%

The shareholdings of the Toscafund Concert Party and the ACE Concert Pardy would nomally

require o fakeover offer to have been made under Rule 9 of the Takeover Code The Takeover
Panel agreed to wave this requirement, subject to approval of the walver at the AGM held to
approve the Refinancing on 12 Seplember 2011 As the waiver resolution was passed at that
meeting Rule 9 does not apply to these shareholdings

Members of the ACE Concert Party, and Craig Tibbles are restricted from disposing of any of
their shareholdings of the Company until 12 September 2012 unless paricular circumstances
onse such as agreeing fo the sale of the Company as part of general offer to all shareholders
or pursuant to a scheme of arrangement under secton 171 of the Insolvency Ad 1986

Dunng the ime of the Refinancing, Doniel Sinclair and/or Mike Dennis of ACE attended ten of
the Board meetings held dunng the penod March 2011 - June 2011 Their attendance was as
obserers and it was pursuant fo a contraciual nght which enabled them 1o attend on behalf of
ACE in its capacily as a lender of mezzanine finonce to the Group

Healthcare locums pic
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related panty transachions, including transactions with close family of former Drectors
are set out 1n Note 31 to the accounts

As noted in hus biogiaphy Mark Andiews has advised on many corporale restructunngs i his
role as a former Parner and he remains ¢ consuliont to SNR Denton, a significant supplier of
legal services to the Company in 2011 The Board lexcluding Mark Andrews) has considered
any potential conflic of interest regording SNR Denion s related party relationship # was decided
that there was no such conflict given that SNR Denton was engaged as a supplier of legal
services many months pnor to Mark jolning the Board However to avoid any potential conflicts
going forward the Board has cgreed that Mark Andrews may not vole on any resolution
regarding the appointment of SNR Denten for any future legal services

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Where potential conflicts of interest or duties anse decisions can only be authonsed by Directors
who do not have an Iinterest in the matter being considered and in maoking such decisions the
Direclors must act in @ way they consider, in good faith, will most likely promete the success

of the Company The Company has established a procedure whereby actual and potential
conflicts of interest and duties are advised fo the Company Secretary and are reviewed
annually In addition, conflicts are requested to be 1dentified and oddressed as appropnate prior
fo the commencement of the business of any Board meeiing Appropnate authonsations are
sought for any ad hoc notifications of any new confiicts of interest or duties, or any changes fo
existing conflicts of interest or duties

DISCLOSURE OF AUDIT INFORMATION

As required by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006 each of the Directors confirm that

as at the date this report was approved, so far as each Director I1s aware there 1s no relevant
information of which the Independent Auditor 1s unaware and that they hove taken all the steps
that they ought 1o have taken as Directors In oider to make themselves aware of any relevant
infermation and to establish ihat the Independent Auditor 1s aware of that information

AUDITOR

Following @ recommendahon by the Audit Committee, the Board concluded that it was
oppropnote to underiake a tender for the audit following the signing of the Financial Staternents
for the year ended 31 December 2010 After a review of four oudit firms iIncluding the
incurmbent auditor BDO LWP Iwho subsequently withdrew from the tender process! the Audit
Committee recommended that Deloitte LLP be appointed auditor o ihe Company and all
subsidiary companies

Williem Touche 1s the Senior Statutory Auditor

Further informction on the Audit Commitiee ond its actions 1s contained within the Corporate
Govemance section of this report
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Details of post balance sheet events are set out In Note 33 to the Finanaial Statemenis

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

A companys Annual Report 1s required among other matiers, to contain o fair review by the
Duectors of the Group's business through o balanced and comprehensive analysis of the
development and performance of the business of the Group and the position of the Group at
the year end, consistent with the size and complexity of the business The Direciors’ Repor, the
Chairman'’s Stafement the Financial Review and the Operational Review have been prepared
only for the shareholders of the Company as a whole, and their sole purpose and use 1s 10
assist shareholders 1o exercise ther govemance nghts In particular, the Directors’ Report, the
Chairman s Staternent the Financial Review and the Cperational Review have not been audifed
or otherwise independenily venfied The Company and its Directors and employees are not
responsible for any other purpose or use or fo any other person N relation to the Annual Report

These reports and statements contain indicatons of likely future developments and other
forward-looking staternents that are subject to nsk factors associated with, among other things,
the economic and business circumstances occurmng from ime-to-time 1n the countnes, sectors
and business segments in which the Group operates These factors include, but are not limited
to those discussed under Poncipal Risks and Uncertainties

These and other factors could adversely affect the Group s results, strategy and prospects
Forward-looking statements involve nsks uncertainties and assumptions They relate to events
and/or depend on circumstances in the future which could cause aciual resulls and outcomes
to differ matenally from those currently onticipated No obligation 1s assumed 1o update any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information future events or othermise

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

MARTIN HUGHES
Company Secretary

13 Apnl 2012

Healthcare Locums plc
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REPORT ON REMUNERATION

INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared in gecordance
with Schedule 8 to the Accounting
Regulations under the Companies Act 2006
Although not required by AlM regulations,
on a voluntary basis the report has been
prepared to meet some of the requirements
of the Listing Rules of the Financial Semices
Authonty and describes how the Board

has applied the principles relahng to
Directors’ rermuneration in the UK Corporate
Governance Code The Board has opted
not to disclose any remuneration of past
and current executive Directors which has
been eamed from services provided to
other companies As a Company whose
shares are traded on Alternative Invesiment
Market ["AIM7) the remuneration report 1s not
required o be approved by the Company In
AGM However, the Direclors have decided
that a resclution to approve the report will
be proposed ot the AGM of the Company
at which the Finarcial Staterments will be
presented for approval

The Directors also requested that the
Cormpany's auditor report to the Company's
members on certain parts of the Report

on Remuneration and to state whetherin
their opinion those parts of the report have
been properly prepared in accordance with
the accounting regulations The report has,
therefore, been divided info separale sections
for audited and unaudited Informahon

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In the ight of the number of Board meetings
dunng 2011, the Company did not form a
Remuneration Cornmittee and the whole
Board paicipated in the discussions nomally
delegated to a Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration
Commuttee on 27 January 2012 which

1S constituted in accordance with the
recommendations of the UK Corporate
Govemance Code The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Commitiee are
avallable at hitp.//invesior helplc com/docs/
remuneration-committee-terms-of-reference
pdf The Commitiee has met three times in
2012 and those meetings were attended by
its full membership

Apart from Mark Andrews whose inferest 1s
discussed on page 78, none of the Committee
has any personal financial interest fother

than as shareholders), conflicts of interests
ansing from cross-directorships or day-to-day
involvernent in running the business

The Commitiee’s purpose Is o review the
performance of the Executive Directors and
other senior executives and fo detenming
approprate levels of remuneration

The remuneration and emocluments of
Executive Directors are determined by the
Board based on the recommmendations of the
Remunerction Committee

To assist with detemining the recommended
remuneratton of the Executive Directers for

the year, the Commitiee has appointed
PncewatethouseCoopers to advise on sulfable
long term incentive plans

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration policy s designed fo aftract,
refain and miotivate Executive Directors of the
calibre required to deliver the Group s business
strotegy Indvidual remuneration packages are
structured to align rewards with the perforrmance
of the Group and the infetests of sharehclders

The Committee will also review the pay policy
and levels for senior executives below the
Board It will review the executive reward
arrangements in the light of comment from
shareholders and the provisions of the UK
Corporate Govemnance Code, and will ensure
that its amangements are compliant with the
Code

The policy I1s based on the following
remuneraton prnciples

+ salanes should be set o a market
competitive level by benchmarking against
appropnate extemal comparators and
taking Into account the external business
environment

» remunerahon packages should mantan
an apprepnate balance of fixed and
performance related pay which delivers over
the shor, medium and longer temn with the
balance becoming more long term and more
highly performance related with senionty

* ncentive plans should be linked to
demanding performance targets with
performance measures being reviewed to
ensure that they do not dnve unacceptable
behaviours or encourage excessive nsk
taking,

« Incenfive arrangements should align the
interests of Directors and sharehalders
by balanaing the need to retain Directors
suttable for a company of this Company’s
size and nature whilst incentivising value
creation for shareholders, and
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+ the overadll package should reflect market
prachce

In accordance with these pnnciples the
Remuneration Commuttee 1s developing long-
tem incentive plans which shareholders wiil
be asked io approve ai a general meeting of
the Company

The other elements of remuneration for
Executive Direclors are descrnbed in the
following paragraphs

BASIC SALARY

Salares are reviewed annuclly with changes
taking effect on 1 January each year fcking
into account Indmidual performance market
data and levels of increases applicable to
other employees in the Group None of the
Executive Directors’ salanes were incregsed
from 1 Januagry 2012 and their current salanes
are

Stephen Burke £350,000
Andy McRae £275,000
Bill Jessup* £1,500 per day
Sue Bygrave £205,000

As an infenm director Bill Jessup charged the Company
o daily rate for his semices through his own company
In line with standard company policy Bi is responsible
for any tax llabilies 1o HMRC which onse from this
orangement

ANNUAL BONUS

Pursuant to therr service contradis the
Executive Directors may be awarded o
discrefionary bonus based on indmidual
perormance ond for achweving cerdan
objectives In respect of ther 2011
performances Stephen Burke was paid o
guoranteed bonus arnounting 1o £113000
ond Andy McRae was paid £50.000

Al the ttme of this report bonus amangements
are still being considered for 2012 and
subsequent years However, Sue Bygiave,

has been guaranieed a minlmum bonus fo
the value of £40000 for 2012 50% of which
1$ payable in shares and 50% of which 1s
payable in cash

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

Itis onhcipated that the long-tem incentive
for the Executive Direciors will be o Value
Creation Plan and the oward of a percentage
of annual bonuses in shares Full details of
these proposals witl be available at a General
meeting of the Company for approval by
shareholders

EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

The Company recagnises that Executive
Drrectors may be invited to become Non-
exaculive Directors of other companies and
that this can help broaden the skills and
expenence of o Director Executive Directors
are nomally permitied to accept one extemal
appointment with the approval of the Board
and may retain the fees for this appointment

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS” CONTRACTS

The details of the Executive Direcior's contracts
are summansed in the iable below

Name Date of contract Notice
period
Stephen Burke 6 May 2011 6 months

Andy McRae 16 May 2011 6 months
Bill tessup 26 August 2011 1 month
Sue Bygrave 30 January 2012 6 months

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

All Non-executive Directars, including the
Chaiman, serve under leiters of appointment
and ether pary can terminate on three
months’ wriiten notice Therr remuneration Is
deterrmined by the Board within the limils set
by the Ariicles of Assocration and 1s based on
informahion on fees pald n similar companies
and the skills and expected 1me commitment
of the indidual concemed and reflects

therr roles on the Board s sub-committees

No Non-executive Direclor has the nght to
compensation on the eary termination of therr
oppointment

From the dale of theirr agppointment untd
August 2011 the then Non-executive Direciors,
Peter Sulivan and David Henderson were
paid daily fees of £2 500 for their work.

This was an appropnate amangement

to compensate them for therr substanhial
commitment to the Refinancing and
restructunng of the Group dunng this perod

The Non-executive Directors current annual
fees are

Peter Sullivan £125000
Dawvid Henderson £75,000
Mark Andrews £60.000

31
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AUDITED INFORMATION

AGGREGATE DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
The fotal amounts for Directors’ remuneration were as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000
Salanes, fees and bonus 1,798 952
Benefits-in-kind 109 4
Total 1,907 993
DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS
Salary/fees Benefits-in kind Bonus 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive:
Stephen Burke 226 - 113 339 -
Andy McRaoe™ 176 103 50 329 -
Bill Jessup 128 - - 128 -
Non-executive -
Peter Sullivan 254 - - 254 -
David Henderson 158 - - 158 -
Mark Andrews 15 - - 15 -
Former Directors
Colin Whipp? 245 - - 245 -
Kate Bleasdale &0 6 - 66 327
Diane Jarvis® 62 - - 62 217
Mo Dedat 159 - - 159 261
Alasdarr Liddel® 89 - - 89 86
Alan Walker® 63 - - 63 102
Total 1635 109 163 1907 993

it

Prot ta joining the Boord Andy McRae was remunerated as an empleyee of the Group s Australian business

Healthcare Austrolio Andy 15 paid in Australian $ so the amounts listed may have vaned slightly w kne with the
exchange rates over the pencd of his remuneration His benefits-in-kind include o housing atlowance and a living
oway allowanee and return travel to the UK for himself and his spouse which are nomat for an expatnate executive

12

icining the Board Colin Whipp pravided consultancy sewvices to the Beord

13
Alasdair Liddell Limited
14

International Urnited

{5) Pension contnbutions were paid on behalf of Diane Jarvis of £3 563 in 2011 (2010 £14 250

DIRECTORS' SHARE INTERESTS

Calin Whipp wos remunerated through the company he controlled Amersham Business Management Limited Pner to
Alosdelr Liddell receved a bonus of £50000 in 2010 and receved remuneration through the Company he controlled

Alan Walker controlled Affa Intemational Limited Included in the 2010 emount is a bonus of £5000¢ paid to Alfa

As at 31 December 2011 the Directors serving at that date had the following beneficial interests

i the 1ssued shares of the Company

Narne

31 December 2011

Shares as ot

Shares as at

31 December 2010

Peter Sullivan
Stephen Burke
Andy McRae
Bavid Henderson
Bill Jessup

Mark Andrews

200,000
1000000
900,000
200,000

Sue Bygrave, who was appointed after the year-end, has no beneficial inferests in the 1ssued

shares of the Company atf the date of this repont
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iNo changes have taken place in the interests of Direclors beiween 31 December 2011 and the

date of this repon

None of the Directors appointed during 2011 or 2012 have interests over urissued shares

pursuant to share ophons granted by the Company at the date of this report The movements

an ophons held at 31 December 2010 by former Direclors were

Healthcare Locums plc

Forteited during
Former Director At 1 January 2011 the year At 31 December 2011 Exercise price _ Earliest exercise date Expiry date
Kate Bleasdale 225,000 225000 Nil 124p Sep 11 Sep 18
Kate Bleasdale 100000 100,000 NIl 207p Sep 12 Sep 19
Mo Dedat 1 000,000 1,000,000 Nil 89 5p Dec 10 Dec 17
Mo Dedat 100,000 100 000 Nil 207p Sep 12 Sep 19
Diane Jarvis 116,564 116,564 Nil 10p Jan 06 Apr15
Diane Jarvis 582,822 582,822 Nil 59p Aug 09 Aug 16
Diane Jorvis 375000 375000 Nil 124p Sep 11 Sep 18
Diane Jamvis 100,000 100,000 Nl 207p Sep 12 Sep 19
Alasdair Liddell 25,000 25,000 Nil 207p Sep 12 Sep 19
Alan Walker 25000 25,000 Nit 207p Sep 12 Sep 19

All of the oplions of the former Directors were forfeited due io the resignation of the Director

and/or the prowisions of the scheme rules

SHARE PERFORMANCE

No perdfornance graph has been presented as the shares of the Company were suspended
for nearly eight months of the year The price per share on 31 December 2010 was 130p The
shares were suspended on 24 January 2011 at a prce of 112 5p The first day freding resurmed
was 13 Septernber 2011 and the shares closed ot 7 8p and at 31 December 2011 the shares

closed at 308p

On behalf of the Board

MARK ANDREWS
Chaiman Remuneration Commiftee

13 April 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board 1s committed
to maintaining high
standards of Corporate
Governance, managing
the Group in an
effective, entrepreneurial
and ethical manner

for the benefit of the
shareholders over the
longer term

34

As disclosed in the 2010 Annual Report when the Chaiman joined the Beard it was evident
that there were extremely poor levels of Corperate Governance under the previous Board
Additiondlly, there was a lack of nomnal business policies and procedures and insufficient
management of cosis The level of recard keeping sumounding major decisions taken by the
previous Board was well below the standord which shareholders would expect from o publicly
listed company

The Board 1s committed o maintaining high standards of Corporate Govemance, managing
the Group m an effective, entreprensunal and ethical manner for the benets of the shareholders
over the longer term Under the AIM rules, the Company ts not required to implement the full
provisions of the UK Corporate Govemance Code However, the Board 1s committed to apply
the pnnciples of good govemance contained in the UK Comporate Code as appropnate for a
Company of this size and nature Since the completion of the Refinancing in September 2011,
the Board has been progressively puting this policy into effect and the paragraphs below
descrbe how the Board and its Committees are now operafing

THE BOARD

Dunng 2011 the Board met many tres fo ensure the suvival of the Company through

the reorganisation and refinancing of the Group The matters which the Board considered
are described in more detall elsewhere in this Annual Report but included the complete
change In the membership of the Board investigation of accounting iregulanties negohation
of emergency funding and the refinancing package the suspension and relishng of the
Company's shares, fundamental change in the Group’s adwisers, significant change in the
UK management team the sale of the Homecare dvisien of HCA, and the management of
important lhgation and decling with other legacy 1ssues

Since September 2011, the Board has been able to concentrate more on operational matters
and now has the membership structure and processes to ensure good oversight in the future

The Board will hold routine monthly meetings lexcept in August! and at least one meetng

per year will be in Australia The Chairman and the Company Secretary work together to plan
the agenda for each Board meeting Prior to the Board meetings, the Board 1s 1ssued with
supporiing papers relevant to the meeting Including monthly mancgement accounts, bnefing
papers on commeicial and operational matters and majer capital projects as well as reports on
relations with investors and updates on the implementation of key strategic plans All Directors
clso have access to the adwice and services of the Cormpany Secretary

A formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board was approved on 27 February 2012 The
matters reserved for the Board include

* monitonng and supervising the overall managernent and strategies of the Company

* reviewing changes fo the Company’s capsal structure,

+ approving all annual budgets and financial statemenis,

» ensunng mointenance of G sound system of control and nsk management

+ approving all acquisiions and disposals ond all matenal contrads and capital projects

= approving all resolutions and comespondence 1o shareholders in connechion with general
meehngs, and

= underaking reviews of tts own performance and that of s sub-committees and Direciors

MONITORING PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD

It 1s acknowledged thal all Board members need the appropnate knowledge of the Company
and access fo its operations and staff to adequately supevise the management of the
Company Presentations and reports on commercial inttiatives, the Company's industry and its
compettive postion are given pencdically fo the Board In addition, from this year onwards, the
Company will hold Board meetings away from the heod office, normally at least twice a vear,

to provide the Non-executive Directors with opportunities to meet the different dwislons of the
business and therr operations
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Dunng 2011, the Board received regular updates and advice from the Company Secrefary,
its inswrers and insurance brokers, its legal advisers SNR Denton LLP and Manches LEP, is
nominated adwvisers and brokers FaiFax and then Investec, its inancial advisers Hawkpomt
Partners Limited and other extemnal advisers

Upon the successful complehon of the Refinancing of the Group in September 2011, the Board
considered its effectiveness and required expansion and considered the future intiatives and
responsibiliies of the committees that were re-established in 2012

The full schedule of matters reserved to the Board i1s available on the Company's webslte,
http //investor helplc com/docs/Schedule%200f%20Matters_Feb2012 pdf

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Alan Walker (Chairmani and Alasdarr Liddell served on the Committee from 1 January 2011 1o
the dates of leaving the Board David Henderson (Charman, Peter Sullivan and Mark Andrews
are the current members of the Committee which they joined from the date of therr respective
appointments as Non-executive Directors Colin Whipp was @ member of the Committee dunng
the penod that he was an Executive Director While the Commitiee will in the future only be
compnsed of Non-executive Directors, Colin s membership was deemed appropnate given the
nature of the work that the Committee was underaking dunng that penod

Some of 4s key responsibiliies are to
+ ensure that the appropnate financial reporiing procedures are property maintained

» consider the annual appoiniment of the extemal auditer and assess the independence of
the extemal audior

« review the need for an intemnal audd funclien and f appropnate the resources devoted to
intemal audit activities,

+ review the Company's compliance with regulatory requirements and the procedures for
handling allegafions from whistleblowers and the detechon of fraud,

» review management's repors on the effectiveness of systems for infemal financial control
financial reporting and nsk management, and

* review gccounts review and approve accouniing policies

The Committee met nine times dunng the year and took the leading role in supemvising
the inveshgation of the accounting irregulanties announced in january 2011 and
working with the Company s then auditors to finalise the 2010 Financial Statements
which included liaising with the Financial Reporting Review Panel ("FRRP") o address
irregulanties relating to accounting policies adopted in 2009/2010 under the old Board
In addiion the Commitiee reviewed the Group's accounttng policies and approved the
2011 Intenm Accounis and was involved 1n a substanhal fender exercise to engage
its new auditor for the Company, Deloitte Those invited to tender were BDO Deloitte,
KPMG, Ernst & Young and PwC Where the auditor provides other services ta the Group
audiier independence 15 safeguarded by the Audit Commitiee authonsing the additional
services

Attendance
The Committee's policy i1s to meet ot least twice a yeor

The records of attendance dunng 2011 gre

No of " f Hn
Name of Committee member ° 0 ”i']nisenogr?efw%ﬂg No o r;;a:n dgj
Dawvid Henderson (Chaimanl 9 9
Peter Sullivan 9 6
Colin Whipp 8 8
Mark Andrews 1 1

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The consttution ond activities of the Remuneration Committee are descnbed in the
Rermuneration Report on pages 30 fo 33
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Significant steps have
been taken to iImprove
the overall structure of
the control environment
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dunng 2011 the role of the Nomination
Committee was performed by the Board In
November 2011, the Board set up a new
Nomination Committee which did not meet
untl 2012 The cument members are Peler
Sullivan {Chairmanl David Henderson and
Mark Andrews As at the date of this Repor,
the Committee has met once In 2012 fo
consider and recommend the appoiniment of
Sue Bygrave to the Board

The Committee makes recommendahions on
all new Board appoiniments

Some of its key responsibiliies are to

» evaluate the balance of skills knowledge
and expenence on the Board and, in the
Iight of this evaluation prepare a descnphion
of the role and capabilities required for a
particulcr appaintment,

« use perfomnance evaluchion to assess
whether Non-executive Directors are
spending enough ke to fulfil ther duties

+ consider candidates from a wide range
of backgrounds with a wide range of
capabihifies and expenence, and

« gwe full consideration to succession
planning in the course of its work and
regulary review the stucture, size and
compostiion including the skills, knowledge
and expenencel of the Board

COMMITTEES TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Board approved new terms of reference
for all three Commutteas in February 2012 to
ensure they were In ine with best praciice
guidance and the Company's policies and
practices The full ferms of reference can be
reviewed on the Company's website hitp //
investor helple com/committee _members html

INTERNAL CONTROLS

In the 2010 Annual Repor, the Board reported
deficencies in corporate govemance, financial
and operating confrols, including comphance
contiols Since the Refinancing in September
2011, the Board and senior management
have been able 1o devote more attention to
improving the overall control environment
structure with pariculor focus on the
operations of the UK businesses

The Board Is responsible for the Group s

nsk management process and iis system of
intemal controls Day-io-day responsibility for
embedding controls is delegated to executive
and senior management Any system of
intemal control lencompassing strategic,

financig!, operational, comphance confrols and
nsk management! 1s designed to manage

but not eliminate nsk as the Group seeks to
achieve its objectives The control framework
should provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance that the Group s assets and
reputation are safeguarded and not subject to
matenal loss or misstatement

The Board has reviewed the contro!
environment In 2011 and up ‘o the dale

of this report Significant steps have been
taken to improve the overall structure of the
control environment The Chairman has

led the appointment of a new Board, the
schedule of maiters reserved for the Board
has been introduced, Board Committees have
renewed termns of reference The Board has
reviewed and considered the pnncipal risks,
which are set out on pages 19 fo 20, and Is
Implementing nsk menagemeant and reporting
procedures for these nsks In paricular the
Improvement of UK chinical compliance has
been ¢ major focus areg, supported by

the appointrent of o UK Head of Clinical
Govemance and Compliance in QOctober 2011

The Board hos considered whether the
restatements to the 2010 Financial Statements
represent matenal losses The restatements
relate fo HCA acquisition accounting mafters
and an isolated calculahion error in the Soclal
Care impaiment review The restatements
have no future cash iImpact for the group
2012 will see g review and reshaping

of resources In the finance department

under the leadership of Sue Bygrave, who
was appointed Chief Financial Officer on

6 February 2012 Dunng the remainder of
2012 the UK control environment will also be
improved by the planned implementation of
revisions to the comorate structure to reduce
the number of active legal entities the rolling
out of ins which will assist 1In embedding
enhonced controls and stondard policies and
procedures

On behalf of the Board

PETER SULLIVAN
Chaiman

13 Apnl 2012
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

INTRODUCTION

On 25 January 2011 1n the light of matenal
finanaal accounting wregulanties that had
come io light, the Company's shares were
suspended from trading on AIM The then
existing Board was replaced and a new Board
appointed The Directors of the new Board were
appointed over the pened of January 2011 -
Febnsary 2012 ond therefore no Direclors were
in office throughout 2011

With the assistance of accountants Grant
Thomton and legat advisers SNR Denton

and Manches, the Board launched an
investigation 1o review ([amongst other things)
the achons of the previous management The
Boord s investigation confimned that there
were a number of material misstatements

In earlier years' accounts and these were
addressed in the 2010 Annual Report

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directars are responsible for prepanng the
Annual Report and the Financaial Slatements
in accordance with applicable law and
regulations Company law requires the
Directors 1o prepare Financial Statements

for each financial year Under that low the
Directors are required o prepare the Group
Finanaal Statements in cccordance with
Intemational Finonaial Reporting Standards
[FRSs) as adopted by the European Union
and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation and have
elected fo prepare the parent Company
Finanaal Statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards
ond opplicable lawt Under company iow

the Directors must not approve the financial
sialements unless they are satstied that they
give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that penod

In prepanng the parent Company financial
statements, the Directors are required 1o

» seled suitable accounhng polices and
then opply them consistently,

» make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and prudent

« stote whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Staterents cnd

« prepare the Financial Statements on
the going concern basis unless it 1s
inappropnate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

in preparing the Group Financial Statements By order of the Board
International Accounting Standard 1 requires
that Directors

+ properly select and apply accounting
palicies,
STEPHEN BURKE

= present information, Including accouniing Chief Executive Officer

policies, in @ manner that provides relevant
reliable, comparable and understandable
information

« provide addional drsclosures when
compliance with the specific requirements  WILLIAM JESSUP

in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users Interim Chief financral Cfficer
to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other evenis and conditions 13 April 2012

on the entity’s finanaia! position and
financial performance and

* make an assessmeni of the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern

The Durectors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any hime the financia! positon of
the Company and enable them to ensure that
the Financial Statements comply with the Act
They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence for iaking
reasonable steps for the preventon and
detection of fraud and other iregulanties

WEBSITE PUBLICATION

The Direclors are responsible for the
maintenance and integnty of the carporate
and financial information included on the
Company's website Legislation in the United
Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissemingtion of Financial Staterments may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
We confimm that to the best of our knowledge

al the Financial Statements, prepared in
accordance with the relevant inancial
reporhing framework, give @ true and far
view of the assets habilikes, financiol
posiion and profit or loss of the Company
and the undenakings included in the
consohdation taken as a whole, and

the management repont which ts
incorporoted into the Directors” Report,
includes a farr raview of the development
and performance of the business ond

the posiion of the Company ond the
undertakings included mn the consohdation
taken as o whole fogether with @
descnphion of the principal nisks and
uncerainties that they face

b

=
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF HEALTHCARE LOCUMS PLC

38

We have audited the financial statements of
Healthcare Llocums pic for the yeor ended
31 December 2011 which compnse the
Consolidcted Statement of Comprehensive
Income the Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equily the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Postion, the
Consolidated Staterment of Cash Flows, the
Parent Company Balance Sheet and the
related Notes 1 to 54 The financial reporting
framework that has been applied In the
preparafion of the consolidated financiol
siatements 1s applicable law and Intermational
financiol Reporting Standards tIFRSS™ as
cdopted by the European Union The financial
reporiing framework that has been applied
in the preparation of the parent company
financial statements 1s opplicable low and
Uniled Kingdom Accounting Standards
[United Kingdem Generally Accepled
Accountting Prachicel

This report 1s made solely to the company's
members, as a body n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audi work has been underaken
so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required

to state fo them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitied by low, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than
the company and the company's members
as a body, for cur audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditor

As expiained more fully In the Direclors’
Responsibilites Statement, the Direciors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
siatements and for being satsfied that they
give a true and foir view Qur responsibility 1s to
audi and express an opinicn on the financial
siaternents in accordance with applicable

low and intematianat Standards on Auditing
UK and Irekand) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s
Bthical Standards ior Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An gudit involves obiaining evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the finanaial stalements are
free from matenal rrusstatement, whether
caused by fraud or enor This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate 1o the group’s

and the parent company's Crcumsiances
and have been consistently applied and

adequately disclosed the reasonableness
of significont occounting estimates made by
the directors and the overall presentation

of the financial staterments In addiion we
read all the financial and nen-financial
information in the annual repor {o identify
matenal inconsistencies wiih the audited
financial statemenis If we become aware
of any apparen! matenal misstalements or
Inconsistencles we consider the implications
for our report

Basis for qualified opinion on the financial
statements in relation to prior period
comparative amounts

With respect to a computer system with ¢

cost of £5,252,000 that was fully imparred In
the year ended 31 December 2009, the audit
evidence was imited as fo whether some

or all of the iImpaiment charge sheuld have
been recorded in the year ended 31 December
2009 or the year ended 31 December

2010 Therefore we have been unable to
obtain suificient appropnate evidence on the
comperative figures for the year ended 31
Dacember 2010 which are required by 1AS

1 Presentation of Finanaial Statements, in the
Conso'idated Statement of Comprehensive
Income Were any adjustment required o

the comparaiive figures in the Consolidated
Stoternent of Comprehensive Income

there would be no financial effect on the
Consolidated Siatement of Financial Position or
the Parent Compaony Bolance Sheet as at 31
Decemnber 2011 or 2010 or in the Consolidated
Staternent of Comprehensive Income for the
year ended 31 Decermnber 2011

Basis for qualified opinion on the Parent
Company financial statements in relation
to impairment of investments in the
Company’s subsidiaries

As descnbed in note 39, the Directors have
revised the impaiment methodology used

1o assess the canylng volue of the Parent
Cornpany’s Investrments in #s subsicanes and
recorded an gdditonal impaiment charge of
£144mn 2010 os ¢ pnor penod adusiment
The audit evidence was himited as to the
amaunt of the Impairment and its iming as
to whether some of the iImparment should
have been recorded In the cunent penod
Therefore 1n relahion to this matter we hove
been unable to obtan sufiicient appropnate
evidence whether futher adjustment 1s
required o the Parent Company financial
statements in respect of the comparative
figures for the yeor ended 31 December 2010,
the loss for the yeor ended 31 December
2011 and the comying value of the Parent
Company's investment in I1s subsidianes as at
31 December 2011
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Qualified opinion on financial statements
In our opirion, except for the possible effects
of the matters descnbed 1n the basls for
qualified opimion on the financial statermnents
paragraphs
« the finoncigl statements give a tue and
faw view of the state of the group's and
of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
December 2011 and of the group s loss for
the year then ended,

« the group finanaial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs
as adopted by the European Union,

« the parent company financial siatements
have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, and

= the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Emphasis of matter — uncertain outcome
of claims

In forming our opinton on the financial
stalements, we have considered the
adequacy of the disclosures made in note

28 to the financial statements conceming the
uncertain outcormne of two matenal claims
one from the former Executive Vice Chairman
and the other from a number of shareholders
No provision has been maode for future

legal costs or for any seitlement or adverse
determination i respect of these claims Any
mateng! adverse judgment would require the
group 1o seek addihonal inance The ultimate
outcorme of these matters cannot presently
be deternined Oui apinion 1s not modified in
respect of this matter

Emphasis of matter - Going concern

In forrmrung our opinion on the financial
stofernents, we have considered the
cdequacy of the disclosure made in note

3lcl to the financial statements which refers

to the Direclors’ Statement on Going Concemn
in the Financial Review conceming the

Group s and Company's ability to continue

os a going concem Note 25 refers to the
financial restructunng dunng the yeor ended
31 December 2011 and the Statement on
Gotng Concem describes how the Board s
budget for the year fo 31 December 2012 and
future plons assume significant increases I
revenue and margin pancipally from gains in
market share, no adverse oulcormne in relation
to the outstanding legal claims against

the company descnbed in note 28 and no
significant contract conceliaions as a result of
compliance 1ssues or othenwise The Directors
forecast headroom against financial covenant

tests in the Group s bank faalities allows for
only a narow margin for vanation In actual
performance against the Group's financial
plans These conditions indicate the existence
of o matenal uncerta:nty which may cast
significant doubt about the company's abilty
to confinue as a going concem The finanaiol
statements do not include the adjustments
that would result if the company was unable
to confinue as a going concern Our opinon 1S
not modified in respect of this matter

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

in our opinion the Informatian given in the
Directors Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared 15
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

In respect of the hmitation of our waik relating
10 the impairment of the computer system

in the pner penod and the impaiment of

the Parent Compaony's investments in its
subsidianes descnbed above

* we have not received all the information
and explanahons that we considered
necessary for the purpese of our audtt, and

« we were unable 1o determine whether
adequate accounting records had been
kept by the Parent Company

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters where the Companies Act
2006 requires us fo repod 1o you if, In our
opinion

» retums adeguate for our cudit have not
been receved from branches not visited by
us, or

* the parent company finanaal siatements
are not in agreement with the accounting
records and retums, or

» certain disclosures of directors
remuneration specfied by law are not
made

Other matter

In our opinton the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Repori to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
prowisions of the Companies Act 2006 that
would have applied were the company
quoted company

WILLIAM TOUCHE
Sentor Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
tondon United Kingdom

13 Apnt 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Note 201 Restated' 2010
£m Em

Revenue 4 2271 1549
Cost of sales 177 a4 1142}
Gross profit 4 497 407
Operating expensas (50 8) 1437
Highhghted tems
Goodwill impaimnent 14 - 1514
Net exceptionc! operating expenses 7 {9 6) {4 8l
Total operating expenses {60 4) 99 9)
Loss from operations (10?7 {592
Finance income 4 245 20
Finance expense 9 (26 7) 16 4
Loss before taxation from continuing operations 4 (12,9} 636l
Tax benefit from continuing operations 10 26 25
Loss for the year from continuing operations o3l 1 n
Profit for the year from discontinued operations, net of tax N 14 -
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent (8 9 611)
Other comprehensive income
Releose of deferred losses on cash flow hedges - 07
Tax relating to cash flow hedge reserve - 03
Translation adjustment 03 02
Total other comprehensive income 03 02
Total comprehensive loss for the year (8.6) 6091
Loss per share for loss attnbutable to the owners of the parent
Baostc ond diluted - continuing business (pencel 12 a1 562
Adjusted basic and diluted - continuing business {pencel 12 (3.7 5N
Basic and diluted - discontinued business ipencel 12 04 -

(11 2010 figures have been restated for the revised Impaiment of goodwill and other assets in the UK Soclal Care dvision INcte 1t In addition the amounts credited or charged in the
vanous headings for the opemtlons of the Homecare dwision haove been moved so profit for the year from discontinued operations - o net £nll result — a5 the Homecare divislon was
sold in 2011 [Note 111 Eamings pes share calculations have been comecied for the year ended 31 December 2010 s disclosed In more detall in Note 12

The Notes are an integral part of these Fingncial Statements

4




Healthcare Locums ple Annual Report and Financial Stalements 2011

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

Note 2011 Restated' 2010 2009
em £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 14 39.8 462 603
Otherinfangible assets 15 53¢ 756 35
Property, plant and equipment 16 20 25 10
Deferred tax asset 23 - - 17
957 1243 665
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 8 299 371 273
Current tax recevable 30 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 142 106 41
471 477 314
Toto! assets 1428 1720 979
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 9 (25 5) {335) 184
Borrowings
Shor term bomowings 20 - 01} &
Cument portion of long emn bomowings 21 (09) 1144 143}
Denvative financial hobilihes 24 {1.7) n7 o8l
Current tax payable - 05 {56l
Deferred consideration 22 (15) - -
Provisions 22 {27} {501 -
323 {1552 407
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 21 (39 3) {035 {535
Deferred tax liability 23 {9 2) (14 3) 07l
Provisions 22 21 2N -
{50 6} 169 721
Total liabilties (82.9) n7z2il {47 9
TOTAL NET ASSETS 599 01) 500
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital 26 848 113 105
Share premium reserve 552 453 345
Cash flow hedge reserve - - 0N
Share option reserve 12 47 11
Translation reserve 0.1 02 -
Retained earnings {81 4) {612 46
TOTAL EQUITY 599 01 500

1} Restared for amounts os repoted in Note 1

The Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements

The Finanaial Staterments were approved and authonsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 Apnl 2012 and were signed on its behdlf by

STEPHEN BURKE WILLIAM JESSUP
Director Durector
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 201 1

Healthcare Locums plc

201 Restateg! 2010
Em £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year {89) B1 1)
Ad|ustments for
Disconfinued operation (1 4) -
Loss / igain) on farr value changes in contingent consideration 29 42
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1 06
Amaortisation of iIntangible assefs 64 17
Foresgn exchange goin on operating activity (04) -
Goodwall impairment - 514
Impairment of propery plant and equipment - 07
impairment of other Intangible assets - 27
Finance income {24 5) 20
Finance expense 267 64
Share based payments [credit/charge (05) 06
Corporation tax benefit {2.6) (2.5
Cash flows from operahng activities before changes in working capital {12) 57
Changes In recevables 2.8 103
Changes in payables (1 8) 10
Cash generated from operations before tax 02 36
Corperation tax pard {2 5) {401
Net cash flows from operating activities? {2.7) {04
Investing activities
Interest receved 01 15
Acquistion of subsidianes, net of cash acquired - 189 8}
Disposal of Homecare division 203 -
Disposal of propery, plant and equipment 04 -
Contingent and deferred consideraton poid (26) -
Capial element of lease payments {0.5) -
Acquistiion of property, ptant and equipment (07} 3
Acquisiion of intangible asseis {0 4) (05)
Net cash received from / {used in) investing activities 166 90 1)
Financing achwities
Issue of ordinary shares 56.2 17
New loans acquired 115 1405
Loans repaid (59 0) 24 6)
Interest and similar expenses patd (11.2) 124
Refinancing protessional fees {Note 25[h) {5 5) -
Dividends pard fo the owners of the parent (21) {36}
Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities {101) 1113
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 38 208
Cash and cash equivalents tinduding short-lerm borowangs) at the beginning of the year 10.5 (7 5)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 0.1} (28
Cash ond cash equivalents (including short-term borrowings) at the end of the year 142 105

1Y The 2010 cash fiow hos been restated to 1oke occount of the pror yeor adjustments disclosed In more detall in Note 1
12} After cosh spend on exceptional operating expenses of E60m (2010 £49m)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Cash flow
Share hedge Share option  Translation Retalned
Note Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve oamings Total
£m £m £m £m em £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2009 105 343 HEY) 06 - 472 486
Profit for the year - - - - - 30 30
Other comprehensive iIncome - - c3 - - 03 06
Dividends - - - - - {38 38
Issue of share capial - 02 - - - - 02
Deferred tax recogrised on share based A ) 09 09
payment ) ) i
Credit In respect of share scheme charges - - - 05 - - 05
Balance at 31 December 2009 105 345 07 11 - 46 500
Loss for the year las previously reported) - - - - - {54 4) (544
Other comprehensive income lloss) for the year - - o7 - o2 03 02
Diadends 3 - - - - - 36 13 6
Issue of share capifal 26 08 108 - - - - 16
Deferred tax recognised on share bosed ) ) ) i ) 08 08
payment
Warrants 1ssued dunng the year 2] - - - 30 - - 30
Credt In respect of share scheme charges 3z - - - 06 - - 06
g‘r’;:i':f:sl:’ rz:,o"::;'“be’ 2010 fos N3 453 . a7 02 (545 66
Pnor year adjustment 1 - - - - - (6 7) 67
Balance at 31 December 2010 (restated) 11.3 45.3 - 4.7 (02 (612) o)
Loss for the year - - - - - (89) (89)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 0.3 - 03
Dwdends 13 - - - - - 2 (21)
Issue of share capital 26 735 99 - - - (2.3} 811
Gain on Ares Lux debt for equity swap - - - - - 99 (99)
Worrants lapsed dunng the year 21 - - - {27 - 2.7 -
Amorisation of warrants - - - (0.3} - 03 -
Debit in respect of share scheme credits 32 - - - {0 5) - - {0.5)
Balance at 31 December 2011 348 552 - 1.2 0.1 (81.4) 59.9

The Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT

HCL 1s a Company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Comparies Act 2006 Fthe Adt'l The Company is listed on the AIM of the
London Stock Exchange The nature of the Group's operations and iis principal activities are set out In the Report of the Directors on page 24 and
In the Operational Review on pages 410 9

The pnmary Financial Statements and the majonty of figures in the notes are presented in Pounds Stering '£7 because that 1s the cumency of the
prmary economic environment in which the Group operates Where 1t I1s considered useful and appropnate cerdain figures for the operations of the
Australian business are disclosed in the notes in Auskalian Dollars A%

Overseas operattons are included in accordance with the policies set out in Note 3

Pnor year restatement

Dunng the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 it became apparent that the recognition
of a deferred tax ighility of £9 6m A$15 1m convened ot rates ruling on the acquishion dates) on trademarks and other mtangible assels of

£31 8m (A$50 1ml recogrised on the acquisition of Last Minute Locums (LML and HCA had been omitted As a result o restalement 1s required
In the acquisition balance sheets to recognise this hability on the dates of acquisition of 1 August 2010 and 20 Decemnber 2010 respectively with
goodwill increasing by £9 6m at the date of acquisiion

Also an escrow amount of £08m (451 2ml from a pnor ocquisiion by HCA had been omitied and has also been included in the restated
recevables on the acquisiion balance sheet, with goodwill reducing by £08m at the date of acquisition

In addition, when completing the accounts for the consolidated Australian tox group for the tax year to June 2011 #t was determined that the
defered tax osset estmate in the acquisiion balance sheet was understated by £1 1m (4% 1 7ml and the estimate in the ocquisition balance
sheet has heen corected, with goedwill Increasing by £1 Tm ot the dote of acquisition

A summary of the restalement enines s as follows

Acquisition date Forex 31 December 2010

ASm £m £m em

Goodwill 156 g9 03 102
Recevables 1.2 0.8 - o8
Deferred fax asset {17} ) - {fi1)
Deferred tax habiiy (151) i 6} i03) (99l

Also dunng the preparation of the Consclidated Financlal Statements for the yeor ended 31 December 2017 a dencal emor in the 2010 calculation of
the value in use of the UK Soclal Care dmision was discovered which, had the emor not occured would have meant the impaimment of the goodwill
and assels associated wilth that division would have increased by £7 Tm A prior year adjustment has been booked fo comect this risstaternent,
reducing goodwill by £54m cther infangible assets by £1 4m, tangible fixed assets by £03m, defered fox lability by £04m ond retained eamings ot
31 December 2010 by £6 7m

The impact of the Soctal Care pnor year adjustments on the loss from operations and loss for the year ended 31 December 2010 was as follows

Loss from operations Loss for the year

€m em

As reported for the year ended 31 December 2010 (521) (54 4)
Goodwill impaimment of Socral Care division (54) i54)
Intangible asset impaiment of Social Care division .4) {1 4)
Tangible asset impaiment of Social Care division 03) {03}
Defermed tox - 04
As restated for the year ended 31 December 2010 (59 2} {61 1)
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The combined Impact of the above prior year adjustments on the relevant figures in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Positton af 31 December
2010 was os follows

As previously reported  Impoct of restatements Restated

em £m £m

Goodwill 414 48 462

Other intangible assets 770 {v 3} 756

Property, plont and equipment 28 {03} 25

Trade and other recevables 363 08 a7zt

Deferred tax (37) {10 6} (14 3)
Impact of restaterents {6.7)

Profit and loss for the year {54 4} 6 7} {61 1)

Profit and loss reserve (54 5) (67) {61 2)

The Group presents adjusted eamings per share in Note 12 The calculation for the year ended 31 December 2010 was misstated as detailed in
that note

The acquisiion nole has been restated in Note 17

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
In the current year the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been odopted and have affected the amounts reported in
these Financial Statements

Standards affecting the Financial Statements

»

IFRIC 19 - Extinguishing Financial Liabilifies with Equity Instruments The Interpretation provides guidance on the accounting for “debi for
equity swaps” from the perspective of the borrower

As discussed in Note 25¢ the Group extingutshed debt by 1ssuing equity
instruments as part of the Refinanang As a result of this a gain of
£99m was recognised within finance income

Standards not affecting the reported results or the financial position
The following new and revised Standards and Inferpretations have been adopted in the cument year Their adoption has not had any significant
impact on the amounts reported in these Financiol Statements and with the exception of the amendment to IFRS 1 should the accounting for the

Company las opposed 1o the Groupl be amended to IFRS cre unlikely to have any significant impact on the accounting for future fransacions and
arrangements

Amendment fo IFRS 1 - Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 { The amendment provides o imited exemphon for firsi-ime adopiers
Disclosures for First-ime Adopters from prowiding comparatfive fair-value hrerarchy disclosures under IFRS 7

1AS 24 {20091 - Related Party Disclosures The revised Standard has a new, clearer definiion of a related porty,
with Inconsistencies under the previous definhon having been removed

Amendment o 1AS 32 - Classification of Rights Issues Under the amendment, nghts issues of instruments 1ssued to acquire o
fixed number of an eniity’s own non-denvative equity instrurments for o
fixed amount in any cumency and which otherwise meet the definiion

of equity are clossified as equity

Amendmenis to IFRIC 14 - Prepayments of a Minimum Funding The amendmenis now enable recognition of an asset in the form of
Requirement prepaid mintmum funding obligations
Improvernents to IFRSs 2010 The amendments made fo standards under the 2010 iImprovements to

IFRSs have had no impact on the Group
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At the date of authcasation of these Financial Stalements the following Standards and Interprefations which have not been applied in these
Finanaal Staiements were In 1ssue but not yet effective land in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU!

IFRS 1 {amended) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
IFRS 7 l[amended) Disclosures Transfers of Financial Assets

IFRS 9@ Financial Instruments

[FRS 10 Consolidated Finoncial Siatements

IFRS 11 Joint Arangemenis

IFRRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Cther Entities

IFRS13 Fair Value Measurement

1AS 1 lamended) Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
14512 lamended) Deferred tox Recovery of Underlying Assets

1AS 19 lrevised) Emnployee Benefits

1A5 27 lrewised) Separate Financial Statemenis

1AS 28 frevised) Investmenis in Assocates and Joint Ventures

IFRIC 20 Stnpping Costs in the Produchon Phase of a Surface Mine

The Directors do not consider that the odophion of the above standards will have a matenal impact on the Anancia! Staternents of the Group in future
penods

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{a) Basis of accounting

The Consolidated Financial Statemenis have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union ("EU") and therefore the Consolidated Fingnaial Statements comply with Amticle 4 of the EU 1AS Regulation

The Consolidated Financial Stotements have been prepared under the histoncal cost basis, except for denvative financial instruments which are
stcted ot thewr farr value Histoneal cost s generally based on the fair value of she consideration given In exchange for the assets The pnncipal
accounting policies adopted are set out below

(b} Basis of consolidation

The Consohdoted Financial Staterments incorporate the Financiol Statements of the Company and eniities controlled by the Company {its
subsichanes! made up to 31 December each year Control Is achleved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an investee entity so as fo oblain benefits from its activities

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included in the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income from
the effective date of acquisition or up ‘o the effective date of disposal, as appropriate Where necessary the accounting policies of subsidianes
are changed to ensure consisiency with the pelicies adopted by the Group All Intra-Group transactions balances income and expenses are
elrmnated on consolidation

{¢) Going concem

The Direclors have adopted the going concem basis of accounting in prepanng the Financial Sialements Further details of the Directors
consideration of the current econormic environment, including the industry specific circumstances in which the Group operates, and details of the
matenol uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the Group s and Company's ability to continue as a going concem are Included in
the FiInancial Review on poge 10

{dl Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidianes and businesses are accounted for using the acquisiion method The constderation for each acquisiton 1s measured
af the aggregate of the farr values (at the date of exchangel of assets given, llabililies incunad or assumed and equily instruments 1ssued by the
Group in exchange for conirol of the acquiree Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incured

Where applicable the cansideration for the acquisitton includes any asset or liobility resuthng from a contingent consideration arangement
measured ai iis acquisiion-dale far value Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisiion where they qualify
as measurement penod adjustments (see belowd All other subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration dassiied as an

osset or hability are accounted for in accordance with relevant IFRSs Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as equity ore
not recogrised
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The acauiree’s Identifiable assets, labilihes and contingent liabildies thal meet the conditions for recognihon under IFRS 3120081 ore iecognised at
therr farr value ot the acquisiion date except that

+ deferred tax assets or labiltes and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arangements are recognised and measured 1n accordance
with 1AS 12 - Income Taxes and IAS 19 - Employee Benefits respectively

« liabilies or equity Instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree s share-based payment awards are measured In
accordance with IFRS 2 - Share-bosed Payment, and

« qssets {or disposal groupst that are dassified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 — Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Disconfinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that standard

The measurement penod 1s the penod from the date of acquisiion to the date the Group obtains complete information about facts and
circumstances that existed of the acquisition date, and is subject fo a maximum of ane year

(@) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the amounts eamed from the prevision of services o extemnai customers dunng the reporting penrod - the ime of provision
of senices being the point at which the armount of revenue can be measured reliably and when itis probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group Revenue 1s stated af invoiced amounts less value added tax or local faxes on sales, plus revenue eamed but unbilled which 1s
included s accrued income n recevables

« Revenue from temporary placermenis, which represents revenue for the services of temporary staff 1s recognised when the services have
been provided Revenue incudes the salary costs of the temporary staff unless paid directly by the clent in which case revenue represents
commussion only and

= Revenue from pemanent placements is recognised at the date when a candidate commences work. Appropnate provision 1s made for the
expected cost of meeting obligations whera employees do not work for the specified contractual penod

(i Foreign currency

Revenues generated by the Group entities in a cumency other than the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which they operate therr
"functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the transachons occur Foreign curency receivables are refranslated at the sates ruling
at each reporting date Exchonge differences ansing on the refranslation of unsettled recevables are recogmised immediately in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehenswve Income

On consolidation, the results of overseas operahions are transiated into Sterling at average rates All assets and liabilies of overseas operations
mcluding goodwill ansing on the acquisition of those operations, are transtated at the rote ruling at the penod end Al exchange differences
ansing on transtation are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the translation reserve

In prepaning the Financial Statements of each mdmidual group enfity fransachions in curencies other than the entity’s functonal cumrency foreign
currencies! are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing ot the dates of the transactions At the end of each repering penod, monetary
items denominated in foreign cumencies are retransiated at the rates prevarling at that date Non-monetary ilems camed at fair value that ore
denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevalling at the date when the farr value wes determined Non-monetary tems
that are measured In temns of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

{g) Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-setiled share-based compensafion plan When share options are awarded to employees a charge 15 made fo
the profit or loss recegmising on a straight line basis the fair value of the options 1ssued over the vesting penod with a coresponding adjustment
to share opfion reserve, based on the Group's estimate of the number of equity instrements that will eventually vest The options vest ofter a
specific penod tthree years for ophions 1ssued from 2006 onwards one year for ophions ssued earied There are no other vesiing conditions, other
than that the ophions lopse should the employee leave the Group The cumulative expense 1s adjusted for failure to achieve non-market vesting
condihons such as an employee leaving

(h) Employee benefits

Coninbutions to the Group's defined conmbuhon pension schemes are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 1n the
peniod in which they become payable

The liability for Long Semice Leave In resped of employees in Australia 1s recogrised by way of o provision and measured ot the present value

of expeded future payments to be maode In respect of services provided by employees up 1o the end of the reporting penod using the projecied
unit credit method Consideration 1s given to expecied fuiure wage and salary levels expenence of employee departures and penods of semice
Expedled future benefits payable rmore than 12 months after the penod-end are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting penod
on national govemment bonds with terms to matunty and curmency that match, as closely as possible the estimaoled future cash outflows Where
data specific enough fo calculate a proviston as descrbed above are not avallable prowvision 15 made for Long Semce Leave on an estmated basis
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i Taxation

The charge for current taxation 15 provided at rates of corporation fax that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
Curent fax 1s based on taxable profits for the yeor and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income because It excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible In other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deducible

Delened tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences which result in an obligation ot the reporling daie to pay more

tax, or a fight to pay less tax, at a fulure date, based on tax rates and fax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at that date
Temporary differences anse between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their camying omeunts in the Finanaial Statements The exceptions,
where defered tax assels are not recognised nor deferred tax habilities provided, are

+ atnihal recognition of goodwl]

+ the mitial recognition of an asset or rability In a fransaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the tme of the transachon affects neither
the accounting profit or loss nor toxable profit or loss and

+ {oxoble termporary differences ossoaated with investments in subsidiaries where the tiring of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carmying amount of deferred tax ossets 1s reviewed ot each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be avallable to allow all or part of the defered income 1ax asset io be utiised

) Goodwil

Goodwill arising In a business combination 1s recogrised as an asset at the date that control 1s acquired the acquisiion datel Goodwill is
measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transfered, the amount of any non-controlling interest In the acquiree and the fair value

of the acquirers previously held equity interest if anyl in the entty over the net of the acquision-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the iabilies assumed

Ii, after reassessment the Group's interest in the fair value of the acquiree s identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred the amount of any non-controling wnterest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity inferest in the
acquiree (if anyl the excess 15 recogrused immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as a bargain purchase

Goodwill 1s not amortised but 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually For the pumposes of impaiment testing, goodwill 1s aliocated to 2ach
of the Group’s cash-generating units expected o benefit from the synergies of the combination Cash-generating uriis 1o which goodwill has
been allocated are tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be impaired 1If the recoverable
amount, being the value In use or - where relicbly measurable - far value less costs 1o sell, of the cash-generating unit 1s less than the camying
amount of the unit, the mpairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the camying amount of any goodwall allocated fo the unit and then to the

other assels of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit An Impairment loss recognised for goodwill 1s not
reversed in o subsequent penod

Cn disposal of a subsidiary, the attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s included 1n the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

(k} Other infangible assets

intangible assets lother than goodwilll acquired by the Group as part of a business combinahion are stated at farr value and are amortised
on a staight-ine basis over ther expected useful ives The amortisation 1s shown as port of adminisirative expenses within the Consohdated
Staternent of Comprehensive Income

Intemally generated infangible assets aasing from the Group s development of software are recogrised only 1f all of the following conditions are
met

+ an asset Is created that can be identfied,
* it ts probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and
= the development cost of the asset can be meosured reliably

Internally generated imangible assets are amortised on a straight-iine basls over thelr useful lives commencing on the date they come info use

The esimated useful lives are as follows

Brands/frademaiks - 20 years

Customer relattonships - Cver the confractual lem or 6 years In absence of a specified tern

Computer software - 3to 5 years [
Acquired candidate databose - 3 to 10 years 1
Knowledge database - 2 years ‘
Non-compete agreements - 5 years
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Infangible assets other than goodwill, with finite lives are subject to impaimnent lests whenever evenis or changes in arcumstances indicate that
their camying amount may not be recoverable When the camying value of an asset exceeds Its recoverable amount, being the value in use or -
where reliably measuioble - farr volue less costs to sell the asset is wniten down accordingly Impaimment of other Infongible assets 1s included in
operating expenses n the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income

i Property, plant and equipment

liems of propery, plant ond equipment are inihially recogrused of cost As well as the purchase pnce, cost includes directly attabutable costs All
itemns are comed at depreciated cost

Depreciation 15 provided on a striaight-line basls to wnie off the cost, less estimated residual values, of propery plont and equipment over their
expeded useful lives 1115 calculoted ot the foilowing rates

Impravernents o leasehold buidings - Qver the leose term
Motor vehicles - 4 years
Office ond computer equipment - 3to 8years

An assef's canying amount 1s watten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the canying amount 1s greater than its estimated recoverable
amount

(m) Impairment of assets

A financial asset 15 assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that 1t 1s Impaired A financial asset is
considered to be imparred If objeciive evidence indicates that ona or more events has had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows
of that asset For certain categones of financial assets, such as frade recevables, assets that are assessed not 1o be imparred individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collechve basis Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past expenence of collecting poyments an increase in the number of delayed payments In the portiolio, as well as observable chonges
in nchonal or local ecenomic condiions that comelate with defaults on recevables

The camying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impatment loss directly for oll financial assets with the excephon of trade recevables
where the camying amount 1s reduced through the use of an dllowance occount When a trade recevable 1s considered uncollectible, it 1s watien
off against the allowance account Subsequent recovenes of amounis previously witten off are credited against the allowance account Changes
In the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(n} Leased assets

Where substanhally off of the nsks and rewards inaidentcl to ownership of a leased asset have been transferred fo the Group la finance lease’,
the asset 1s freated as if it had been purchased outright The amount inttially recogrised as an asset Is the lower of the farr value of the leased
assel and the present value of the minimum lease poyments payoble over the term of the lease, each detemmined at the inception of the lease
The comresponding leose commitment is shown in the Consolidated Statement of Financlal Position as a finance lease obligation

Lease poyments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the finance lecse obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the lability Finance expenses are recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Where substantially all of the nsks and rewards incidental 1o ownership are not transferred to the Group lan ‘operating lease) the total rentals
payable under ihe lease are charged to the Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straighi-line basis over the lease tem The
oggregate benefit of lease incentives 1s recognised as a redudlion of the rental expense over the lease term on @ straight ine bosis Provision 1s
made for dilapidation costs expected to be incurred af the end of the lease term under tenant repainng leases

{o) Sdles ledger credits

From fime-to-ime 1 the United Kingdom the Group receives payments which are in excess of the amounts which the Group s accounting records
show as due The reasons include duplicate paymenis, credit notes not taken by customers and payments by customers who are “self biling”
which are higher than our calculation of the omounts due These matters are investigated ond wherever possible the overpayments are resotved
with the paying chent and appropnate accounting entries made If, after actively seeking to resolve the balance 1t remans unresolved beyond

the period set out in the Statute of Limitations {six yearsl, the amount is credited to the Consoelidated Statement of Comprehensive Income The
balance of sales ledger credits at the period end 1s shown within creditors

(p) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognised in the Group's Statement of Financial Position when the Group becomes a party to the
confractual provision of the instrument
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The Group dassifies its financtol assets and habilities Into one of the following categones, depending on the purpose for which the asset or hability
was acquired The Group's accounting policy for each category 1s as follows

Financia) assets:

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or deterrminable payments that are not quoted 1n an aclive market They anse pancipally
through the provision of services to customers lirade recelvables! They are initially recogrised at fair value and subsequently ot amortised cost
Impairment provisions are recognised where there is emdence that the Group will be unable 1o collect ali of the amounis due under the terms of
the receivable Trade recewables are reported net of Impaiment provisions which due 1o the nature of the custorner base are nol signficant The
Group's receivables comprise trade and other receivables in the Consolidated Staternent of Financial Posiion

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafis are shown within
curren! habilties on the Consolidated Sialement of Financgial Posiion and are included within cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the
Consolidoted Statement of Cash Flows

Derivative financial instruments and hedging acfivities Denvafives, including the embedded denvative within the Zero Coupon Loan Note are
intlally recogrised ot far value on the date a derivalive contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at therr fair value shrough the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income unless the denvative 1s designated tin a hedging relationship

The Group holds a number of interest rate instruments, protecting a portion of the Group's borowings against movements in Interest rates Hedge
accounting 1s applied to financal assels and financial hiabiliies only where all of the followsng cnterla are met

+ ot the inception of the hedge there I1s a formal designation and documentation of the hedging relationship and the Group's nsk management
objective and strategy for undenaking the hedge,

+ for cash flow hedges the hedged item in a forecast transaciion presents an exposure to varialions In inferest cash flows that could ulimately
offect profit or loss on ther scheduled payment dates,

« the cumulative change in the value of the hedging iInstrument 1s expected fo be between 80-125% of the cumulative change in the foir value
or cash flows of the hedged item atinbutable o the nsk hedged lie # ts expected 1o be hughly effectivel

+ the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured

+ the hedge remains highly efiective on each date +t is tested The Group tests the effectiveness of is hedges twice a year, ot each extemal
reporting date

The Group only holds two deavative instruments which are not economic hedges, the Interest rate swaps s required as part of the Refinancing

Cash flow hedge Effeciive hedges which are used to manage cash flow mterest rate nsk are measured at farr value with changes in farr
value recognised directly in equiy The gain or loss relating fo any ineffective portion is recognised directly in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income within finance Income or expense When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold or when a hedge no longer meets
all the cntena for hedge accounting, hedge accounting 1s stopped immediately and any cumulative goin or loss existing in equity at that fime
remams in equity and 1s recognised when the forecast fransaction 1s ulimately recognised in the Consclidated Sictement of Comprehensive
Income When a forecast transachon 1s no longer expected to occur the cumulative gain or loss that was reported In equity 15 Immedtotely
transferred 1o the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income within finance income or expense

There were no new financial instruments entered into dunng the year ended 31 December 2011 that were effective hedges and therefore hedge
accounting was not applied

Other financial liabilities:
Trade payables and other shon-term monetary iobilities These are inimally recognised o far value and subsequently af amorised cost

Zefo Coupon Loon Notes These are inlfially recognised at fair value, being the present value af the ttme of 1ssue of future cosh payments

to extinguish the Instrument They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effeciive inferest method wath interest expense
recogrised on an effectve yield basis

The effeciive interest methed ts a method of calculoting the amorised cost of a financial habilty and of allocating Interest over the relevant penod
The effective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cosh payments through the expected Iife of the finanaia! liability or,
where appropnate, a shorter pened to the net canying amount on inihal recogniion

Bonk borrowings These habilities are inhally recognised ot the amount advanced net of any transaciion costs directly atinbutable to the issue of
the instrument The costs of raising the finonaing are offset against the loan amount and are amertised over the term of she loan and ore Included
within finance costs on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income When loans are refinanced drawings under the
existing faciliies are esther extinguished or modifed Where fociliies are extinguished the balance of unomortised fees are watten off 1o Finance

Expense Where modified the unamortised fees are carned forward in the Consolidated Staternent of Financial Position to be written off over the
term of the modified faciliies
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{qQ) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when ihe Group has a present obligation {legal or constructivel as a result of a past event 1t is probable that the Group
will be reguired to settle thal obligation and a reliable estimaie can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recagnised as a provision ts the best estimate of the consideration required fo settle the present obligation at the date of the
Consclidoted Statement of Financial Posiion, taking 1nto account the asks and uncerainties sunounding the obligation Where a provision Is
measured using the cash flows estimated to setie the present obligation, its carying amount 1s the present value of those cash flows

Obhgahons ansing under onerous contracts are recogrised and measured as provisions An anerous contract 1s considered 1o exist where the
Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the econormic benefits expected to
be received under it

A resfructunng provision 1s recognised when the Group has developed ¢ detalled formal plan for the restructunng and has raised a vald
expectation in those affected that it wall camy out the restructunng by starting to implement the plan or announcing its rmain features to those
dffected by it The measurement of a restructunng provision includes only the direct expenditures ansing from the restructunng which are those
amounis that are both necessanly entalled by the restruciunng and not asseciated with the ongoing activifies of the Group

Contingent labilihes are possible abligations which anse from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whoily within the coniral of the Group Provision 1s not made for any liability which could
anse In the future but significant contingent liabilhes are reported In Note 28

( Share capital

Fingncial instruments issued by the Group are freated as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definbon of o financiol hability The
Group's ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments

{s) Dividends

Finat dvidends are recognised as a kability i the year in which they are declared and approved by the Company's shareholders in the AGM
Intenm dividends are recognised when they cre paid

(tt Parent Company

The Financial Siatements of the Parent Company Healthcare Locums plc have been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP The Company
Financial Stafements are presented separately on pages 81 to 91

The pnncipal subsidianes of the Parent Company ore listed on page 87

(1) Highlighted items

Where cenain items of operating expense or income recorded in a penod are matenal by their size or incidence the Group reflects such items as
highlighted tems and these are shown separately in the Consclidated Staternent of Comprehansive Income and disclosed in detall in the Notes
to the Financial Statements Highlighted rrems may include costs associated with restructunng the business, incremental costs of siaff working
directly on restructunng and refinancing, one-off gains and losses, imparment of goodwill and intangible assets In addiion armounts of finance
income or expense which are matenal by therr size or incidence are disclosed in detail in the Notes fo the Financial Statements

(v Adjusted operating profit

Ad(usted operating profit 15 operating profil before share-based payments charges or credits and before highlighted tems The Board considers
adjusted operating profit 1o be a better indicator of performance than operating profit as highlighted items being excephional in their nature by

vitue of size or incidence, distort the results of the underlying business Adjusted EBITDA 1s adjusted operating profit before charging depreciation
and amorisation

(w} Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions regarding the fuiure Eshimates ond judgements ore continually evaluated based on histoncal
expenence and other factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the arcumsiances In the future,
actual expenence may differ from these eshimates and assumptions The estmates and assumphons that have a significant nsk of causing o
matenal adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabiliies within the next financia! year are discussed below

Measurement of intangible assets and confingent consideration en acquistion The allocanon of the purchase pnce and valuation of contingent
consideration requires management to make significant estimates N determining fair values, especially for intangible assets and contingent
consideration These estimates are based on histoncal expenence, information obtained from the management of the acquired businesses,
relevant market and industry data and the forecast peformance of the acquired businesses These estimates can include but are not imited
to the cash flows that an asset 1s expected to generate in the future, the appropnate discount rate the useful lives of iInfangible assets ond
probahilities of achievement of financial fargets under contingent cansideration arangements These estmates are inherently unceran and
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unanticipated events and arcumstances moy occur, which may offect the accuracy or vakdity of such estimates To assist in making these
significant estimates the Company engages expert professional valuers to assist with maienal acquisiions Management monitors the carrying
values of ossets and adjustments are made If future market condihens indicate that such adjustments are appropnate

Impairment of goodwill The Group 1s required fo test on at least an annual basis, whether goodwill has suffered any iImpairment The
recoverable amount 1s determined based en the higher of value i use calculations or the farr value less costs 1o sell method These both
require the estimation of future cash flows and the choice of a discount rafe In order to calculate the present value of the cash flows Actual
outcomes may vary More informahion on camying values 1s included in Note 14

Contractual claims and regulatory contingencies. The Group conducts its business prncipally in the UK and Australia and confractual claims

or regulatory proceedings may anse The Group estimates and provides for potental fosses that may anse out of Iitigation and regulatory
proceedings to the extent thal such losses are probable and can be estimated In accordance with 1AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Conhngent Assets Confingencies in resped of these matters are subject to many uncerainties and the outcome of iIndvidual matters 1s not
predictable with assurance Significant judgrnent is required in assessing probability and making estimates in respect of contingencies and the
Group s final liability may ultimately be matenally different from that estimated Provisions in respect of legal claims contfractual and regulatory
praceedings are deterrnined on a case by case basis and represent an estimate of probable losses after considenng arnong other faciors

the progress of each case, the Group's expenence of others In similar coses and the views of legal counsel Where no estimate con be reliably
made of the likely outcome of any claims, and they are potentally matenal, those claims are disclosed as contingent habilities Note 28]

Uncenain tax posthons Uncertain tax positions may cnse where the Directors have had to make paricutar judgments in relation to cerain
tax fregtments Based on the status of enquines with the relevant tax authonties and consideration of tox legislanon the Group estmates
and provides for potential losses that may anse fram uncera:n income tax positions to the extent that such losses are probable and can be
eslimated, In accordance with 1AS 12 - Income Taxes MHowever, significant judgrnent 1s required 1n making these estimates, particularly In
relation 10 the recovery of losses, and the Group s final llabiibes may ulimately be matenally different

Estimation of useful economic lives of long-fived assets The economic life used fo amorise infangible assets and depreciate propeny, plant and
equipment relates to the future performance of the assets In question and management's judgment of the penod over which the economic
benefit will be denved from the asset

As at 31 December 2011 the amount of propery, plant and equipment iIncluded in the Consolidated Statement of Finanaial Poson was
£20m (2010 Restated £2 5mi

As at 31 December 2011, the omount of infangible assets included in the Consolidated Staternent of Financial Poshion was £53 9m (2010
Restated £756ml

Employee benelits provision In Australic employees, Including locums, are entitied to long sevice leave after ten years senvice [subject to
specific ules and condirons which vary siate by statel In deternining the amount of the employee benefits provision, representing the volue of
expected future payments to be made in respect of sences provided by employees up to the date of the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position the Cirectors consider salary levels, the past expenence of employee departures and perods of sevice As at 31 December 2011 the
omount provided for in the Consolidated Siatement of Enancicl Pasition was £2 8m {2010 £3 6mi

Zero Coupon loan Notes The Zero Coupon Loan Noles were 1ssued dunng the year as par of the Refinanang The nominal value of the Zero
Coupon Loan Notes was discounted to far value at a rate of 15% which the Directors considered fairly represented the retum a non-senior
lender would seek from the Company for a loan matunng in September 2021 The Directors assessed at the date of 1ssue and at the year end
the lkelihood of further Zero Coupeon Loan Notes being issued if future EBITDA or enferpnse value targets are achieved

4 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

The segmental analysis provided below represents the information presented to the Board of Directors, which is the Chief Operating Decision
Maker as defined by IFRS 8

In the UK the Group provides locum recruiment services for health and social care staff, being doctors, nurses, Allied Health Professionals FAHPY
and Qualifted Sociol Workers £QSW The permonent placement business which places staff in each of these sectors 1s managed as o separate
segment Australio 1s also manoged as o separate, single segment Dunng the year ended 31 December 2011 placement of theatre nurses,
which was previously included within AHP, was moved to the nurses segment Prior year segmental information has been restated to reflect the
current reporhing shuclure

The Board views these six as ifs principal business segments and regularly reviews information on the revenue, cost of sales and gross profits
of ecch of these business segments The Board considers gross profit to be its cument, consistent measure for determining segment profitability
It being the contnbution generated towards overheads It does nol receive segment information on the costs below gross profil or on assets
and habilihes by segment For 2012 operating costs will be charged o each division, either directly or by a central allocation, and this enhanced
dvisonal analysis will be reported in accounts beginning with the Intenm Resulis for the six months to June 2012
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Year ended 31 December 2011

Restated yeor ended 31 December 2010

Revenue Gross profit Revenue Gross profi
£m £m £m £m

UK.
Locum doctors 255 3.7 337 63
tocum Qualified Soaal Workers 26.5 46 356 68
Locum Allied Health Professionals (restated) 3046 82 470 147
Locum nursing lrestated) 252 6.9 263 70
Permanent placements 26 2.6 39 e
Inter-segment (0.1} - (06 04
Total UK 1103 26.0 1459 383
Australia 1168 23.7 g0 24
Conhnuing operations 2271 49.7 1549 407
Operaling expenses {50 8) {437
Goodwill impairment - 151 4)
Net exceptionals 9 6) 48
Loss from operations o7 5921
Finance incorme 245 20
Finance expense (26 7} 64
Loss before taxation from confinuving operations 29 636

infer-segment adjustments represent removal of the overapping commission revenue from placements recognised by two or more segments
revenue and cost of soles not allocable to the reported segments and measurement differences between the basls used to repor invoiced
transachons to the chief operating deasion maker and the basis used in the Group Financiel Staternenis

The geographical distnbution of the non-cument assets of the Group as at 31 December was as follows

2011 em A e "o
Praperty, plant and equipment o8 1.2 - 20
Goodwill 19.5 203 - 39.8
Other intangible assets 4.7 49.2 - 539
Total 25.0 70.7 - 957
2010 (Restated) é’rﬁ AUS"‘:._'L?I 0'2:1' T?fnl
Property plant and equipment 09 15 01 25
Goodwill 195 267 - 462
Other intanglble assets 57 699 - 756
Total 261 381 01 1243

Al 31 December 2009 all the assets of the Group were In the UK.

Seporate entiies operating cs registered NHS Trusts in the UK are considered a single customer by the Group Of the tolal Group revenue, NHS Trusis
accounted for 32 4% (2010 66 1%} The decrease 1s due 1o the inclusion of a full year's revenue from HCA. There were no other single custorners
contnbuting more than 10% of Group revenue in 2011 or 2010

As an addimondl voluntary disclosure the analysis of operating expenses 15 as follows

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2011 December 2010

£m £m

UK-based adrministration expenses including comporate) 288 385
Depreaation amortisafton and share scheme movemenis 10 25
29.8 410

Ausiralia-based adminisiration expenses 150 23
Depreaaton and amornisation 60 04
210 27

Total 508 437
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5  EMPLOYEES
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Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2011 December 2010
£m £m

Stoff costs including Directors! comprise
Wages and salanes 26.2 229
Sociat Secunty costs 22 Z4
Long semvice leave costs 01 01
Defined contrbution pension costs 08 01
Share-based payment lcredit / charge (Note 32) {0 5) 06
288 261
Yeor ended 31 Year ended 3)
December 2011 December 2010
The average number of employees dunng the year was 583 442

The average number of employees for 2010 includes an average for the year in Austraba of ten, although the majonly of Australia-based
employees joined the Group on 20 December 2010 and the aciual number of employees dunng the penod of ownership, excluding Homecare

employees was 230 The costs include the post acquisifion costs only

6  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Year ended 31 Yeor ended 31

December 2011 December 2010

£m £m

Emoluments 16 i0
Benefits 01 -
Bonuses 02 -
Share-based payment [credd] / charge 0 4) 02
15 12

The Board has determined that the Directors are the key management personnel

Pension contnbutions of £3 563 {2010 £14 250 were paid on behalf of one forrmer Director

Further detall on Directors remuneration and the interests of the Directors over unissued ordinary shares pursuant to share ophions granted by the

Company are disclosed in the Report on Remuneration on page 30

7 NET EXCEPTIONAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31

Restated yeor ended

December 2011 31 December 2010
£m £€m

Exceptional operating income/lexpense),

Reorganisation and refinancing costs

Restructunng costs {18) 03
Refinancing addiional costs (0.7) -
Australia — integrction costs 06) 04
Onerous leases o7 07
(38) (14l
lLossl / gan on fair value changes in contingent and deferred consideration Note 171 (29) 42
tnveshganion and resolution of accounting inegulanties (29) -
Acquisifion related fransaction costs [Note 17) - 28
Costs related to advice concerming possible disposal of business - {1 4
imparrment of propery, plant and equipment iNote 16) - 07
impaiment of other Intangible assets Note 15) - 27
Net exceptional operating expenses (9.6} (48}
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Recrganisaiion and refinancing cos!s in 2011 include
Restructunng costs pnmanly related to redundancies and office relocation costs
Refinanaing addimonal costs includes the incremental costs of staff wholly or predominantly, invotved in work related to the Refinanang

The nveshigation and resolution of the occounting imegulanhies includes extemal professional advisers and the incremental costs of staff wholly or
predominantly, invalved in work relating to the investigation

The 2010 figures are restated for the addimonal mpaiment of the fixed assets of the Soaal Care division as reported In Note T The reorganisation costs in
2010 pnnapally included employee redundancy costs, relocation of offices associated with the ongoing off-shonng of back and middle office funchons 1o
India and also the ongaing restructunng within the QSW division Prowision for onerous lease contrads in 2010 were as a result of lease liabilties acquired
on the acquishions of Onon Locurns Lirmited FOnon™ and MIC Locumns Umited MV, for which the Group then deaded to close the offices following the
acquisitions

The tax effect of the above exceplional tems 1s ¢ tax credit of £0 1m for Austreha 12010 £rill There 1s no lax effect in relation to the UK

exceptional items (2010 £1 2m credit

8  LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operahions for the year has been amved at cfter charging / {crediiingl the following

Year ended 31 Yeor ended 31
Dacember 2011 December 2010
£m £m
Amorisation of cther intangible assets 64 16
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 11 06
Foreign exchange losses {os) 073)
Hire of other ossets - operating leases 07 09
Shore-based payments (credits) /charges (Note 321 {0 5} 06
Gain on disposal of propery plant and equipment {01) -
Fees payable to the Company s current auditor far
- audit of the Company's annual accounts 02 -
- gudit of the Company's subsidianes o1 -
Fees payable fo the Company’s previous auditor for
- audit of the Company's annual accounts - 05
- audit of the Company's subsidicnes o1 02
- other semvices - 01
9 FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2011 December 2010
Finance income em £m
Exceptional finance income
Refinancing - difference between fair value of shares 1ssued fo Ares Lux and the mezzanine finance
refired {Note 25¢i %9 -
Fair vatue adjustment on Zero Coupon Loan Note {Note 25¢} 77 -
Bank debt wawved INote 257 59 -
Accrued interest payable wntten off in Refinancing (Note 251 06 -
241 -
Interest received on bank deposits 0.1 -
Foreign exchange gains 02 15
Gain on far value changes in denvative financial instruments 01 05
245 20
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Year ended 31 Year ended 33
Daecember 2011 December 2010
Finonce expense £m £m
Exceptional finance expense
Bank fees relating 1o debt repaid written off (Nate Z5g) 44 -
Professional fees of Banks adwisers (Note 25h 3.0 -
Adwisers fees on the Refinancing INote 25hi 25 -
Warrant option wnitten off Note 21! 2.6 -
Forex on Refinancing 03 -
Arrangernent fee on ACE Uimited facility Note 25(blivil 02 -
130 -
Bank loans and overdraits 124 34
Amorisation of fees 1.0 03
Loss on fair volue changes in denvative financial instruments - 25
Finance lease interest 02 02
Imputed interest on Zero Coupon Loan Notes {Note 24) 01 -
267 64

The Group did not apply, in either 2011 or 2010, cash flow hedge accounting in respect of the deavative finoncal instruments previously
designated in a hedge relationship or to new instruments acquired dunng the yeor Accordingly all fair value changes were recognised in the
Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive incorme In pnor years were recyded to
the Consolidated Siaiement of Comprehensive Income upon settlement of relaled hedging insiruments i 2010

10 TAX BENEHRT

Restated
Year ended 31 year ended 31
December 2011 Cecember 2010
£m £m
UK corporation fax — current year - -
UK corporation tax — pnor year {0 8) -
Overseas tax — current year 04) -
Camy back to pnor year - 11
Current tax credit (1.2} 1]
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences {14) 14
Total tox benefit on continuing operations {2 6) 25
The tax benefit assessed for the penod 15 lower than the standard rate of corporation tax i the UK. The differences are explained below
Restated
Year ended 31 yeorl ended 31
December 2011 December 2010
£m £m
Loss before taxation (including disconhnued operations) {11.1} 63 6l
Tax at the standard rate of comoration tax in the UK of 26 5% (2010 - 28%! 2.9 178l
Effects of
Expenses not deduchble for tax purposes 343 123
Non-taxable income (30 -
Cver provision In pnor years (0 8} -
Unrecognised potantial deferred tax assets 14 30
Impact of overseas tax 03) -
Total tax benefit for the year {including discontinued operahons) (22) [2.5)
Represented by
Tax on continuing operations (2 6) (2 5
Tax on discontinued operations 04 -
{2 2) 25
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11 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, NET OF TAX

On 27 June 2011 the Group announced that its wholly owned Australian subsidiary HCA, had agreed to sell its Homecare division to KinCare
Health Sewvices Pty Lirmited The sale was completed on 18 July 2011

The disposal enables HCL fo focus on the development of the core UK and Australian businesses and realise value fiom non-core elements of
the bustness which would have required further investment 1o realise their true potential The net proceeds were used to reduce the Group's debt

The net assels sold compnsed

em
Property, plant and equipment 02
Intangible assets — goodwill 66
Intangible assets - other 159
Deferred tox asset 04
Trade and other recelvables 44
Assets sold 275
Trade and ather payables (1 6)
Shor-term provisions 18
Long-term provisions (02
Deferred tax llabikty (4.3)
Lohilities transfered {7 9}
Net assefs sold 196
Disposal proceeds 22,7
Costs of sale {2.4)
Net proceeds of disposal 203
Net gain on disposal 07

There was no tax effect from the disposal

The results of trading ond cash flows for the current year fo the date of disposal and the pror year from the date of acquisition were as follows

1 January to 17 July

20 December to 31

2011 December 2010

£m £m

Revenue 163 23
Cost of sales (11.5) 07
Gross profit 48 06
Administrative expenses (33) {05l
Cther operating expenses {04) o1
Profit from operations 1.1 -
Finance expense inet! - -
Profit before taxation 11 -
Tox lexpense (04) -
Profit for the period 07 -
Operating cash flows 13 03
Financing cash flows {0.1) -
Tota! cash flows 1.2 03
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Restated
Year ended 31 year ended 31
December 2011 December 2010
Number "000 Number 000

Number of ordinary 10p shares
Weighted average number of shares 334,075 108768
Calculation of adjusted earmings for the year: £m £m
Loss for the year from continuing operations (103} 61 1)

Ad|ustrnents

Goodwill impairment - 514
Net excephional operoting expenses [Note 7} 96 48
Share-based payment [credits] charges (o 5) 06
Exceptional finance income {Note 9) (241) -
Exceptional finance expense iNote 9) 130 -
{20} 5568
Tax effect of abave items on 02
Post tax adusiments 21) 556
Adjusted loss for the year from continuing operations {130} 155
£amings per share from continuing operations Pence Pence
Basic and dilutive eamings per share (31) 156 21
Adusted basic and dilutive egmings share (37) 1511
£m £m
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 1.4 -
Earnings per share from discontinued operations. Pence Pence
Basic and dilutive eamings per share 04 -

The restatement of the 2010 eamings per share relates to the pror year adiustment of the Social Care goodwill and other asset Impaiments as

disclosed in Note 1 and o comrecton of the calculated tax effect of the adustments as noled below The amounts reported last year were 50 Op for

basic and diluted loss per share and 18 5p for adjusted basic and diluted foss per share

Dunng the preparation of the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 1t became apparent that the tax effect

of adjusting tems for eamings per share 'EPS’] purposes presented in Note 10 1o the Consolidated Finanaiol Statements for the year ended 31
December 2010 was misstated The note presented the tox effect of adjusting items as £13 3m but 1t should have been £68m The impact of this
rastalement would have been fo reduce the adjusted lass by £12 5m from ¢ loss of £20 1m 1o a loss of £7 6m Afer incorperating the £0 4m tax
credit in relation to the pror year adjustment for Social Care the fotal resiated tax effect of adjusting tems 15 £1 2m as stated in the table above,

and reduces adjusted basic loss per ordinary share by 13 4p from 18 5p to 5 1p as stated in the table above

In prepanng the adjusted eamings per share for 2011 the gain on inter-company financing with Austratia was excluded as it 1s not a one-off

credit The £1 5m booked as an adjusting enlry 1n the 2010 eamings per share calculation has been eliminated

Loss per share from continuing and disconfinued operations in 2011 was 2 7p per share and adjusted loss from continuing and discontinued

operations was 3 3p per share

Af 31 Decermnber 2011 there were 175,495 (2010 4019,281) potentially dilutive share oplions and zero {2010 2,943,453 potenhially dilutive
warranis which have not been ncluded above as they do not offect EPS on the basis that they are not currently dilutive

59




Healthcare Locums ple Annual Report and Financial Siatemenis 2011

13 DIVIDENDS

Yeor ended 1 Year ended 31
December 2011 December 2010
£m £m
intenm dividend of 1 8p paid on 10 Jonuary 2011 (2010 — 1 5p pard on 1 Apnl 2010) per ardinary share 21 16

relating to the previous year's resulls
Final dividend 1n 2009 of 1 9p pad on 25 June 2010 per ordinary share relaiing fo the previous year's resulfs - 20
21 36

The Directors are not proposing a final dividend for 2611 {2010 nil

As reported In the Consolidated Financial Staterments for the year ended 31 December 2010 the Board became aware that cerain of the
diidends paid under the management of the previous Board were potentially unlawful

Since the date of issue of the Consolidated Financial Stafements for the year ended 31 December 2010 further analysis has been performed After
taking legal and accouniing advice the Board has concluded that the dividend pard on 10 January 2011 was unlowful as the then Board should
have known at the date that the dividends were approved and paid that the Company had insufficient reserves avallable to make the payment

The Board has been unable as yet ta come fo a definite conclusion about the legality of the dividends paid on 1 Apnl and 25 June 2010 No action
will be taken to recover unlawful dividends from sharehalders in general However, the Board 1s considenng whether remedies are available against
former directors to recover unlawfu! dividends paid to them and damages for breach of duty In authorising the relevant dividends

14 GOODWILL

Resiated” Total

£m

Cost
At 1 Jonuary 2009 and 31 December 2009 603
Additions as reported 265
Restatement of addiions Notes 1 and 17 99
Effect of movements in foreign exchange las reported) 06
Restatement of the effect of movermnents in forelgn exchange Note 11 03
At 31 December 2010 976
Disposals (6 5)
Effect of movemenis in foreign exchange 0.1
At 31 December 2011 912
Impairment-
Al 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2007 -
Charge i the year as ornginally reported 460
Restatemnent (Note 1) 54
At 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011 514
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2011 398
At 31 December 2010 lreslated) 462
Al 31 December 2009 603
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Restated!

31 December 2011 31 December 2010 31 December 2009

m £m £m

Doctors - - 224
Social Care - - 206
Alled Health Professionals 80 107 173
Nursing 15 a8 -
Australig 203 267 -
Total 39.8 462 603

N1 The amount reparted far Australic in the 2010 Finoncial Statements was £16 5m Prior yeor odjustments as reported In detall In Note 1 and Note 17 for LML of £0 7m ond for HCA
of £9 5m Increased the amount in the restoled Consolidated Statement of Financial Postion $o £26 7m The armount reperted for Socal Care was €5 4m o 31 December 2010 As

reported In Note 1 this amount has been fully impatired by ¢ prier year adjustment

As a result of the transfer of the theatre nurses operations from the AHP segment o the Nursing segment £2 7m of associated goodwill was

tfransferred between those segments dunng 2011

At 31 December 2011 goodwill was tested for impaiment The recoverable amounts of all the cbove segments were determined from value In
use calculations, based on cash flow projections from the formally approved budget for 2012 formally approved forecasts for 2013 and 2014 and

estirnates for subsequent years

The impaiment charge taken in 2010 reflected a revision in the assessment of the future cash flows from the business due fo reduced margins

and changes In the NHS pracurement practices

The key assumphons in the value in use calculations for 2011 and 2010 were

« Risk-free rate — 21% {2010 4 1%,

» Equity market nsk premium - 7 2% (2010 5%,
» Beta 1195 (2010 109,

« Small stock premium 6% (2010 5%,

= Gross cost of debt, inclusive of amorisation of fees, 11 0% 12010 7 2%l
+ Expected long-term tax rate - 25% UK 30% Australia (2010 25% and 30%),

« Zero Coupon Loan Notes discount rate 15% (2010 not applicablel

+ The post-tax discount rate used was 11 76% for UK operations and 11 72% for Australian operations, based on the estmated pre-tax discount

rate of 1568% (2010 16 67% and

+ Long-term revenue growth estimate 2% for the UK operations and 2 5% for the Australian operations {2010 2% for both the UK and Australial

Bosed on the siated assumptions there was no impairment of goodwill at 31 December 2011 To assess the likelthood of an impairment
changes fo the assumphions were made singly and In combination, including a 1% Increase 1n the welghted average cost of capital reducing

the revenue growth estimate to 2%, reducing the gross margin by 1% None of these Indicated a need for an impaiment charge

If the discount rate used In 2010 had been decreased or increased by 2% the iImparment amount would have been lower by £2 7m or higher by

£2 0, respechively
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15  OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer Computer c::g;ﬂx Brands and Knowledge Non-compete
relationships softwara database trademarks database ogreements Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost:
At 1 January 2009 40 60 - - 01 - 101
Additions - 16 - - - - 16
Disposals - {01] - - - - 01
At 31 December 2009 40 75 - - o1 - 116
Acquistions 274 06 131 321 - 05 737
Additions - 05 - - - - 05
Disposcls - 10 5 - - - - t0 5
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 08 - 04 i0 - - 22
At 31 December 2010 322 81 135 331 01 05 875
Addiions - 04 - - - - 04
Transter fo property, plant & equipment - 02l - - - - (02)
Disposals {7 5) (13) (33 {5.3) {0.1) - {17 5)
Written off - (5.6) - - - - {5 6)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 02 - 01 02 - - 05
At 31 December 2011 249 14 10.3 280 - 05 651
Amaortisation.
At 1 January 2009 10 08 - - 01 - 19
Provided for the year 05 05 - - - - 10
lmpairment - 53 - - - - 53
Disposals - 011 - - - - 01}
At 1 January 2010 15 65 - - 01 - 81
Provided for the year 08 04 03 01 - - 16
Disposals - Y] - - - - 05
Impairrment as previously reporied 07 06 - - - - 13
Impaiment {paor year adiustment (Note 1)) 13 01 - - - - 14
At 31 December 2010 43 71 03 c1 01 - 19
Pravided for the year 29 03 14 17 - 01 64
Disposals {0 3) (0 8) (0.2) 072 {01} - {1 6)
Wrtten off - (5.6) - - - - {5 6)
Efiect of movements In foreign exchange - - - 01 - - 01
At 31 December 2011 69 10 1.5 1.7 - 01 112
Net book value:
At 31 December 2011 180 04 8.8 263 - 04 53¢
At 31 December 2010 [Restated) 279 10 132 330 - 05 756
At 31 December 2009 25 10 - - - - 35

At 31 December 2011 computer software included £0 2rm under construction (2010 £nill The Group amortises infangible assets from the dote the
assels are ready fo use

Bank loans are secured on all assets of the Group

The osset Iives of the matenal intangible assels have been assessed at 20 years for brands ond trademarks ond ten years for the main acquired
candidate dotabase Customer relationships are amorised over the life of the contracts
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Office and
improvements to computer
leasehold buildings equipment Motor vehicles Total
gm £m em em

Cost-
At 1 Januaory 2009 09 19 - 28
Additions - 04 - 04
Disposals - {09l - 09
At 31 December 2009 09 14 - 23
Acquistion 06 07 02 15
Addihons 02 1 - 13
Disposals 102l 1051 - (07
At 31 December 2010 15 27 02 34
Additions 03 04 - 07
Transfer from intangible assets - 02 - 02
Disposals {0.3) (0.5} {01) {0 9)
At 31 December 2011 15 28 a1 44
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 Jonuary 2009 05 12 - 17
Provided for the year 01 04 - 05
Disposals - {09 - {09
At 31 December 2009 06 07 - 13
Prowided for ihe year 01 05 - 06
Imparmen! as reperted In 2010 - 04 - 04
Impairment pnor year adustment (Note 1 - 03 - 03
Disposals o2 05 - Q7
At 31 December 2010 05 14 - 19
Provided for the year 03 08 - 11
Disposcls {0 3) (03} - (0 6)
At 31 December 2011 05 19 - 2.4
Net book value-
At 31 December 2011 10 09 01 20
Al 31 December 2010 fos restated) 10 13 02 2.5
A1 31 December 2009 03 07 - 10
Assets included gbove held under finance leases (Note 21}
Net book valve
At 31 December 2011 - 01 - 01
At 31 Decermnber 2010 03 08 - 09
At 31 Decernber 2009 - 04 - 04
Depreciation charge.
Year ended 31 December 2011 - 03 - 03
Year ended 31 December 2010 - 0¢ - 04
Year ended 31 December 2009 01 03 - 04

Bank loans are secured on all assets of the Group

63



Heglthcare Locums plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2011

17 ACQUISITIONS

There were no acquisifions duang the year ended 31 December 2011 However, followang a futher review of the ossets and liabiliies acquired with LML
and HCA, the Group has made pnor year adjusiments, as disclosed in Note 1 and in part el of this nole As a result of making the paor year adiustments
set out below 1s the revised iable of the 2010 acquisiions

Orion and MJV LML Restoted’ Redwood HCA Restated! Tetal
em £m €m £m £m
Cash consideration 37 49 50 833 969
Confingent consideration ol acquisition date farr value) 48 12 }6 - 76
Total consideration 85 61 66 833 104.5
Fair value of assets and liabilities ccquired-
Intangible assels
Customer relationships 10 13 12 239 274
Computer sofiware - - - 06 06
Acquired candidate database 09 - 13 109 131
Brands and trademarks 09 18 04 290 3z
Non-compete agreements - 03 - - 05
28 36 29 644 737
Cash/linvoice discounting balancel acquired 10 - - 76 66
Property plant and equipment - - - 15 15
Trade and other receivables onginolly reported 15 - - 167 182
Trade and other receivables restatement [Note 1) - - - 08 08
Deferred tax asset as onginally siated - - - 48 48
Deferred tax asset restaternent (Note 1) - - - 0w {11
Trade and other payables o6 - - 138 (14 4)
Employee benefits provision - - - (35 (35
Current taxation Q2 - - (]| (@ 4
Defemred tax hability onginally repored 08 {0 51 - 72 18 5
Defered tax labiliy restaiement (Note 1 - 07 - 89 {9 &
Net assets acquired 17 24 29 61.1 681
Goodwill as previously stated 68 30 37 130 265
Goodwill restatement - 0.7 - 9.2 99
1Cf the total cash consideration £562 000 was paid [n January 2011
Transaction costs (Note 7] 0.2 07 02 1.7 28

Dunng 2010 HCL completed four acquisiions and a number of amendments to the purchase cansideration ameunts and terms were negotioted
dunng the year ended 31 Decemnber 2011 as detalled below These resulted in the following credits / (charges! which were reported within net
excephonal operating costs in the Consohidated Statement of Comprehensive Income iNote 7)

£m

a below! Onon / MUV vanaton agreement {4.5)
¢ belowt LML contingent consideration writien off 0.9
d below! Redwood vaonation agreements 07
(2.9)

fal  On 23 July 2010 the Group acquired 100% of the voting share capital of Onon, a leading nursing ond healthcare stafing Jocum business in the
UK for an inmial cash consideration of £3 200000 and 100% of the voting share capial of MUV for an iniliaf cash consideration of £500000 from
o common sharehalder, Craig Tibbles who held 100% of the 1ssued share copital of both companies. The Group also agreed to poy conbingent

consideration 1n cash on these acquistions of up o £5 600,000 for Onon and £1,400,000 for MV The fair value of the contingent consideration
at the e of acquisition was £4,780,000

following a review of post-acquisition performance to 31 December 2010 the fair value was reassessed as £548,000 and the reduction was
recognised as o goin of £4 232,000 in the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income in 2010

©n 4 January 2011 the total contingent consideration was replaced by a fixed £5,000000 of defemed consideration £2,000,000 payable in 2011

and £3 000,000 payable in 2012 following the signing of a vanation agreement and £4 452 000 was charged 1o the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive income in 2011
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As disclosed in Note 25b os part of the Refinanang Craig Tibbles agreed to accept 25,000 000 New Ordinary Shares in retum for releasing

HCL from paying £1,000.000 of the delered consideration due i 2011 and £1 500000 of the defered consideraton due in 2012 As por of
the same agreement the remaining £2,500,000 due to Craig Tibbles was amended 1o £1,000.000 payable on 3 October 2011 and £$00:000
payable on 1 October 2012 or at Craig Tibbles' elechon, £800 000 on 1 June 2012 The balance of £600,000 was released to the Consolidated
Staternent of Comprehensive Income to cover matching costs and asset wte-offs including an assessment of underpaid VAT due to Input tax
having been incomectly calculated pnor fo the acquisition

On 1 August 2010 HCL Intemanonal Pty Lid ta wholly owned Australian subsidiary of HCL acquired the business and assets of LML an
esfablished Australlan medical staffing business with a database of over 3,500 qualified doctors for an indicl cash consideration of A$7 850000
t£4 834 000) ond a contingent consideration based on post-acquisiion results of up to @ maximum of A$5000000 At the date of acquisiion

the farr value of the confingent consideraion was assessed to be A$2,000.000 (£1,232 000) Exchange rate movemnents to 31 December 2010
increcsed the contingent consideration In Siering serms fo £1,309,000 During 2011 additional consideration was eamed, based on exceading
the post-acquisition resulis targets of A$275,291 12010- A$298 1611 and both of these amounts were paid durng the year The likelihood of
meefing the remaining targets has been reviewed and the balance of the contingent consideration amaunting to A$1,426,548 I£09m) has been
whriten off 1o the Consolidated Stalement of Comprehensive Income In 2011

On 19 August 2010 Medical Technicat Lid fa wholly owned subsidiary of HCL acquired the business and cedain assets of Redwood Health
Limited [subseguently renamed os Dancorp Limited "Dancorp for an tnial cash consideration of £5 000000 and a contingent consideration

of up to o maximum of £1,650000 The far value of the contingent consideration at the date of acquisifton was £1 650,000 This was a related
pary transacton as set out In Note 31

On 25 March 2011 the tofal confingent consideration was replaced by £1,328,194 of deferred consideration following the signing of a vanation
agreament and £37) 806 was credited to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year ended 31 December 2011
£650,000 was paid dunng the year ended 31 December 2011 ond agreement was recched with the administrators of Dancom before 31
December 2011 to sefite the balance of the defemed consideration by a final payment of £325 000 {paid after the year-end) with the remaining

£353,194 credited fo the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year ended 31 December 2011 making the total amount credited in the
year £675000

On 20 December 2010 the Company acquired the entire share capital of HCA. The acquisiiion from ceron CHAMP Prvate Equity funds and

a small number of prvate Indwduals was completed for o total cash consideration of A$131 200000 lapproximately £83,345000 of which
£562 000 was defered and paid in 20111 HCA was esfablished in 2004 and 1s a leading provider of nursing agency staff to public and prvate
health institutions in Australia Approximately 40% of heatthcare in Austiahia 1s prowded by the prvate sector

As reported in Note 1, o review dunng the year ended 31 December 2011 identifed that deferred tax habiliies on tradernarks and other
infangible assets had not been recognised in the acquisition balonce sheets of LML and HCA. These deferred 1ax liabilites have now been
recognised as a prior year adjusiment In addihon a provision from a pror acquisition by HCA was recognised but not an associated asset, o
£08m (A$1 2m) escrow account, which matched the liability In addinon when completing accounts for the consolidated Australian tax group for
the tax year to June 2011 it was delermined that the deferred tax estimate in the acquisition balance sheet was understated by £1 Tm 1 7m
and the esimate 1n the acquisihon balance sheet has been comected Goodwill receivables and the deferred tax liability at 31 December 2010
were increased by £102m £08m and £11 Om respectively

Transacton costs were all expensed

The acquisitions represented o significant step fowards implementing a stated strategy of the previous Boord of establishing a significant
presence in the UK nursing recruitment market and pursuing intemational acquisiions which will generate additonal revenue outside of the UK.
The complefion of the acquisiions significantly broadened HCLU's intemational operations

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Restaled?
31 December 2011 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
£m £m £m
Trode receivables 251 286 176
Other recevables 06 31 50
Prepaymenis 10 07 12
Accrued income 3.2 47 35
299 371 273

It Qther recevables were reported In the Financial Statements at 31 December 2010 as £2 3m They have been restated to £3 1m following Ihe recagnitian of a £0 8m (AS1 2mi escrow

account of HCA omitted from the Acquisiion Balance Sheet [Nofe 1 and Note 17lell

Alt omounts shown under receivables fall due for payment within one year The ageing analysis of the trade recevables and the amounts
denorminated 1n cuirencies ciher than Sterding are set out In Note 24 There are no differences between book value and farr value of these trade

and other recevables at any reporing date
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31 December 2011

31 Decernber 2010

31 December 2009

£m £m £m

Trade creditors 58 66 21
Other taxes and soclal secunty 24 77 58
Accruals 9.0 106 52
Deferred incorme 02 06 -
Sales ledger credits 43 43 33
QOther creditors 38 37 20
255 335 184

There are no differences between book value and fair value of these trade ond other poyables at any reporting date

20  SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

31 December 2009

£m £m £m

Bank overdraft - ol _
Invoice discounting - - 116
- 01 116

21 LOANS AND LONG TERM BORROWINGS

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

31 Decernber 2009

£m £m £m
Non-current
Sieding denominated
Secured bank loans - - 56
Zero Coupon Loan Noles 2.6 - -
Obhgations under finance leases 0.1 G5 01
Unamortised debt 1ssue costs - 02
Awustrahan Dollar denominaied
Secured bank loans 38.2 - -
Unamorised debt 1ssue cosls {16} - -
Total non-current borowings 39.3 05 55
Current portion of long-term debt
Stering denomingted
Secured bank loans - 5158 43
Mezzanine finance - 300 -
Obligations under finance leases 03 ¢4 02
Unamoriised debt Issue costs - 53 02
Fair value of wamants - {29 -
Australian Dollar denomingated
Secured bank loans 1.3 430 -
Uncmomised debt issue cosls o7 23 -
Total current borrowings 09 1144 43

When prepanng the 2010 Consolidated Financial Sialements the Board believed it was probable that as at 31 December 2010 the Group wos
in default under the SFA and the MFA with 1its lenders If a default did exist then the lenders would have had the right, on service of a notice, 1o
require the loans drawn under the SFA and the MFA to be repoid iImmediately In those specific creumstances it wos considered apprapngte to
dassify all the Group's loans os cument llabiliies Following the completion of the Refinancing the Group 1s not n default and so for 31 December

2011 the porions of the loans repayable after 31 December 2012 haove been reported as non-curient abiliies

There are no differences between the book value and the fair value of the loans and long-term bomowings at erther date
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The Group capitahsed iotal fees of £07m (2010 £7 7m} paid for the loans modified during the year Fees ore amortised using the effective interest
method over the term of the respective loans The loans to which the capitalised fees o1 31 December 2010 above relote were either repald,
hence derecognised dunng the year and the appropnote proportion of unamortised fees were charged to Finance Costs, or modified n which
case the appropnate proportion of fees al the ime of the modification were camed forward

The Zero Coupon Loan Notes are siated at fair value, being the fair value recognised at date of issue plus the imputed interest to 31 December
2011 More details are set out in Note 25!

The waorrants recognised at far value of 31 December 2010 were partly amorlised dunng the year through Finance Expense ond the balonce of
£2 6m outstanding at the date of Refinanaing lapsed as par of the Refinancing of the time of the derecognition of the mezzarnine facilty and so
have been writen off o Finance Expense (Note %)

The finunce lecses are secured on the assets to which they relate The canying values of these assets are disclosed in Note 16

Future lease payments are due as follows

Minimum lecse

payments 2011 inferest 2011 Present value 2011
£m £m £m
Not loter than one year o4 01 03
Later than one year and not later than five years 0.1 - o
05 0.1 o4

Minimum lease
payments 2010 Interest 2010 Present value 2010
£m tm gm
Noi Iater than one year 06 0z 04
Later than one year and not later than five years 06 01 05
12 03 09

Minirmum lease
poyments 2009 Interast 2009  Present value 2009
fm £m £m
Net later than one year 04 01 03
Later than one year and not lader than five years 01 - 01
05 01 04
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Contingent Employee Deferred
consideration benefits Onerous loases Total provisions consideration
£m 2m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2009 12 - 12 -
Paid dunng the year na - - 02 -
At 31 December 2009 - - - - -
On acquisition
Contingent consideration 76 - - 76 -
Employee benefits (Note 17} - as - 35 -
Movement dunng the year -
Employee benefits - 01 - 01 -
Onon and MJV - farr value (Note 17) 42 - - 42 -
LML - foreign exchange vanation 01 - - 01 -
At 31 December 2010 35 36 - 71 -
Movement dunng the year
Disposol - (1.1} - 1.1) -
Onon and MJV - deed of vanation (Note 17] {05 - - {0.5) 0.5
Redwood - deed of vanation Note 17) nz - - (1.7} 17
Paid dunng the penod {04) (0.3} (0.2) {0.9} an
Applied in setilement for new shares subscnption INcte 25 (bl - - - - (2 5)
Reclassifications - - 0.9 09 {03)
Charged/lcredited! to incorne staternent (09) 06 13 10 38
At 31 December 2011 - 2.8 20 48 15
31 December 2011
Curent - 16 1.1 27 15
Nan-current - 12 09 21 -
31 December 2010
Cument 28 22 50 -
Non-curent 07 14 21 -

Cetails of the Onon MUV and Redwood contingent and deferred consideration movemenis are set out in Note 17

Employee benefits compnse long semce lecve benefils of £2,299.000 (2010 £2,767,000) and provision for paid leave of £444,000 (2010

£795,000! relating to the employees of HCA.

The onerous lease provision represents the future payments to which the Group 15 comritied on properties which were vacated pror 1o 31
December 2017 or where the infention o move was announced paor to that dafe The longest remaining lease term for any of the applicable
properties expires on 23 January 2015 Due to the relatively short fimeframe and the amounts involved, the future payments have not been

discounted as the impad would not be significant

Contingent consideration paid dunng 2009 related to the acquisition of Tempaid
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23 DEFERRED TAXATION
The movement on the deferred tax account Is shown below

Healthcare Locums plc

Accelerated GCther short-

Intungible fixed capitcl term temporary
assetls Tax losses allowances differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2009 o7 - 02 o5 -
Ansing on acquisiions os onginally reported {Note 171 85 - - {4 8) 37
Ansing on acquisiions restaternent (Notes 1 and 17) 26 03 - 14 107
gzd]ng‘dl/chorged fo income statement as onginally reponed INoles 1 05 ) 02 07 ol
Credited to income statement on restatement iNotes 1 and 10 10 4) - - - o4
Charged 1o equity - - - 12 12
Foreign exchange adjusiment as onginally reported 01 - - - 01
Foreign exchange odjustrment on restatement (Note 1) 03 - - - 03
Other 03l - - - 03
At 31 December 2010 (as restated) 180 {03) - {3 4} 143
Ansing on disposals (4 3) - - 04 {3.9)
(Credited)/charged fo income statement Note 10) (¢ R}] (0 é) - 01 {14)
Foreign exchange adjusiment 02 02
At 31 December 2011 13.0 09 - {29 92

{1} As repored in Note 1 and Note 17 the Financial Statemnenis for the year ended 31 Dacember 2010 have been restated to account for a deferred tax liability recognised on

radernatks and other intangible assets included within the assels acquired, and to reflect a comected estimate of the deferred tox liability at the date of acquisition The previously
reported figure for deferred tax on acquisitions of €3 7m has been increased by £10 7m 1o £14 4m and the foreign exchonge impact of restating the acguired amount to the 31
December 2010 rate of exchonge has been increased from £01m to £04m The charge to the Cansolidated Siatement of Cormpreheansive tncome was repoted as £10m ond
Increased to £1 4m s ¢ result of the Social Care goodwill restaternent The fotol defemed fax at 31 December 2010 was £3 7m ond the adjustments combine to Increase that

amount by £106m 1o £143m

Defemed tax has been calculated on UK and Austrahan temporary differences ot 25% and 30% respectively The UK Govemment has announced
a future decrease In the UK comoration tax rate to 24% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012, falling by a futther 1% per annum to 22% by 1 Apnl 2014

The impact of these proposed rate changes has not been reflected in the table above as they have not been substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date The impact of these rate changes would be to reduce the group's UK deferred tax balance above by £48,000 if the UK

temporary difference were all to reverse al 22%

The anclysis of the net deferred tax balance between deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities 1s as follows

At 31 December Resiated at 31
20m December 2010 At 31 December 2009
£m £m £m
Represented by deferred tax asset - - n7
Represented by deferred tax lability 92 143 17
There are unrecognised defered tax assets in respect of the following items
At 31 December Restated of 31
2011 December 2010
£m £m
UK losses 43 60
Other UK shor-term temporary differences 02 01
Accelerated capital aflowances 08 07
Australion capitel losses 38
Total 21 68

The cbove assets have not been recognised as in the opinion of the Directors it 1s not proboble that they will be recovered None of the fax losses

have an expiry dale

There are no temporary differences in refation to unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries
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The Group s inancial instruments compnse bank tem loans, Zero Coupon Loan Notes, cash and Interest rate swap agreements, trade and other
receivables and payables Balances at the year-end for these financial instruments were as follows

Maonatary assets
201 Restated 2010 2009
£m £m £m

Current financial assets
Trade and other receivables 299 371 273
Cegsh and cash equivalents 142 106 41
Teotal current financial assets 441 477 314
Analysed by currency {GBP equivalent)
Pound Stering 298 310 N3
Austrohian Dollar 143 167 C1

441 477 314

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
201t 2010 2009
em £m £m

Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 255 335 184
Short ferm borowings - 01 116
Current poricn of long-term borowings o9 1144 43
Deferred consideration 15 - -
Total current financial liabilities 279 1480 343
Non-current financial liabilities
Long-term bormmowings 393 05 55
Total non-cument financial iabiliies 39.3 05 55
Analysed by currency (GBP equivalent)
Pound Sterling 202 945 367
Austrahan Dollar 47.0 540 01

672 1485 398

Derivative finandial liabiity in an efligible hedge

Derivative financiaf liability held at foir value

relationship through profit or loss
201 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m £€m £ £m
Denvative financial habilities 03 17 17 05

The Group s bank foans of A$600m (£39 5m) (2010 A$65 7m (£430m! and £51 5m) bear interest based upon Reuters quoted market bid rates at

the ime of drawdown for the applicable drowdown period, plus a margin (2010 LBOR plus a margin! The bank loans are subject to tems and

conditions which include quarterdy mandatory prepayments from excess cash flow subjeci to adequate working capital coninuing fo be avallable

which would accelerate the repayment schedule set out below under liquidity nsk The Company 1s prohibited from paying dividends unill the
oulstanding amount under the 5FA has been reduced to less than £35m

The Zero Coupon Loan Notes of nominal £102m (2010 £nill which fall due in September 2021, bear no interest but the loon note ogreement
provides for the Issue of further Zero Coupon Loan Notes of up to £2 5m in norminal value if the Group ochieves certaln EBITDA and enterpnse
valye targets (See below for information on the fair value afinbuted to the Zero Coupon Lodn Notes and the embedded denvativel

It1s, and has heen throughout the penod under review, the Group's policy that no trading n inancial instruments shall be underaken

The Group’s activilies expose it to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk including cuirency nsk, fair value inferest rate nsk and cash flow interest

nskl credil nsk and liquidity nsk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these nsks and they are surmmansed below
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o) Market nsk
il Foreign exchange nsk

The Group had a term loan of A$60m outstanding as at 31 December 2011 {2010 A%65 7mi which exposes the Group to curency

nsk. Since the Refinancing the loan has been held within the sub-group in Austrabic and so fomns part of the AS net asseis of that sub-
group The impact of movements of the exchange rate of the A% against Sterling on net cssets pass through the translation reserve In the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Thete 1s an A$ denominated inter-company account between HCL and the Australion sub-group which gives nse to exchange gains and
losses booked in finance costs in the Consolidoted Staterment of Comprehensive Income As at 31 December 2011 the amount of A$18m
was recorded as a recevable balance in HCL At 31 December 2011 the rate of exchange was £1 = A$15195 12010 £1 - A3 5274}

As af 31 December 2011 60% {2010 67%) of the total assets of the Group were held in subsidiary companies outside the UK and i
denominated in curencies other than Steding, principally in A% Group policy 15 not to hedge the net investments in foreign operations using I
deavative financial instrumenis as 1t does not consider that the reduction in foreign curency exposure warants the cash flow nsk ¢reated

from such hedging techrmgues

If Slering had been 10% stronger against the A% dunng fhe year ended 31 Dacember 2011 with all other vanables held constant, the post
tax loss for the year would have been £09m higher (2010 £4 9m higheid

If Stering had been 10% stronger against the AS dunng the year ended 31 December 2011 with all other variables held constant the
additonal charge to other comprehensive income would have been £1 1m higher (2010 £01m lowed

i Cash flow ond fair value interest rate nsk

Market nsk also anses from the Group s use of interest beanng financial instruments, which expose the Group to interest rate nsk The Group
finances s operations through a mix of equity bank debt and loan notes Interest rate nsk ansing due to the Group s bomowings in A$

at floating rotes of interest is mitigated by agreement with the lenders, by interest rate instruments that generate a desired nsk proille 1o
manage the Group's exposure fo inferest rate fluctuations The SFA requires that of least 60% of the outstanding indebtedness 1s hedged

At 31 December 2011 67% of the A% floating rate 12010 66% of the total floating rate) interest exposure had been swapped to a fixed rote
The hedge offers protection to the Group should A% market interest rates move over 6 14% 12010 A% 6 14% and Sterling 3 305%) The last
rollover of the A% borowings prior to the year-end was based on market rates of 447%

Hedge accounting has not been apphed o the swap insiruments and therefore they are measured at foir value through the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income and a credit of £0 Tm (2010 charge of £1 7ml has been made to the Consolidated Staierment of
Comprehensive Income 1o reflect the movement in the fair value of these instruments At 31 December 2011 no instruments were recorded
in equity (2010 nonel

As of ihe close of business at 31 December 2011 interest rate exposure was imited to the unhedged 33% of the A$60m of bomowings
{2010 34% of the total borrowings! 1e on A$20m [£13 2m, offset by the cash balances of £14 2m which eam floating rate inferest income
The smpact of a 1% change (n interest rates 15 therefore not sigruficant

b}  Credit nsk

Credit nsk anses pnncipally from the Group's trade receivables and 1s the risk that the custorner fails to discharge s obligations in respedt of
the instument The Group's exposure to credit nsk 15 considered to be insignificant due to the heavy weighting of its custormer base In the
UK towards NHS Trusts 1occt authonties and cther govemment Institutions and In Australia to public hospitals and health providers Private
seclor customers are sublect fo credit checking procedures prior fo commencing frade with them The quality and hence the low nsk, of the
customner base 15 also shown by the small amounts of overdue debt None of the overdue balances of the Group are considered impaired

The Group transacts with counterparties which it considers to be creditworhy Dunng the year ended 31 December 2011 sumplus cash was

deposited with Lloyds Bank plc After the year end, as noted in liquidity nsk below, most of the surplus cash was moved to o Liquidity Fund
rmanaged by Scottish Widows which reduced the credit nsk.

Up ta 1 month 1 fo 2 months +2 months

Current overdue overdua overdue
Trade debtors 31 December 2011 £194m £35m £1 9m £0 3m
% of trade debt per ageing category — 31 December 2011 77.5% 139% 7 6% 10%
Trade debtors 31 December 2010 £214m £42m £17m £13m
% of trade debt per ageing category — 31 December 2010 746% 147% 61% 46%
Trode debtors 31 December 2009 £133m £32m £07m £04m
% of frade debt per ageing category - 31 December 2009 760% 180% 40% 20%
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€ Liguidity nsk

Liquidity nsk anses from the Group's management of working copital and the finance chorges and prnapal repayments on its debt
instruments The Board receives regular cash flow projections

Lguidity nsk anses pancipally from the volume of revenue forecast and the potential for adverse outcomes in lihgation
The factors considered by the Board in assessing going concem are sef out in Note 3lc) and the Financial Review

In December 2011 the Board approved ¢ Treasuty Policy sefing out, inter alig, how the short term cash resources should be managed Until
then, shon-term cash resources were deposited with Lloyds Bank ple Shortly after the year end, in accordance wath the Treasury Policy, the
Group opened a Liquidity Fund occount managed by Scottish Widows, a subsidiary of Lioyds Banking Group plc Liquidity Funds provide
instant access to the deposited funds The Liquidity Fund 1s rated AAA by S&P, whase rating cnlena stipulates that a minimum of 50% of

the portfolio should be composed of A-1+ lar equivalentt Instruments in order for the fund to maintain a AAA rating The methodalogy S&P
opplies fo calculate the A-1+ percentoge counts A-1 {or equivalent] rated instruments matunng In seven days or less towards the A-1+
percentage minimums, as histoncal defoult rates on A-1 paper matunng within seven doys are similar to the defoult rates of A-1+ 1ssuers
By using such funds counterpany nsk for the Group 1s reduced as the fund invests in o wide range of counterpathies

Gross, undiscounted habiittes are due as follows (2010 figures refer to the contractual payment dates for bank loans and not the
classification of those leans as curent in the Consolidated Staternent of Financlal Posiion as reported in Note 21)

Due within 1 Duein i to 2 Duain2to 5

On demand year years years  Over 5 years
£m £m em em em
2011 Non derivative financial instruments - outflows
Long ond short-term bormowings - 48 73 373 102
Finance leases - 04 [} - -
Trade and other payables - 255 - - -
Deferred consideration - 15 - - -
- 322 74 37.3 102
Derivative financial instruments - net outflows - - - 17 -
Total - 322 7.4 390 102
2010 Non denvahve financial instruments - outflows
Long and short-term bomowings' 01 166 195 1205
Finance leases - 04 05 -
Trade and other payables - 335 - -
Contingent consideration - 27 04 03
01 532 204 1208
Denvative financial instrumenis — net outflows - 12 12 23
Total 01 544 216 1231
2009 Non-denvative financial instruments - outflows
Leng and shor-term borrawings 116 44 48 09
Finance leases - 03 01 -
Trade and other poyables - 184 - -
né 231 49 09
Denvative financial instruments — net outflows - 07 02 -
Total 116 238 51 09

The above tables summanse undiscounted cash flows based on the financial llabiltes of the Group outstonding ai the year-end and assuming
no changes In nterest rates from the year-end rates

Fair value estimation

In the opinion of the Board the camying value of the assets and liabilities of the Group approximate thew fair values As noted above the only
ather finanaial iInstruments that are measured at falr value through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income are Inferest rate swaps
There are no financial assets or iabiliies held for trading purposes or any investments classified as avallable-for-sale

£10212,500 of Zero Coupon toan Notes were 1ssued o Ares Lux as part of the Refinanaing as reported in Note 25{e) They are repayable in
nermal circumstances in September 2021, or earier in the event of another refinancing or a change of control of the Group The Directors have
discounted the Zero Coupon Loan Notes at 15%, a rate between the cost of the Group’s senior debt and the cost of equity ofter the Refinancing
to give ¢ far value at the time of Issue of £2,505,115 The imputed tnterest 15 charged fo finance expenses from the dale of issue untl the
repayment date The charge in the year ended 31 December 2011 was £113,245 (2010 £nill The Loan Notes contain an embedded denvative
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as addihonal Loan Notes up fo @ maxirmum value of £2 500,000, will be 1ssued if the Group achieves ceroin EBITDA targets in the years ended
31 December 2013 and/or 2014 or if the Enterpnse Value at 31 December 2013 and/or 31 December 2014 and/or 31 December 2015 exceeds
certain target amounts No value has been atidbuted by the Directors to the embedded dervative af the ime of Issue or at the year-end as the
Directors believe these targets will not be met

The fair value of inferest rate swaps is based on information denved from respective bankers quotes and as such they fall into tevel 2 of the fair
value hierarchy The farr value of the Zero Coupon Loan Notes 1s based on management udgement and as such falls into Level 3 of the farr value
hierarchy

Capital nsk monogement
The Group considers its capiial to compase s ordinary share capital, share premium, and accumuloted retained eamings In managing its capital

the Group s long-lerm objeciive 15 to ensure its continued ability to provide @ growing retum for its eguity shareholders through a combination of
capital growth and distibutions

As reported in the Consolidated Financial Staterments for the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board determined that it was a pronty fo reduce
the geanng of the Group As o result of the restatement of the 2010 Financial Statements net equity became negative at 31 December 2010 As at
31 December 2011 the geanng was 43 4% Two transactions in particular dunng the year contnbuted signiicantly to the reduction Firstly, the sale
of the Homecare dwvision of HCA, as announced on 18 July Net proceeds of sale of A$30 5m (£20 3ml were used o reduce debt Secondly the
Refinancing approved by shareholders on 12 Septermber 2011 as set out In detall In Note 25

The facilihes prowded by the Group's banikers include a number of financlal covenanis on interest cover and leverage (debt to EBITDAI The first
testing of the covenants will be at 30 September 2012

25 REFINANCING

On 19 August 2011 the Board announced o substantial Refinanang of the Company, compnsing @ £60 000,000 Placing of Ordinary Shares of
10p each at par, an Open Offer of up 1o £4250 579 of Ordinary Shares of 10p each ot par, a Debt for Equity Conversion and a Debt Repayment
and Resfructunng ltogether the "Refinancing’)

The Refinancing was condihonal on the approval of the Refinancing Resolutions by Shareholders in general meeting, and the Refinanaing
Resolutions were all passed at the AGM held on 12 September 2011

On 13 September 2011 the shares of the Company were relisted on the AIM, following the suspension of frading on 25 Januory 2011, and
734450971 new shares were admitted to trading on the AIM

There were a number of steps within the Refinancing and these are descnbed in more detail below

lad  New shares issued

The following new shares were 1ssued as par of the Refinancing Number
£60,000,000 Placing of New Ordinary Shares of 10p each 600,000,000
Debt for Equity swap by way of 1ssue of Ordinary Shares at 18p to Ares Capital Europe {Luxernbourg) Sarl 125,000,000
Open Offer of up 10 £4,250.579 New Ordinary Shares of 10p each 9,450,971
Total number of New Qrdinary Shares 1ssued 734,450,971
ol Uthsation of the proceeds of the Placing
The Placing raised £60,000,000 which wos utilised as follows £
Repayment of existing bank debt 35,000,000
Setflement of debt owed to Craig Tibbles l) 2,500,000
Commussion to Toscafund Asset Management LLPii) 1,137,500
Commussion to ACE Limited () 200,000
Working capital facilify fee to ACE Lirmited ({ivi 250,000
Setilement of working capifal facility capital and accrued interest due to Ares (M 3,017,540
Nomad fees to Faifax 710,920
Cash received - available 1o pay cosis and professional fees 17,184,040
Total 60,000,000
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id

i The Company and Craig Tibbfes agreed, subject to completion of the Refinancing, to restructure the two deferred consideration
paymenis of £2,000,000 ond £3 000,000 payable by the Company 1o Cralg Tibbles under the lems of the acquisiiions of Orion and
MJIV i 2010 One element of the agreement was that £2 500000 be released by way of subscnption by Craig Tibbles for 25,000,000
New Crdinary Shares under the Placing He has agreed not to sell any of the New Ordinary Shares purchased for a perod of 12
months after the date of the Refinancing

il The Company agreed to pay Toscofund Asset Management LLP a commussion of £1,137 500 for participating in the Placing, in which
Toscafund Asset Management LLP agreed to subscabe for 336,375,000 New Qrdinary Shares The commission was considered to
be within the range of normal market rates for a fransaction of this type The cost is included in the £2 3m share 1ssue costs in the
Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive Income

tw}  The Company agreed lo pay ACE Limited, a member of the ACE concen party @ commussion of £200 000 for paticipating in the
Placing n which ACE Limited ogreed 1o subscnbe for 131,625,000 New Ordinary Shares The commuission was considered to be
within the range of nomal market rates for a transaction of this type The cost 1s included in the £2 3m share 1ssue costs In the
Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income

(vl The Company negotiated an intenm Working Capital Facility of up to £5,000 000 with ACE Limited on 19 August 2011 The
arrangement fee of £250 000 for the facitity, which was made avallable unti the earlier of the Refinancing or 17 October 2011, was
agreed to be repaid by way of set-off against subscnption mories payable by ACE bimited In the Placing in addition the Company
agreed to repay ACE Limited all capital aond accrued interest drawn, amounting fo £3,017 540 under the Infenm Working Capfial
Facility by way of set-off against subscrption monies payable by ACE Limited in the Placing The amangement fee was expensed in
finance costs Note 91

Debt for Equity Swap with Ares Copital Europe (Luxembourgl Sarl *Ares Lux?

Ares Lux provided finance to the Company through a MFA, as part of the financing raised to acquire HCA In December 2010, and agreed
subject to the Admuission of New Ordinary Shares to the Alv and subjed to the temms of the Restructunng Agreement to convert up to
£22,400,000 of capital and accrued interest info 125,000 000 New Ordinary Shares This was the same in economic terms as Ares Lux
subscnbing £12 500 000 for New Ordinary Shares at par and wating off up to £9.900,000 of capital and accrued interest At the date of
completion of the Refinancang the actual amount due to Ares Lux, excluding the £10212,500 refered 1o in {e} below, was £22 396 586
As noted below the fair value of the New Ordinary Shares 1ssued to Ares Lux was 10p per share or £12 500000 in total The difference
between the farr value of the shares 1ssued and the amcunt of prncipal and accrued interest outstanding under the MFA, being

£9,896 586, was recorded as a gain In Ainonce Income iNote 9)

(o]

Utiisation of the proceeds of the Open Offer

The Open Offer raised £945 097 which was ulilised as follows £
Registrar's fees 18,551
Cash receved 926,546

Total 945,097

fel

i
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Debt for Zero Coupon Loan Note ("Note™ or “Notes” Swap with Ares Lux

Ares Lux agreed, subject to the same condihons as in {c) above, to conver £10.212,500 of the debi owed to it by the Company under

the MFA into Notes, for a pancipal amount of £10,212 500 If the Group achieves certain EBITDA or Enferpnse Value targeis or If certain
condiions are met, the Company will be obliged io 1ssue additional Notes to the holders The maximum number of new Notes fo be 1ssued
1s £2,500,000 The Notes do nof acciue Interest and they fall due for repayment on 30 September 2021 excep! In certain crcumstances
relating to a change in control of the Group or o further refinancing In which case the redemphion date may be brought forward As
disclosed in Note 24 the fair volue of the Notes at the date of 1ssue was £2,505,115 ond the gain of £7,707 385 1s reporied In finance
income {Note 91 A finance expense 1s being recegnised in the Consobdated Statement of Comprehensive Income post the date of issue
which wall increase the liability to the full value of £10,212,500 by the 30 September 2021 For the penod from issue to 31 December 2011
the amount of the charge was £113245 {2010 £ni

Warver of exishing bank debt

The banks agreed fo waive debt existing immediotely pror to the Refinancing amounting to capital of £5,941,826 and accrued interest of
£564 605 and these amounts were credited to Finance Income (Note 9

Write off of copitalised bank fees

Fees incurred in negohating bank facilities are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posiion as o redudhion of the total
borowings and waiten off to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income over the term of the facility As part of the Refinancing,
drawings under the existing faailiies were elther extinguished or modified Where facilifies were extinguished the balance of unamertised
fees were wniten off io Finance Expense Where modified the appropnate proporion of unamomised fees were camed forward in the
Conschdated Statement of Financial Position to be watten off over the term of the modified faciliies The amount of £4,380 402 was wallen
off to Finance Expense (Note 9}

Cosis

Advisers’ fees totalling £5 556 819 were incured In negohiaiing the Refinanaing Of these costs £2,472 116 was paid to the adwvisers 1o the

Company and the Company also paid £3,084,703 of costs incured by the banks All of these costs have been charged to Finance Expense
{Ncte 9
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f Share issue cosls

Costs of £2 315,194 were incured which were direcily related fo the Issue of shares in the Refinancing As no share premium was created
from the 1ssue of those shares the cost has been charged 1o the Profit and Loss Reserve

i Modrfied loans

Modified loans of A$60,000,000 I£38 9ml were drawn by HCA under the SFA, although no addimonal cash actually came into the Group
The loans are secured by a charge on the assets of the Group Details of the terms of the loans are set out in Note 24 Costs directly
atinbutable to the raising of the loans omounting fo £672 134, were debited o unomorised debt 1ssue costs within borrowings (Nole 21)

K Warants

Under the terms of the mezzanine facility granted by Ares Lux In 2010 the Company granted Ares Lux warrants over 2,493 453 shares In
the Company at an exerase price of 10p per share The warants lapsed as part of the Refinancing and £2 6m was charged to Finance
Expense (Note 9)
Based on the pnce paid for new shares in the Placing and the Open Offer, and the prices in the open market immediately ofter the shares were
relisted the Direclors consider the fair value of the shares issued in exchange for debt to be 10p each

26 SHARE CAPITAL

Authonsed
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2201 2010 2009 2011 200 2009
Number "000 Number 000 Number 000  Number "000 Number 000 Number 000
Equity share capital
Crdinary shares of 10p each 847,799 200,000 200000 848 200 200

Allotted, called up and fully paid

31 December 31 Decemnber 31 December 31 December 3) December 31 December
2011 2010 2009 201 2010 2009

Number “000 Number 000 Number 000  Number "000 Number 000 Number 000

Equity share capital
Ordinary shares of 10p each 847,799 113,338 104 667 848 113 105

The movernents in the issued share capital are set out below

Ordinary shares of 10p

Number "000 £m
As at 1 Jonuary 2009 104272 104
Shares i1ssued following exercise of share opfons granied 1o employees al 30 September 2009 395 01
As at 31 December 2009 104,667 105
Shares 1ssued following exercise of share options granted 1o employees and other parties on
27 January 2010 500 -
29 Apnl 2010 250 -
20 September 2010 4 -
3 November 2010 584 01
New ordinary shares issued on 16 July 2010 7333 Q7
As at 31 December 2010 113,338 113
Shares i1ssued in year (] 10 -
New ordinary shares 1ssued on 13 September 2011 Note 251 734,451 735
As at 31 December 2011 847,79% 848

fil During 2011 the Registrars Issued a share cedificate for an incorect number of sheres and the purchaser subsequently sold the shares The Registrars paid the Company 20p per
share cfier the year end in sertlement

The shares issued in January 2010 following exercise of share options granted fo employees cormpnsed 500000 options that were issued at the
exercise pnce of 106p per share The shares issued in Apnl 2010 following exercise of share options granted to employees compnsed 250 000
options that were Issued at the exercise price of 112 5p per share Al the same exeraise pnce, 4,000 shares were 1ssved in Seplember 2010

in November 2010 583,836 shares were Issued pursuant to an option deed dated 4 November 2005 af the exercise price of 55 0p per share

On 16 July 2010 the Company 1ssued 7,333 334 new 10p ordinary shares at 150p per share raising a fotal of £11 0m Transachon costs of
£469 000 were incurred 1n relation to this 1ssue which were charged to the Shore Premium Account
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All the new shares 1ssued dunng the year and the pror year hove the same nghts preferences and resinctions as those relating fo the ordinary
shares already in 1ssue at the start of the year

27 RESERVES
The share prermium account represents amaounts subscnbed for share capital in excess of the nominal volue of the shares 1ssued

The cosh flow hedge reserve represents gains and losses ansing on recognising hedging instruments at fair value n a qualifying cash flow hedge

The share aphion reserve represents the fair vatue of wamants issued to ACE Limited in connection with the mezzanine faciliy taken out in 2010
and share opficns granted to employees The warants lapsed on the Refinancing when the mezzanine facility was extinguished

The translation reserve compnses foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the Financial Statementis of foreign operations that
are infegral to the operations of the Group

The retained eamings represent the cumulolive profil of loss recogrised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, as adjusted for
subseguent transfers 1o or iom other reserves

28  CONTINGENT LIABILTES
Claims and litigation
From fime-to-me the Group and Company are 1n receipt of clams from customers and employees cnsing in the narmal course of business

The following disclosures are made In connection with claims or exposures which the Directors consider represent matenal uncertalnties Any
adverse [udgement in respect of these matiers may have a matenal impact on the Group s and Company's results from operations, cash flows
and finoncial posiion In this event, the Duectors may have to enter Inte negohations with the Group’s providers of finance or seek altemative
sources of finance since the Group's cash flow forecasts and currently available financing assume no outflow of funds for any settlement or Cour
award in respect of these maotters

Dismissal of Executive Vice Chairman ~ Ms. Kate Bleasdale

The former Executive Vice Chairman was dismissed on 11 March 2011 She has since that date launched lega! proceedings against the
Company for unfarr dismissal, vichmisation and sex discnmination, claiming damages of £12m The Company has taken legal adwvice and will
vigorously defend itself agoinst these charges indially at an Employment Tnbunal in Apal 2012 Whilst the outcome 15 uncertann, on the bosis of
legal advice receved, the Boord believes the claims are unfounded and therefore that there 1s no liability or probable cash outflow for the Group
and Company, other than legal costs in defending the claim

Litigohon

Proceedings were filed on 12 February 2012 against HCL, the Company's former Executive Vice Charman Kathleen V Bleasdale former Group
Finance Director Diane Javis and former Chalman Alan Walker the Defendants’) in the United States Distnct Court for the Southem Distact of
New York The proceedings were filed by Permian Master Fund, LP, Pemmian Investmenis Parners, LP, Arundel Copital LLC, Ansndel Long Fund
LP Arundel Hedge Fund LP Pnvet Copital, LLC and Finn Investments LLC the Plaintiffs™ On 26 March 2012 notice was received that the claims
against Kathleen V Bleasdale had been dismissed without prejudice

The Summons clleges that the Plaintiffs were induced io invest In secunties 1ssued by HCL or instruments linked 1o those secunttes on the bosis
of knowing or reckless misrepreseniotions by the Defendants conceming the Company's accounting prachices and operating results and that
disclosures conceming the Company’s accounting imegulanties caused matenat declines in the pnces of HCL secunhes and instuments Inked

thereto inunng the Plaintifs The Complaint alleges that the Plaintiffs have suffered substaniial damages The Complaint 1s available for inspection
from the coun

The Complaint requests a tnal by ury and the Plainiffs seek rescission and or compensatory damages Iincluding interest thereon) Whilst the
information provided 1s insufficient to enable the Board {o assess the quantum of the compensatory damages claimed, It would appear that the
Plaintffs seek lo asserd a loss in the value of thelr nvesiments In the claim, the Plaintiffs assert that they spent in the regton of £13m purchasing
their investmenis The Plaintiffs also seek an award for punitive damages for each claim to the maximum exient allowable by US law together
with an award of costs and such other relief os the US Count may deem |ust and proper The Board are unable to quantfy the daim

The Board 15 taking legal advice on the ments of the Complaint and the proper junsdiction for the detemmination of any such claim At this early
stoge the Board has been unable to form a view as fo whether any ligbility exists to quantfy the cloim, whether any economic outflow ts
probable and if so its tming

No proviston has been made for fulure legal costs which are written off as incured
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Other contingent liabitities

Managed service and Umbrella componies

The Board has taken external advice from Grant Thomion as te whether any financial exposure might exist from sourcing locums through
“Umbrella™ and/or Manoged Service Companies HCL hos recruited through a small number of companies which HMRC could seek to argue
were Managed Service Companies If such arguments were successful this could leave the Group at nsk of claims from HMRC for unpaid income
tax and/or nohonal insurance should o Managed Senvice Company become insolvent with debis owing to HMRC in respect of locums who

had worked through HCL Whilst the Boord 1s unaware of Umbrella Company being in arrears with payments to HMRC in respect of any locums
provided from such companies a residual nsk remains

The Company operates self-billing amangements for a large part of the locum workforce which enables the Group io obtain o VAT deduction
but which requires the supplier to acccunt for VAT accordingly There are a number of requirernents associated with the operation of seli-billing
arangements 1o obtain the VAT deduction Should these requirements not be met there may be a confingent labilty in respect of the VAT
deduction claimed

As well as the specific matenal contingent liabilities set out above, the Group's principal risks and uncerainties are set out in the statement on
Pancipel Risks and Uncerainties on page 19 to 20

29 PENSIONS

The Group operates defined caninbution pension schemes In the UK and Australia There were no outstanding or prepaid coninbutions at erther
the beginning or end of the financial year

30 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
As at 31 December 2011 the Group had total commitmenis under non-cancelloble operating leases as set out below

Land and buitdings Other

31 December Resiated’ 31 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 December 2010 2009 2011 2010 200%
£m fm £rn £m £m £m

Operating lease commiiments payable.
Under 1 year 14 18 07 01 01 01
1 -2 years 21 17 - - 01 -
2 - 5 years 32 55 14 - - 01
Qver 5 yeqrs 2.9 38 04 - - -
96 128 25 01 02 02

1] Restated for one property omitted from the figures reported in 2010 The tofal reported In 2030 was £6 ém and has been increased by £6 2m

The leases on the lond and buildings range from ten months fo nine years In length The operating leases descabed as “other are mainly for cars
and nomnally have a kfetime of three years

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

MyWarkforce Limited, Nationwide Accreditation Bureau Company Limited Montagu Nursing Agencies Limited, Dancomp Umited and Netengines
Holdings Limited were related parties to the Group by vitue of a significant sharehalder of the Company and husband of Ms Kate Bleasdale
Mr John Canss, owning the majonty of the share capital of these companies

There were no transactions with any of the above companies in 2011 other than setffement of the amounts outstanding at 31 Decernber 2010 of
£52000 to Natonwide Accreditation Bureau Company bimited and £65,000 to Redweod Group Uimited There were no balances outstanding ot
31 December 2011 Dunng 2010 the Group purchased sewvices from Natlopwide Accreditation Bureau Company bimited of £199,000 and from
Redwood Group Limited of £200,000 The Group invoiced services provided fo Netengines Holdings Limited of £20,000 Nationwide Accreditation
Bureau Company bLimited and Netengines Holdings Umited have both made commerciol cloims against the Group which have been rejected
after an assessment by the Directors of the likelihood of the claims being successful They are disclosed here as they are related paries

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2010 the Group purchased the trade and asseis of Redwood Health Limited from the previous owners for a
maxmum consideration of £6,650 000, and Redwood Health Limited subsequently changed its name fo Dancorp Limited The previous owners
were Cardale Invesiments LLP, @ company controlled at one fime by Ms Kate Bleasdale and her husband Mr John Canss Doncorp Lirnited 1s

now In admimsirahon and negoliations ook place with the Administraior regarding the final setflement of the defemed cansideration as detalled
in Note 17
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0On 20 August 2010 the Comipany receved an inferest free £400 000 loan from Cardale Invesiments LLP The loan was fully repaid on 6
September 2010

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2010 wages and salanes were paid to relatives of Directors then in office of £33,101 to Mr lan Jarvs, the
husband of Ms Diane Jarvis, £525 to Daniel Canss, the son of Ms Kate Bleasdale, and £79 o Danial Dedat, the son of Mr Mo Dedat

On 24 Jonuary 2011 the Company assigned the lease, which expires on 23 January 2020 of an office in Lendon to Cardale Investments LLP
There was g rent free penod until 23 June 2011 included within the agreement and ihe office furmniture fixtures and fitings with a net book value
of £20,000 that were owned by ihe Company were fransfermed free of charge to Cardale Investments LLP

Dunng 2011 the law firm SNR Denton provided a significant level of legal services to the Group Mark Andrews who joined the 8card on 1
October 2011, was a Partner in SNR Denton unhl 30 Apnl 2011 and remains a consultant Whilst SNR Denfon was not a related party ot any tme
in the year the Board considers the prior business relationship with SNR Denton before Mark Andrews |oined the Board should be noted here for
completeness

A number of the Directors who served dunng the year provided therr serices through thelr management companies The amounts paid fo those
companies for services provided are included in the Remuneration Report on page 30 In addition small amounts of expenses directly incured In
providing therr sevices were billed through those companies The Directors and thelr companies were

Andrew McRae {to 31 January 2011) MCR Consulting Limited

Colin Whipp Amersham Business Management Limited
Alan Walker Alfa international Limited

Bill Jessup Corporate Navigaior Lirnited

Alasdar Liddell Alasdayr Liddell Limited

Under the rules of the AIM a shareholder controlling in excess of 10% of the 1ssued share capital is a related pary The Toscafund Concest Party
was a related pary dunng the year and the Company paid fees of £1 137 500 1o Toscafund Asset Management LLP as disclosed in Note 25(bilil
The Toscafund Concer Parly subscnbed for 336,375,000 New Ordinary Shares in the Placing o par of the Refinonang paying £33 637 500 The
ACE concen parly became a reloted party when the Refinancing was completed Concumrently 1o the completion of the Refinancing the Company
paid fees of £200 000 to ACE Limited as disclosed in Note 25(blnl swapped debt for equity as disclosed in Note 25ic) and swapped debt for
the Zero Coupon Loan Note as disclosed in Note 250l ACE also subscnbed for 131,625 000 New Ordinary shares in the Placing, parhally paid
for by wnting off £30m of borrowings advanced under the Working Capital Facility The Zero Coupon Loan Note was still held by Ares Lux at 31
December at which time the fair value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posifien was £2618,360

32 SHARE OPTICN SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme in place The share opliens In 1ssue over ordinary shares of £0 10p as ai 31 December 2011 were the
following

At 31December
At 1 January 2011 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2011 Exerdise price Expiry date
Issue date No ‘000 No '000 No ‘000 Ne ‘000 No ‘000 [Pence)
Apr 2005 120 - - {116) 4 1000 Apr 2015
Aug 2006 583 - - (583) - 5600 Aug 2016
Dec 2007 1,000 - - {1,000} - 89 50 Dec 2017
May 2008 766 - - (694) 72 11250 May 2018
Sep 2008 1,000 - - {1,000} - 12400 Sep 2018
Sep 2009 450 - - (450) - 20700 Sep 2019
Dec 2010 100 - - - 100 98 50 Dec 2020
Total 4,019 - - {3,843) 176

The vesting penod for share options issued dunng 2005 1s one year The vesiing perod for all shaie ophons issued since 2006 15 three years
None of the share options 1ssued contains any performance crtena parameters and ali are equity setiled

The total number of share options exercisable at 31 Decermber 2011 was 75495 (2010 1703 481) The weighted average exercse pace at 31
December 2011 was 107 1p {2010 73 4pl

No share options were granted or exercised 10 2011 Af the times the share options were forfeited dunng 2011 the Company’s shares were
suspended from trading on the AlM The mid-market closing price immedictely pror to the suspension was 112 5p For the share options forfelted
in 2010 the weighted average share pnce af the date of forfeiture was 173 74p

For tha remaining share options the weighled average confractual life of these options 1s 94 months 12010 87 months)
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Comparatve information for 2010 1s as follows

At 1 January 2030 Granted Exerised Forfated At 31December 2010 Exercise pnce Expiy dale
Issue date No 00O No 000 No 000 No 000 No 000 (Pencel
Apr 2005 120 - - - 120 1000 Apr 2015
Aug 2006 583 - - - 583 5900 Aug 2016
Dec 2007 1000 - - - 1,000 8950 Dec 2017
May 2008 1061 - {254 tan 766 11250 May 2018
Jun 2008 8 - - 18) - 10500 Jun 2018
Sep 2008 1000 - - - 1,000 12400 Sep 2018
Nov 2008 500 - {5000 - - 10600 Nov 2018
Sep 2009 510 - - 160 450 20700 Sep 209
Dec 2010 - 100 - - 100 9850 Dec 2020
Total 4782 160 {754) 109 419

For the year ended 31 December 2010 the weighted average share pnce at the date of exercise was 259 56p, the weighted avercge exercise
price for oplions granted was 98 5p

In respect of these share-based payments an income has been credited to the profits of the Group and the Company for the year of £508,000
(2010 expense charged - £608 000)

The fair value of options granted dunng 2010 determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model was £13018 The significant inputs into
the model were share prices of 98 63p, exercise pnce as in the table above, standard dewation of expected share pnce of 47 3%, option Iife
os disclosed in the fable above, dividend yield of 282% and annual risk-free interest rate of 225% The volatility measured at the annualised
standard deviation of dally changes in share pnce was based on statistical analysis of daily share pnces of cornparable companies betweaen
November 2005 and December 2010

There were non-employee share options brought forward at 1 January 2010 over 583,836 shares at 550p per share These oplions were
exarcised in November 2010

33 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
Information relating to a claim made in New York after the year end by Permian Master Fund LP, et al 1s disclosed in Note 28
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
HEALTHCARE LOCUMS PLC UNDER UK GAAP
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

Healthcare Locums plc

Note 201 Restated’ 2010
£m £m
ASSETS
Fixed assets
intangible assets 37 - -
Property, ptant and equipment 38 0.8 06
Invesiments 39 75 75
83 81
Current assets
Trade and other recevables a1 639 1043
Cash and cash equivalents 110 06
74.9 1049
Total assets 832 1130
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other poyables 42 (22.5) 146 4)
Bank loans amounts falling due within one year 43 - {733
Deferred consideration 44 {0.9) -
Provisions for liabilies 44 {0 8] 05
{24 2) 202
Total assets less current liabilities 590 72
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Zero Coupon Loan Nole 45 {2 6} -
Provisions for ligbiliies a4 11} -
(37 -
NET ASSETS 55.3 72
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share copital 4 848 113
Share premium account a7 552 453
Share ophon reserve 47 1.2 47
Retained earnings 47 (859 (68 5!
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 55.3 {72

1 Full details of the restotements 1o the Bolance Sheet at 31 Decemnber 2010 are sel out In Note 35 ond Note 42

The Finonaial Statements were approved by the Board and authonsed for tssue on 13 Apnl 2012

( g { uwm\w

STEPHEN BURKE WILLIAM JESSUP
Director Director

The noles on pages 82 to 91 form part of these Anancial Stalements

—
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

34 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the tistoncal cost convention and are in cccordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Pnnciples

The policies adopted are consistent with those applied 1n the preparation of the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2010 excep!
where noted below

The followang pancipal accounting policies have been appled

Tumover

Tumover represents the amounts eamed from the provision of sevices to extemal customers dunng the reporting period - the #tme of provision of
services being the pont at which the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and when it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow
1o the Company Tumover 15 stated at involced amounts tess value added tax or local taxes on sales, plus revenue eamed but unbllled which 1s
included as accrued income In receivables

» Tuinover from temporary placements, which represents revenue for the semices of femporary staff is recognised when the semvices have
been provided Tumover in¢ludes the salary costs of the femporary siaff unless patd directly by the client In which case tumover represents
commussion only

+ Tumover from permanent placements Is recognised at the date when a candidate commences work. Appropnate provision 1s made for the
expecied cost of meeting obligations where employees do not work for the specified contractual period

Depreciation
Deprectaton 15 provided to write off the cost, less eshmated residual values of all fangible fixed assets, evenly over their expected useful lives 1t1s
calculated at the following rates

Improvements to leasehold buildings - Term of lecse
Motor vehicles - 4 years
Office and computer equipment - 3to 8 years
Software - 310 5 years
Taxation

Current tax 1s provided at amounts expected 1o be paid or recovered using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively
enacled by the balance sheet date

In accordance with FRS 19 deferred tox 1s prowided n full on timing differences which result in an obhigahion at the balance sheet dote to pay
more tox or a nght to pay less tax, at @ future date, at rofes expected 1o apply when they crystallise based on curent rates and low Timing
differences anse from the incluston of ifems of income and expenduure in toxahon computations in penods different from those in which they
are included in Financial Statements Deferred tax assels are recogmised 1o the extent thal it is regarded as more likely than not that they will be
recovered Defered tax assets and liabilities are not discounted

Valuation of investments
Invesiments held as fixed assels are staled at cost less any provision for impairment

Goodwill
Purchased goodwill in respect of the acquisitions of trade and assels of a business Is capritalised Goodwill 1s amorised fo nil by equal annual
installments over its estimated useful life

Impairment

The Durectors camy out impaiment reviews annually or whenever an indication of impairment has been identified Provisions for Impaimment are
taken to the Profit and toss account

The valuation of investment In subsidiary underakings 1s calculated by reference to estimated future cash flows of the relevant company
discounted using an gppropnale, nsk adjusted, rate

For the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 the Company has made eshimates thal are mare fully descnbed in Note 39

Leosed assefs
Where assels are financed by leasing agreements that give nghts approximating to ownership ffinance leases), the assets are treated as If they
had been purchosed outnght The amount capitalised is the present value of the minimum lease payments payable dunng the lease fem The

corresponding leasing commitments are shown as amounts payable to the lessor Depreciation on the relevant assets 1s charged to the Profit and
Loss account
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{eose payments are analysed between capital and interest components so that the interest element of the payment is charged to the Profit and
Loss account over the period of the lease ond represents a constant propottion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding The capital port
reduces the amounts payable lo the lessor

All other leases are treaied as operating leases Therr annual rentals are charged to the Profit and Loss account on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease

Foreign exchange

Tumover generated by the Company In a curency other than the currency of the pnmary economic environment In which 1t operates is recorded
at the rates ruling when the fransachons occur Foreign currency monelary assets and labilities are retranslaoted at the rates ruling at each balance
sheet date Exchange differences ansing are recogrised immediately in the Profit and Loss account

Share-based employee remuneration

The Group operales an equity-settled share-based compensation plan When share ophions are awarded 1o employees a charge is made 1o
the Profit and Loss account recognising the fair value of the options 1ssued over the veshing penod The options vest after a speclfic perlod lthree
years for options 1ssued In 2006 to 2010, one year for options 1ssued eorllert There are no other vesting conditions other than that the oplions

lapse should the employee leave the Group The cumulative expense 1s adjusted for faiture to achueve non-market vesting conddions, such as an
employee leaving

Management chaiges ore levied on subsidiary undenrakings which take into account the share-based compensation plan charges or credits

The credit entry for this charge 1s taken to the share ophon reserve and reported in the reconahation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Pension costs

Coninbuhons to the Company's defined contnbution pension scheme are charged to the Profit and Loss account in the year in which they becorne
payable

Financial instruments

The Company uses interest rate swap instruments to manage the Group's interest rate nsk. These financial instruments are not recognised on the
Balance Sheet of the Company Receipts or payments resulting from these inferest rate instruments are accounted for within Profit and Loss in the
penod dunng which the receipts or payments anse

Deferred and contingent considerahon

Acquisiticns are ivtially booked at cost, including an estimate of any payments to be made at a later date as either defered or contingent
consideration Deferred consideration is fixed and contingent consideration 1s nomnally dependant on the achievement of cerfain fulure targets
by the acquired business The deferred and contingent consideration amounts, Including the movements dunng the year, are reperted in detar
in Note 44 Changes to deferred or confingent censideration, whether due to vanation agreements or changes in estmate relafing to the likely
achievement of future torgets are reflecied In additions to, or reductions in, the cost of the investment

Provisions and contingent liabilities
The Group policy for provisions and contingent labiliies as set out in Note 3igl applies equally 1o the Company which has the same policy

35 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

As reported in Note 1 goodwill and assets of the Social Care division were impaired by £7 Ym (£6 1m in investiments, £0 4m 1n propery, plant
and equipment and £0 6m in amounts due from subsidiary undertakings! as o pror year adjusiment due to the comrection of a clencal emor i
the calculation of goodwill imparment at 31 December 2010 In addiion, £2 0m of the goodwill impairment which was recognised cf the Group

level In 2010 i relation to Sociol Care, should also have been reflecied in an impairment of the goodwill of the Company and this has alsc been
booked as o pnor year adjusiment

In oddiiion, as disclosed in detall in Note 39, the methodology of valuing the investmenis in subsidianes at the year-end has been changed,
resuling in an addimonal pnor year adjusiment of £14 4m in the valuation of investments

In the year ended 31 December 2010 the Company made investments in Australig, in part financed by loans fo subsidianes in that country These
loans were recorded tn A 1n the Aushalian subsidiones but in Stering in the books of the Company An exchange gain was recorded in income
in the Consolidated Financiat Statements as at 31 December 2010 but the gain wos not recorded in the books of the Company which bears the

foreign exchange risk A pnor year adjustiment of £1 8m has therefore been recorded as a credit 1o iIncome i the books of the Company ond an
Increase in the amounts due from subsidiary underakings
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In summary the iImpact on the previcusly reponted figures Is as follows
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Reported 31 Prior year Restated 31
Decernber 2010 adjustments December 2010
£m £m £m
Intangible assets:
Onginally reponted 20
Restatemnent re Social Care zo
Restated amount -
20 (20) -
Property, plant and equipment
Onginally reported 10
Restaternent re Social Care (04l
Restated amount 06
1o {04) 0é
Investments.
Onginally reperted 280
Restaternent re Social Care 61
Restaternent re revised valuation methodology {144
Restated amount 75
28.0 (20 5) 7.5
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings
Onginally reported 996
Resiaternent re impaiment due to addiional iImpairment of Social Care goodwill {06
Exchange gain on amount due from Australian subsidiares 18
Restated amouni 1008
99.6 12 10038
Profit and loss reserve
Onginally reported 46 8)
Restaternents as above
Intangible assets zo
Property, plant and equipment 04l
Invesiments (205
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 12
Restated amount 68 5i
{a6 8) (21 7) {68 5}

36  LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The loss after tax for the year dealt with in the Financia!l Statements of the Company amounts to £6 1m (2010 restated £63 6m) As allowed by the

provisions of Sectron 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has not published its own Profit and Loss account

37 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost: Purchased Goodvgwnl:
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011 27
Amortisahon:

At January 2010 05
Prowided for the year 02
Pnor year imparment adjustment (Note 35) 20
At 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011 2.7

Net book value:

As at 31 December 2011

As at 31 December 2010 - restated
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Office and
Improvements to compurter Software

leaschold buildings equipment development Total
Cost: £m em £m £m
At 1 January 2010 02 63 - 65
Addilions 02 05 - 07
Disposals - 102 02
At 31 December 2010 04 66 - 70
Addihons - 02 02 04
Transfer - (59 59 -
Disposals - {01} (5 &) (57
At 31 December 2011 04 08 0S5 17
Depreciation
Al 1 January 2010 o1 58 - 59
Provided for the year - 03 - 03
Impairment - pror year adjustment {Note 35 - 04 - 04
Disposals - ()] - 02
At 31 December 2010 [restated) 01 63 - 64
Provided for the year - o1 01 02
Transfer - 57 57 -
Disposals - {01) {5 6) {57)
At 31 December 2011 01 06 02 09
Net book value.
At 31 December 2011 03 02 03 08
Al 31 Decemnber 2010 lrestated) 03 03 - 06

Software costs have been separated out from ofiice and computer equipment as they are considered to be fundementally different in nature

therefore meniing o separate anclysis

Disposals within software refer to assets fully impatred dunng 2010 which are no longer in use

39 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Restated shares
in subsidiary
undertokings

Cost em
At 1 January 2010 465
Additions 56
At 31 December 2010 52.1
Additions 44
Disposals -
At 31 December 2011 565
Impairment

At 1 January 2010 -
Chaiged in the year — as onginally reported 241
Charged in the year — restaternent {Nole 351 205
At 31 December 2010 - restated 43 6
Charged in the year 44
At 31 December 2011 490
Net book value

As at 31 December 2011 75
As at 31 December 2010 - restated 75
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 the Direclors have changed the methodology for calculating the recoverable amount of the Company's
investment in its subsidianes

In prepanng the accounts of the Parent Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 1f gn impairment indicator was identified the value in
use for the Group s Income Generating Units [IGUs™ was mapped fo the investmenis held in the Balance Sheet of the Company by allocating the
value In use of the Group s IGUs on the basis of revenue of each relevant subsidiary This methedclogy did not involve a value In use assessment
of each subsidiary and has the effect of assessing invesiments on a cluster basis

In prepanng the accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011, the Directors have performed a value in use assessment by
appiying a perpeturty facior lusing the UK business pre-tax cost of capital of 1568% {Note 14 to the EBITDA for the year ended 31 Decernber 2011
of each subsidiary as o reasonable proxy for pretax cash flow Future cash flow forecasts for each subsidiary hove not been prepored in tight of the
group reorganisation descnbed below The Company has concluded that this methodalogy 1s more appropnate as it enables an estimation of each
investment individually as required by Financigl Reporiing Standard 11 The Direciors beligve that the methodology does have irmitations as future
cash flows have not been prepared for aach subsidiary indvidually and the application of a perpetuity factor to 2011 results represents a simplified
approach fo defermining value in use, which the Directors believe to be reasonable in hght of the 2012 reciganisation descnbed below

The Directors have concluded that had this more appropnate and reliable methodology been opplied in the prior year, an additionat impairment
of £14 4m would have been recorded, and this has been shown as a pnor period adjustment due to its magnitude No exercise has been
undertaken to determine whether the investment camying values at 31 December 2009 shou'ld be odjusted using this methodclogy

The Directors have plans to reorganise the Company's UK subsidiares 1n 2012 in order to reduce the number of legal entihies and align the legal
structure with the market brands of the Company's UK businesses This reorganisation will involve transfers of trade between subsidiaries and will
align the legal entity strucfure more closely with the IGUs

The Directors have perdformed an estimated value in use assessment using esimeted 2010 EBITDA figures, which has confirmed ther approach
to be reasonable, but they are unable to detemine with certainty whether any part of the impealment presented as a prior period adjustment
should have been recorded In the year ended 31 December 2011, but do not believe that 2011 saw a matenal detencrafton in value In addition
the Directors acknowledge that the simplified approach has resulted in carrying values at 31 December 2010 and 2011 determined not stnctly in
comphance with UK accounting standards Nevertheless, the Diractars believe that the approach adopted produces a more reliable result than the
previous approach and acknowledge that in respect of this area and the Company s investment in Soctal Care bustnesses the Company may not
have maintained proper accounting records as required by the Companies Act 2006

In addition to the pnor year adjusiment of £14 4m noted above, a pnor year impaimment of £6 1m has been booked to reflect the pnor year
adjustment relating to the Social Care division as disclosed in Note 1 and Note 35
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40 SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
The pnncipal undestakings in which the Company has ¢n interest at the year-end are as follows

Name Nature of business

Thames Medics Limited Supply of professional health services of statutonly registered doctors

HCL Healthcare Limited Supply of professional health services of statutonly registered medical staff
Medical Technical Limited Supply of professional healih semces of statutonly registered medical staff
Recrutment Specialist Group Limited Supply of professlonal health services of statutonly registered medical staff and social workers
BBL Medical Limited Supply of professional health semces of stalutonly registered doclors

HCL GPs Limited Supply of professional health services of statutonly reglstered doctors
Allied Health Professionals Limited Supply of professional health services of statutonly registered medical staff
Docshop Limiled Supply of professional health services of statutorlly regisiered doctors
Nurselink Worldwide Limited Supply of professional health services of statutonly registered medical siaff
Blue Group Infemational Limited * Supply of professionat health services of statutonly registered medical stoff and socict workers
JC Group Lid Supply of professional heclih services of statutonly registered docicrs

JC i *+* Supply of professional hecith services of statutonly registered doctors
Onon Locurns Lid Supply of Nursing and healthcare locums

MUV Locums Lid Supply of off-contract pharmacists

HCL Intemational Pty Ltd Supply of medical staff on a permanent placement basis

Healthcare Australia Holdings Pty Lid>* Holding company for Australian subsidiary undertakings

Healthcare Australia Pty Lid*** Prncipal subsidiary of Healthcare Australio Holdings Ply Ltd

Acclaim Recrutment Pry Lid**** Nursing agency

ASEPS Pty Ltd**** Nursing agency

Care Services Admin Pty Ltd**** Adrmin staff for the business

Goongee Pty Ltd**** Nursing ogency

Malvem Payroll Manogement Services Ply Lid****  Nursing agency

NT Medic Pty Lid***= Nursing agency

Nursing Agency Austrahia Ply Ltd**** Nursing agency

PNS {PCC) Pty Lid**=* Nursing agency

PNS (Staffing Synergyl Pty Lid®** Nursing agency

PNS Mic) Pty Ld®==* Nursing agency

Select Unit Trust**** Nursing ogency

All subsidianes are 100% owned by HCL, cther than those merked * which are 100% owned by Blue Group Interational Holdings birmited, those
marked ** which are 100% owned by JCJ Group Umited those marked with *** which are 100% owned by HCL International Py Limsted, and
those marked **** which are 100% owned by HCA.

In December 2011 HCL 1ssued new shares to Recuitment Specialist Group Limited, which has been identified as the prospective new
Intermediate holding company in a restructunng of the UK subsidianes which 1s currently under way

These 100% share ownerships also represent 100% of the voting nghts
All subsidianes operate in the Uniied Kingdom and are registered in Englend and Wales other than HCL International Ply Limited and subsidianes

thereof which are registered In Australio The able cbove excludes dormant subsidianes In the United States Canada and South Korea All
compantes have been included in the consolidated results of the Group
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41 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Restoted' 31
31 December 2011 December 2010

£€m £m

Trade debtors 3as 21
Cther debtors 02 07
Prepayments 07 06
Accued iIncome o1 01
Corporation tax 0.5 -
Amounts recewveoble from subsidiary underakings frestated) 589 1008
639 1043

11 There were two prior year adjustments Impacting on omounts recevable from subsidiory undertakings as disclosed in Note 35

Included within amounts receivable from subsidiary undertakings are loans 1o HCE Infemaitonal Pty Limited HCIM of A$18 000000 (£11 846,0001
(2010 A%$73,400000 (£48.056 000N which were interest free and repayable on demand The movement In the year padly represents a repayment
made by HCI ofter it was recopitalised by an Issue of new shares as reporied in Note 40 The Company advanced funds of £16 Im ta
Recruitmeni Specialist Group Limited to enable that company to make the additional investment in HCI, and the balance remained outstanding at
the year-end

All gther amounts due from subsidiary undertakings were repayable on demand and did not bear any interest

All amounts shown under debtors fall due for payment within one year

42  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Restated 31
31 December 2011 December 2010

em £m

Trade creditors 1.2 16
Amounts due fo subsidiary undertakings 169 391
Other taxes ond social secunty 06 20
Other creditors 0.2 03
Accruals 35 33
Deiferred Income 01 01
225 46 4

All amounis due to subsidiary underntakings are repayable on demand and do not bear any interest
Contingent consideration of £0 Sm relating fo the Oren and MV acquisitions in 2010 was disclosed within trade and cther payables at 31

December 2010 The balance was reclassified to the contingent consideration proviston and it 1s now shown as an opening balance to that
account in Note 44

43  BANK LOANS AMOUNTS FALLNG DUE WITHIN CNE YEAR

31 Decemnber 2011 31 December 2010

£m £€m

Bank loans lsecured! - 815
Debt 1ssue costs - 53
Warants - {2 6
- 733
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Contractual matunty of debt

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

£m £m

Matunty of debt
Up to 1 year, or on demand - 27
T - 2vyears - 41
2 - Syears - 665
- 733

See Note 21 to the Group Financial Statemenis for an explanation of the classification of bank loans as falling due within one year of 31
December 2010 As a result of the Refinancing dunng the year ended 31 December 2011 the Group's bank loans are 1 the books of Australian
subsidiary undertakings as at 31 December 2011 but they are secured, by cross guarantee, on the ossets of all Group companies

The Cormpany has guaranteed bank borrowings of its subsidhanes totaling £39 5m (2010 £457m)

44 PROVISIONS

Contingent Onerous Deferred
consideration confracts Onerous leases Total provisions consideration
£m £m em £m £m
At 31 December 2010 - reclassified from creditors (Note 42) 0.5 - - 0.5 -
Movement during the year
Onon and MJV - deed of vanation INote 171 {0 5) - - (0.5) 05
Paid dunng the yeor - - - - no
Apphed in seflement for new shares subscaphon {Note Z5ibYil - - - - (29
Charged fo income statement - 0.4 15 19 .9
At 31 December 2011 - 04 15 19 09
31 December 2011-
Current - - o8 o8 09
Non-cuirent - 04 0.7 11 -
31 December 2010
Current lrestated) 05 - - 05 .
Non-cumrent - - - - -

Al the time of the Refinancing, descnbed 1in Note 25, the Company was obliged to enter info two interest rate swaps with a farr value loss of
£04m at incephion These onerous contracts have no purpose, are not held for erther trading or Investment and therefore a provision has been
recorded for the expected loss as an onerous contract The farr value loss at 31 December 2011 was £04m

There are two contracts, each with principal amounts of £2 720,000, The Compeny pays a fixed rate of 3 305% to the bark and receves floating
rate interest, based on UBOR in refurn The confracts expire on 31 December 2014

45 ZERO COUPON LOAN NOTES

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

£m £m
Fair value of notes I1ssued 2.5 -
Imputed interest In the year 01 -
Loan noles 2.6 -

£10212 500 of Zero Coupon toan Notes were issued to Ares Lux as part of the Refinancing os reported in Note 25lel They are repoyable m
nomnal circumstances In Septernber 2021, or earlier in the event of another refinancing or a change of control of the Group The Directors have
discounted the Zerc Coupon Loan Notes af 15% a rate between the cost of the Group s senior debt and the cost of equity after the Refinancing
to gve a fair value at the time of 1ssue of £2,505 115 The imputed Interest 1s charged to finance expensas from the date of issue until the
repayment date The charge in the year ended 31 December 2011 was £113,245 (2010 £l The Loan Notes contain an embedded derivative
as addiional Loan Nates up fo @ maximum value of £2,500,000, will be 1ssued if the Group achieves certain ERITDA torgeis in the years ended
31 December 2013 and/or 2014 or if the Enterpase Value al 31 December 2013 and/or 31 December 2014 and/or 31 December 2015 exceeds
certain target amounts No value has been aftabuted by the Directors to the embedded denvaiive at the ime of 1ssue or at the year-end as the
Durectors believe these targeis will not be met
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46 SHARE CAPITAL

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2011

All details of the allotied colled up and fully paid share capital, plus the movements duang the year are set out in Note 26 to the Group Financial

Staternents

47  RESERVES

Share premivm Share option Profit and loss
account reserve account
£m em £m
At 1 January 2010 345 11 (38
Loss for the year - - {419
Share scheme costs - 06 -
Warrants 1ssued during the vear - 30 -
Dimdend paid dunng the year - - 11
Premium on shares 1ssued dunng the year 108 - -
At 31 December 2010 (as previously reported) 453 47 {a6 8)
Restaternent as detatled in Note 35 - - {21 7)
At 31 December 2010 (restated) 453 a7 {68 5)
Loss for the year . - (6.1)
Issue of share capital 9.9 - (2.3)
Gain on Ares Lux debt for equity swap {Note 25(cl) - - (99)
Share scheme credits - {05) -
Warrants lapsed dunng the year - {28) 26
Warrants amaomised dunng the year - {0.4) 04
Dwvidend paid dudng the year - - 21)
At 31 December 2011 552 12 (85 9)
48 RECONCILATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2011 December 2010
£€m £m
Loss for the year las previously reported) 61) 419
Paor year ad|ustment - {217
Loss for the year los restated) (61} 636
Gain on Ares Lux debt for equity swap 99) -
Dvidend paid during the year 2n i
Issue of shares 735 09
Share issue costs 23) -
Prerrium on shares 1ssued 99 108
Warrants 1ssued during the year - 30
Share scheme costs for the year (C 5} 06
Nei addiion to/lreduction in} shareholders' funds 62.5 (49 4)
Add Opening shareholders’ funds {7.2) 422
Closing shareholders’ funds 553 {7 2)

For information on the dividend poid dunng the year refer to Note 13 o the Group Financial Statements including detalls of the Direclors’ opinion

on the lowfulness of previously paid dvidends
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49 PENSIONS

The Company operates @ defined contnbution penston scheme These were no outstanding ar prepaid contnbutions at either the beginning or
end of the finanaial year

50  COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
As at 31 December 2011, the Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable aperating leases as set out below

Land and buildings Cther

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 200 2011 2010
&m £m £m £m

Operating Lease commitments payable:
Under 1 year 01 - 0.1 01
1 - 2 years 0.1 01 04 01
2 - Syears - 01 - c4
Qver 5 years 08 08 -
10 10 05 06

51 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

See Note 31 to the Group Financral Statements for transactions with and baolonces due from and fo reloted parties All the reported fransactions
were with the Cormpany

The Company has token advantage of the exemption conferred by Financigl Reporing Standard § "Related Parly Disclosures” not to disclose
transachions with members of the Group headed by the Company on the grounds that 100% of the voting nghts in the other members of the
Group are confrolled by the Company and the results of all subsidiary undedakings are included in the Group Financial Stalements

52  SHARE CPTION SCHEME
full defaills on the Company share opficn scheme are given in Note 32 to the Group Financial Statements

53 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Defails of the main matenal contingent abilities for the Company are set out in Note 28 In addition the Company is party fo the SFA and as @
resull, 1s a guarantor of all borrowings of the Group Details of Group borrowings are disclosed in Note 21

54 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
information relating to @ claim made in New York after the year end by Permian Master Fund LP, et ql, is disclosed in Note 28
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